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Strive to become
China’s leading environmentally
friendly paper packaging enterprise
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Financial Highlights
755 41 2

For the year ended
31 December
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2021 2020

—E-—fF —ETEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBFT

Revenue A 3,558,009 2,493,041

Profit attributable to the Owners of the Company RABEE NFARGEE MR EETE 160,841 54,772

RMB (cents) RMB (cents)

AR®(2) AR (5)

Dividend per Share B S 9.00 3.00
Return on Equity Attributable to the Owners E/NEIE7 ZE PN L Tl EIE= e

of the Company 14.47% 5.67%

REVENUE
LN

RMB'000
ARETT

2,493,041

2,367,151

RETURN ON EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
THE OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
FORHEABSRIOIRE

14.47

5.67

8.88

3,558,009

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
THE OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
FAFIHBAFAERGEZ IR EH

RMB'000

AREEF T

54,772

82,184

DIVIDEND PER SHARE
|RRRE

RMB (cents)
ARE(5)

3.00

3.00

160,841

9.00
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Chairman’s Statement
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present
the annual report of Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited (the
“"Company” or "Zhengye International”, together with its subsidiaries,
“our Group” or the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the
“Year” or the "Reporting Period").

2021 concluded with a general but imbalanced recovery of the global
economy. Globalisation remained the transforming force of economic
development across the world. Major economies relied on policies such as
quantitative easing and financial relief (tax cuts or subsidies) to maintain a
robust financial market and stimulate investment and consumption, in order
to bring about economic recovery. In general, China’s economy continued
to express high resilience, strong potential and long-term positivity. During
the Reporting Period, the Group benefited from significant growth in our
paper making business volume, increase in sales unit prices and efficient
costs control, resulting in the Company's positive operating performance.

For the 12 months ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a
total turnover of approximately RMB3,558,009,000, which is a record
high and represents an increase of 42.72% year-on-year (12 months
ended 31 December 2020: RMB2,493,041,000). The Group's gross
profit was RMB676,972,000 and gross profit margin was approximately
19.03%, representing a growth of 3.35 percentage points year-on-year.
This was mainly due to an increase of 31.08% in production capacity
upon the completion of switching from coal to LPG and comprehensive
transformation of paper machines and production line equipment for
the Group's two major paper making bases, as well as an increase of
18.68% in prices of paper products at the same time. Profit and total
comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to RMB160,841,000, representing a significant increase year-on-year.
Basic earnings per share was approximately RMB32 cents. The Board has
recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMB9 cents per share.

Prospects and Acknowledgement

In 2022, mounting uncertainties and complexity continues to be present
in the global economy. Without fundamental pandemic recovery across
the world, the pandemic continues to disrupt supply chains and maritime
shipping, resulting in highly volatile bulk commodity prices, leading to
greater uncertainties in the global economy. With gradual economic
recovery and staggering inflation, developed economies in Europe and
America will progressively tighten monetary policy. It is expected that
countries across the world will face fiscal austerity in the second half of
2022.
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The external environment will be increasingly complex, harsh and uncertain
in 2022. Although China’s economy is facing strong pressure from
weakening demand, supply shocks and anticipated slowdown, it remains
on a robust positive track. Through negotiating free trade agreements,
establishing negative lists and win-win cooperation, China will continue to
develop the “Belt and Road”, on which humanity’s common future rests.
China will continue to share the fruits of its development with countries
across the world, taking risks together, creating opportunities together,
and sharing value together.

Despite operating in a complex and fast-changing environment, Zhengye
International remains committed to development in the paper packaging
industry. Taking advantage of the strong and fast development of the
IT electronics industry, the pharmaceuticals industry, the cosmetics
industry and the “Big Health” industry, we increased investment in smart
production facilities for paper packaging, building smart factories to
expand production capacity and reduce costs while enhancing product
quality and services. In future, we will gradually progress towards offering
paper packaging solutions to achieve sustained robust growth of our paper
packaging operation.

In recent years, China’s national and local governments have continued
to increase policy support for the paper industry, expressing the need
to actively implement low-carbon, green, sustainable development of
the paper industry. Taking advantage of the circular economy feature
of the paper industry and the low-carbon green attributes of waste
paper feedstock, Zhengye International will make use of technological
advancement and innovative development models to accelerate enterprise
transformation and upgrade, optimise our manufacturing system and
commence construction of our model base for green industry, in order to
build an ecological paper making enterprise with greater sustainability.

Zhengye International will continue to work closely with our customers
and grow together in fulfilling our social responsibility for environmental
protection. | hereby express my sincere gratitude to the Company’s
customers, suppliers, shareholders and entire staff for their continued
support.

Hu Zheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, China
25 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Business Review

The Group offers integrated packaging solutions to notable domestic and
foreign manufacturers, including those of home appliances, fast-moving
consumer goods, electronic products, by providing mainly supporting
paper packaging products and comprehensive customer services such
as designing, printing, and logistics. In addition, we have extended our
operation to the back-end of the industrial chain, utilizing recycled waste
paper as raw materials to produce corrugated paper, craft paper, and
other paper items for used as materials for the Group’s paper packaging
products and products for external sales.

We are committed to becoming one of the world’s leading eco-friendly
packaging companies.

Our products mainly include craft cartons, color printing cartons,
honeycomb paper-based products, corrugated medium paper and craft

paper.

Consisting currently of 9 wholly-owned subsidiaries and 2 non wholly-
owned subsidiaries in different regions of China, our Group provides
quality services to customers.

Our paper-based packaging products have been widely used in the
packaging of home appliances, fast-moving consumer goods ("FMCG"),
electronic products for many years, which is why we have won the trust
of many well-known domestic and foreign brands and have built a stable
relationship with our customer base for over a decade.

Our corrugated medium paper and craft paper products have won the
recognition of customers for their consistent quality and innovative design
in the segmented market.
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In 2021, orders for our packaging factory in Shijiazhuang dropped sharply
due to the continuous impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. As the economic
development of China’s Greater Bay Area has made it a leader in the
field of paper-based packaging, the management of the Group has
decided to make the Greater Bay Area its target area for implementing
the development strategy of its packaging business. During the Year, the
Group has been building a new production facility for exquisite color box
packaging in our factory in Zhongshan, which is expected to come into
operation in June 2022. During the Year, the factory in Shijiazhuang has
been liquidated and has resulted in a loss of approximately RMB4,469,000.
Driven by the gradual improvement in the domestic epidemic situation and
the increase in orders from downstream clients, our packaging segment
achieved a total operating revenue of RMB924,606,000 during the period,
representing a year-on-year (YoY) increase of 15.55% as compared to
RMB800,193,000 in the corresponding period last year. However, due to
the substantial increase in raw paper prices, profit was 39.93% lower than
the previous year.

Regarding our paper production segment, due to the completion of the
“coal-to-gas” project in the two paper-making bases in Guangdong and
the speed-up transformation of our paper production equipment, the
production and sales volumes of our products in the segment achieved a
significant YoY growth of 31.08%. Meanwhile, product prices also increased
18.68% YoY. In 2021, the operating revenue of our paper production
segment reached a record high of RMB2,633,403,000, representing a
significant increase of 55.56% compared to RMB1,692,848,000 in the
corresponding period last year.

Products Review

Paper-based packaging products

Our paper-based packaging products are mainly made of craft paper and
corrugated paper and include craft cartons, color printing cartons, and
honeycomb paper-based products. The sales revenue of our paper-based
packaging products was RMB924,606,000 in 2021, increasing by 15.55% as
compared with RMB800,193,000 in 2020 and accounting for approximately
25.99% of the Group's sales. The gross margin of paper-based packaging
products in 2021 was approximately 18.82%.

Craft cartons

Our craft cartons are mostly used in the packaging of home appliances,
FMCG and electronic products. The Group continues to ensure high-quality
product supply and after-sales service to gain the trust of our clients, who
remained supportive of our services and maintained a long-term and stable
cooperative relationship with us.
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Color printing cartons

The Group also provides quality color printing cartons for the packaging of
home appliances, FMCG, electronic products and other products in order
to meet our customers’ requirements for packaging different products.
During the Year, the Group added new color printing machinery for the
active and continuous expansion of its color printing carton business in the
future. In 2021, the revenue for color printing cartons was RMB145,695,000.

Honeycomb paper-based products

Honeycomb paper-based products produced by the Group mainly serve
as a replacement for plastic cushioning materials and foam cushioning
products originally used for protective purposes in cartons. They are
lightweight, smooth-surfaced, non-deformable, environmentally-friendly
and energy-saving materials with outstanding cushioning performance and
are widely used in various industries for cushioning. Honeycomb paper-
based products currently produced by the Group are primarily used along
with our craft cartons and color printing cartons.

Corrugated medium paper

The Group produces 48 g/m? to 140 g/m? high-strength corrugated paper
and liner paper products. While some of these are used as raw materials for
our paper-based packaging products, they are mostly sold to cardboard
manufacturers and carton packaging manufacturers in the Pearl River
Delta region of Guangdong. Customers of the Group's paper-making
business segment spread across Guangdong, Jiangxi, Fujian, Chaoshan,
and other regions; the total number of which is currently over 363. Our craft
paper products launched this year swiftly entered the market, increasing
the variety of our paper products and establishing a solid foundation for
business expansion. Benefiting from the increase in production volume and
price of our corrugated paper and craft paper products, the sales revenue
of paper products during the period was RMB2,633,403,000, with the gross
margin reaching 19.10%.
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Breakdown of the Group’s principal activities REBEFEEKRH
2021 2020
— ZEIEF
Percentage Gross Percentage Gross
of total profit of total profit
Turnover revenue margin Turnover revenue margin
1R 1HHER
EEE Bk ERE EEH Bl EME
RMB’000 % % RMB'000 % %
ARBT R (%) (%) ARETT (%) (%)
Corrugated medium paper FLAR AR
AA grade AAZR 2,455,576 69.02 1,684,546 67.57
C grade C#& 1,013 0.03 8,302 0.33
Craft paper R 176,814 4.97 - -
Subtotal NEF 2,633,403 74.02 19.10 1,692,848 67.90 13.72
Paper-based packaging HEBEER
products
Craft cartons FRENAEAE 629,385 17.69 538,250 21.59
Colour printing cartons FEAME 145,695 4.09 145,275 5.83
Honeycomb paper-based BEAR D
products 149,526 4.20 116,668 4.68
Subtotal N 924,606 25.98 18.82 800,193 32.10 19.82
TOTAL @t 3,558,009 100.00 19.03 2,493,041 100.00 15.68
Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited 10 Annual Report 2021
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Turnover by customer for paper-based packaging products

MRKEMERREF N

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F
Percentage Percentage
of total of total
Turnover revenue Turnover revenue
{4 G458
£ 32 AZL ] EkiN:d
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR¥TT (%) ARETT (%)
Home appliance packaging REREEER 650,435 70.35 602,100 75.24
FMCG Packaging |9%/¢Juu 25 202,599 21.91 189,409 23.67
Other EHAh 71,572 7.74 8,684 1.09
TOTAL E 924,606 100.00 800,193 100.00
Capacity and Capacity Utilisation Rate ERREREAR

The Group provides one-stop service solution to its customers covering
from recycling of waste paper, manufacturing of high-strength corrugated
medium paper, production of corrugated cartons and honeycomb paper-
based products to packaging services, making full use of our vertically
integrated industrial chain.
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Corrugated Medium Paper

The main production base of corrugated medium paper is located in
Zhongshan. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had 8
corrugated medium paper production lines with a total designed annual
capacity of 900,000 tons, making the Group one of the leading corrugated
paper producers in Guangdong region. The Group always attached
emphasis on improvement of production efficiency and optimization of
plant management. During the Year, the Group adopted the performance
indicator approach to manage the corrugated medium paper production
lines, successfully improving production volume and capacity utilisation
rate.

FLAB 4K

B GHENEEEEREMUAPLUMERTIRE  #22%
——F+ZA=Z+—HIFE - AEBEE UEEF S
HEAR AR ETFERLE00,000lF » A E R IE B LR
REGHEERZ — - EE—EHERREALEESEREL
BEERENTIE  KNFA - SEKRIHERB TEBUEIEE X
EEFBCREER IR TESUNEEFERE -

2021 2020
—E—F —EZTF
Planned Actual Effective Planned Actual Effective
operation  operation rate  operation  operation rate
(hours) (hours) (%) (hours) (hours) (%)
FTEEST ERET BRE  FHEEETT BERERT BRE
(/NEF) (/NEF) (%) (/NBF) (/]NBEF) (%)
Zhongshan Yong Fa HloKE
No. 1 paper machine 1 SRIE AR 8,760 7,971 90.99 8,784 7,130 81.17
No. 2 paper machine 2 SRIEAE 8,760 6,444 73.56 8,784 7,471 85.05
No. 3 paper machine 3 SRIEATIE 8,760 8,011 91.45 8,784 6,511 7412
No. 5 paper machine 5 SRIEATIE 8,760 7,915 90.35 8,784 6,784 77.23
Hung Hing Pyt
No. 1 paper machine 1 SREE AR 8,521 8,117 95.26 7,360 6,863 93.25
No. 2 paper machine 2 SRE AR 8,357 7,779 93.08 7,058 6,534 92.58
No. 3 paper machine 3 SREAR I 8,511 8,068 94.79 7,326 6,862 93.67
Zhengyi &
No. 1 paper machine 1 SRiE AR 8,760 6,993 79.83 7,344 6,372 86.76
Paper-Based Packaging Products MHEEER
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 11 HEZZE-—F+-A=+—HILFE  AEEKL ﬁ'f’_

production lines (including 7 corrugated cartons production lines (2
production line is under optimization) and 4 honeycomb paper-based
products production lines) which are mainly located in four cities including
Zhongshan, Zhuhai, Wuhan and Shijiazhuang. The Group's planned
annual capacity for corrugated cartons reached 211,132,000 square
meters; whereas that yearly planned capacity for honeycomb paper-
based products was 15,649,000 square meters. The Group made persistent
efforts to improve production deployment, and carried out upgrading and
transformation on certain production facilities during the Year, effectively
improving the production volume and capacity utilisation rate, which in turn
enhanced the overall operational efficiency of the Group.

BEEL(BECERBRBEES(HPMIKEER
BIR)REGRESHREMEERS) iﬁﬁiﬁziﬁ“ﬁ?
R 38 R - ARERMERT - AEEFASE
AT BIEREE211,132,000F 7K ¢ BE AR B FE
BIERIE15,649,000F 5K - EEREMNEEMRRD @ F5
BEEERAN « EXEES  UWREFPRE LA EMmEL
WRIZRIE - ERE L LB es L RIEES -
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2021 2020
= “E0FE
Yearly Capacity Yearly Capacity
Numbers of Design Planned Actual  utilization Design Planned Actual utlization
equipment Capacity Capacity Capacity rate Capacity Capacity Capacity rate
BT RitER  FoEEK BREX  ERERZ RitEw  FEER EREN  EdRRE
‘000sq.m.  ‘000sqm. ‘000 sq.m. (%) 000 sq.m. 000 sq.m. 000 sq.m (%)
TRk SRV TR (%) TEK ERWV FEhx (%)
1. Paper plate process - BRI
Zhongshan il
No. 1 cormugated cartons production e 15 A KAEES 1 38,880 14,601 12,524 8578 38,880 14,602 13118 8984
No.3 cormugated cartons production line? 3% A EL" 1 38,880 11325 6315 577 NATER  NANER  NATER  NANER
New No. 2 corrugated cartons production H23 IR AFLER
ling 1 184,140 78174 71,235 91.12 184,140 69,751 56,640 812
Zhuhai i
No. 5 corrugated cartons production line! 53 R &R £ 1 NATER NATER NATER NATER 72,900 1797 7,104 0o
No. 11 corrugated cartons production line 115 B £ 1 150,660 98,842 93,293 94.39 150,640 98,842 83010 8398
No. 15 corrugated cartons production line* 15%: LR 446 & E 5 1 NATER NATER NATER NATER NATER  NAMER  NATER  NATER
Shijiazhuang R
No. 9 corrugated cartons production line® O RERIE AR 1 90,396 8,190 6,004 73.32 90,39% 14,040 7,634 5437
2, Printing process = HRIF
Watermark printers IKEDED I
Zhongshan il 1 NATER 60,878 54,487 89.5  N/AZER 60,878 47743 7842
Thuhai i 0 NAFER 101,964 82,283 807 NATER 101,984 19,375 7785
Shijiazhuang REH 2 NATER 5824 5,696 9781 NATEH 9,984 8,017 803
Colormark printers HEEIRIR
Zhongshan Il 3 NATER 16,858 15,037 892  NATER 16,109 15,668 97.26
3, Production of honeycomb packaging = - £ERERLER
products
Zhongshan il
No. 7 honeycormb paper-based product 7B B ML ER
production line 1 4312 4312 1391 32.26 4312 3953 3407 86.18
No. 8 honeycomb paper-based product 8B B ER
production line 1 3,525 3,525 2,549 72.32 3525 3231 3103 9.03
Shijiazhuang hzd
No. 10 honeycomb paper-based product 105 €5 RE G EES:
production line® 1 6,696 1116 405 36.29 6,6% 5,580 2026 3631
Wuhan RE
No. 14 honeycomb paper-based product 14 EEREREES
production line 1 6,696 6,696 4817 71.93 6,696 5022 3697 7362
TOTAL cartonspackagingproducts %5t A EEE7
cormugated cartons production NESREER
lines 5 502,956 211,132 189,371 89.69 582,336 214531 167,506 78.08
water mark printers KENENfI B NATER 168,666 142,466 8447  NATER 17282 135,135 78.19
color mark printers PR 3 NATER 16,858 15,037 8.2 NATER 16,109 15,668 97.26
honeycomb paper-based product gEyEo
honeycomb paper-based product BESHD
production ines £ER 4 21,29 15,649 9,162 58,55 25,581 18,874 12,698 61.28
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No. 3 production line merged with No. 1 production line after optimization.

>

No. 5 production lines merged with No. 11 production line after optimization.
* No. 15 production lines is under optimization.
& Shijiazhuang subsidiary stopped production in 2021, and its No. 9 and 10

honeycomb paper product production line were moved to Zhongshan factory.

Financial Review

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue of the Group was
approximately RMB3,558,009,000 (2020: RMB2,493,041,000), representing
a significant increase of approximately RMB1,064,968,000 or 42.72%,
mainly due to the increase in sales and prices of the Group's paper-based
packaging products. The sales volume of products in the paper-making
sector increased by 31.08% compared with last year, and the sales unit
price increased by approximately 18.68%, while the sales volume and sales
unit price of the packaging sector increased by approximately 10.34% and
4.72% respectively. The Group's gross profit margin in 2021 was 19.03%
(2020: approximately 15.68%), an increase of 3.35 percentage points as
compared with the same period of last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the profit and total comprehensive
income for the Year attributable to owners of the Company was
RMB160,841,000 (2020: RMB54,772,000), representing a significant increase
of RMB106,069,000, the main reason is that the volume and price of the
Group's paper-making segment have increased, and the revenue has
increased significantly while the control of various costs has been achieved,
and the Group's gross profit has increased substantially.

Group's PRofit

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's profit before tax was
approximately RMB237,316,000 (2020: RMB64,931,000), representing a
significant increase of RMB172,385,000 as compared with the same period
last year.

The income tax expense was approximately RMB29,038,000 (2020:
RMB2,371,000), representing an increase of RMB26,667,000 as compared
with the same period last year.

# IMAEERELH AT AEELR -

o SSRAEERBEHEARAER -

* 1558 EEAR I TIE(L TR ©

& AREMBATR T - —FEE/FE
BEMBGEEGREFR L IR -

ﬁﬁ@@
a —F+—A=F+—RALEE  BERAEER
E&EDDE CEBEA - AEBENRARFEREINARE
35wmwmmdf7f7¢ AR2,493,041,0007T)
K8 FH AR H51,064,968,0007C8442.72% - H i 4%
RBEMHEHEREFILERI1.08% - HELEEBIERY
18.68% * MBERBNIEEHERHEEBHIERS R
#910.34% 4.72% o —F Z— —FLETFIE19.03%(=Z
ZEF 0 #15.68%) C BREFREA A3 IEE DB

HOSRAER - 105

HE-ZE-_—F+-A=1+—HILFE  KXR8HEEBA
JEMASFERHO AR 160,841,000 ( —E-FTF : ARKE
54,772,0007T) * & EF R HXIEE & AR 106,069,000
T TERESEEEARRE C EEA - KAKBER
MRRERTHSERANER  SEEMNBFSUKNEIE
I+ o

SEHER

BE_Z-—F+-_A=1T—RHLFE FEEMSEH
ATFIE 4 B AR 237,316,000 (Z 2B F : ARM
64,931,0007T)  BXA G [FIHIA 083 A0 A R #172,385,000
o

FrE M ER X A ARE29,038000L(ZEFF : AR
#2,371,0007T) » BEF RH 7 AR¥26,667,0007T
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Prospects

In 2022, despite the complex and volatile external environment, the
recurring COVID-19 outbreaks in China, and the anticipated slowdown of
China’s economy, China will remain a major economy leading the growth
of the global economy. The determination of the Chinese government to
maintain a steady and speedy economic development remains unchanged.
China remains a global leader in pandemic control as well as an important
base for global production and supply. The government has been
accelerating the construction of a new development scheme and increasing
domestic demand, resulting in a gradually recovering consumer market to
form a “virtuous circle”.

In 2022, the Group will continue to integrate our strengths and resources to
develop its core business of packaging and paper production.

In terms of our packaging business, with the increasing demand for
packaging and printing products from our downstream high-end clients,
we have been upgrading our carton products into medium to high-
end products. In response to changing demand, the Group has also
increased its investment in manufacturing equipment of exquisite color
box packaging as well as new products and business segments. We are
also exploring new directions for the development of the paper packaging
industry, introducing an automated production system and smart upgrades
to our factories in order to significantly improve the profitability of paper
packaging products and further expand market share.

Regarding our paper production business, the rising cost of waste paper
after the waste ban of imported waste paper and the recent rise in ail,
natural gas, coal, and other energy prices have led to an sharp increase in
the cost of paper products. In response to this market change, the Group
will also increase its research and development of new products and
implement energy-saving measures proactively to increase production
capacity and efficiency and stabilize our business performance.

The Group also pays close attention to investment projects with notable
prospects. The Group will achieve a steady development on the basis
of maintaining a reasonable capital structure and strive to create higher
returns for shareholders.

RE

T RENPBEERESE  BREERE H
NIEERRE - BRENERREERRNEBEE
8 BTG EENEES R R NIES R EMR

ODAE - BARBIEREE 2IRBEHA - PRKER
EHRAEHENEEE - AR - BFINREEN RS
B BEBEBAAFTEE HEMSHEELOR - TEK
[ R R &R o

T F . EENEERAE
B RERETS o

BER  RNERZOHNE

BEEBHE @ BETHSHEFPH SRR ZERe T
R’A - SMERTERG  SELCER \\Eﬁﬁtﬁ?t“
b KETFNAREY2BREERE - UEHEM -
EBTENRA  RREBETEINERTR wwaa
RAGHBEERNANES  ARSEACEER
B AREERC IR - A —SEATISHHE o

EREBTH  BEEABRRIEES RERRANE
THOEEAM - RAR - BERRKAN LT - EERE
MAKIE LT - BEE I TISEE - KBTS IR HE
mbftEE - RAMETTEIREIE LG G - TAIREY - AHMEARE
BE o RTTAREK  IBEEAE -
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Partial Financial Statements Analysis

The Group's cost of sales increased from RMB2,102,176,000 in 2020 to
RMB2,881,037,000 in 2021, representing an increase of 37.05%.

Corrugated medium paper

The cost of sales of corrugated medium paper were RMB2,130,398,000 in
2021 (2020: RMB1,460,558,000), representing an increase of 45.86%, it was
mainly due to the increase in the sales of the two paper-making bases.

Paper-based packaging products
The cost of sales of paper-based packaging products were RMB750,63%,000
in 2021 (2020: RMB641,618,000), representing an increase of 16.99%.

For the Year, the gross profit recorded RMB676,972,000, representing an
increase of 73.20% as compared with RMB390,865,000 in 2020. The average
gross profit margin increased from 15.68% in 2020 to 19.03% for the Year.

Corrugated medium paper

The gross profit from corrugated medium paper was RMB503,005,000 in
2021 (2020: RMB232,290,000), representing an increase of 116.54%. The
overall gross profit margin for 2021 was 19.10% (2020: 13.72%), increased
by 5.38 percentage points.

Paper-based packaging products

The gross profit from paper-based packaging products was
RMB173,967,000 (2020: RMB158,575,000) in 2021, representing an increase
of 9.70%. The overall gross profit margin for 2021 was 18.82% (2020:
19.82%), decreased by 1.00 percentage points.

Other income, other gains and losses mainly included income from
interest of RMB4,573,000 (2020: RMB5,153,000), government subsidies of
RMB41,603,000 (2020: RMB18,390,000) and net amount of exchange losses
of RMB2,670,000 (2020: net amount of exchange gains RMB1,294,000).

The distribution and selling expenses of the Group increased by
approximately 35.67% from RMB72,651,000 for 2020 to RMB98,569,000
for 2021. During the Year, the distribution and selling expenses mainly
included staff wages, transportation costs and business promotion
expenses. The increase in distribution and selling expenses was attributable
to the substantial increase in the Group's sales during the year.

EBAD B AE IR R A

AEENHEEXNEAR S _ZFE ARK2,102,176,000

TENME T - —FE AR 2881,037,0007T © #Eig
37.05% o

BB

REGH - - —FEHER A B ARE?2,130,398,0007T
(ZZT—FTF : AR¥1,460,558,0007T) * 1 /145.86% -
T2 M EEREID I E RIBIEINATER o

HHEEER

HBEBAREER T - FEHEKRELAABARKE

750,639,000t (= Z =FF : AR#¥641,618,0007T) * 1
HN16.99% ©

NEE 2 ENAARES76972,0007T  R_E_ZTFE
[B #E A9 A R #5 390,865,000 T 1 /073.20% ° FHEF| R i
TR TEEMNI5.68% F FFEREEH19.03% °

FLAR T4
Jﬂ%fa%&_7_firz%ﬂﬁ}&ﬁ%soaoos0007c<
T_FF : ARME232,290,0007T) © #E1116.54% o —F
T EEEEENRA1910%( B -FE 1 1372%)
HHN5.38E DB °

KEBRER
BUBEEMN_T_—FEEMNRARMK173,967,0007T
(ZZ-FT4 : AR%158,5750007T) * #H19.7% - —F
T EEEEENRA1882% (B -FE 1 19.82%)
AT 00E DB ©

HMWRA B EREBEIEREMNEKRAARE
4,573,000t (ZE=ZFF : AR¥5,153,0007T) * BT
Bh AR 41,603,000t (ZE=ZF : AR 18,390,000
T0) R IE R S BF R ARKE2,670,0007t( —E T4 : [B
HUkesFEE A RE1,294,0007T)

AEESHEERBEEERBA_S_EFENARK
72,651,000 EAZE=F _*EF‘ EW\E%% 569, ooo
TG » FHIB#535.67% - RAFENR - fé&%m,\
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Administrative expenses of the Group increased by approximately
20.16% from RMB141,327,000 for 2020 to RMB169,821,000 for 2021. The
administrative and other expenses mainly included salaries of management,
staff welfare, rent and depreciation.

Finance costs of the Group increased by approximately 26.64% from
RMB49,615,000 for 2020 to RMB62,831,000 for 2021, mainly due to the
increase in the Group's new fixed assets and bank borrowings during the
year.

Research and development expenses of the Group increased from
RMB79,446,000 (about 3.19% of sales revenue) for 2020 to RMB131,116,000
(about 3.69% of sales revenue) for 2021. The Group invests 3%-4% of
its sales revenue in research and development expenses, mainly for the
development of new products and the research and development of new
technology and new process to enhance production efficiency and product

quality.

During the Year, the Group's profit and total comprehensive income was
RMB208,278,000. The profit and total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to owners of the Company was RMB160,841,000, representing
an increase of 193.66% as compared with RMB54,772,000 to the profit and
total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company for
Year 2020.

Dividend Policy

The declaration, form, frequency and amount of any dividend payout of the
Company must be in accordance with relevant laws, rules and regulations
and subject to the Bye-laws of the Company. Subject to compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and the Bye-laws, in deciding whether
to propose any dividend payout, the Board will take into account, among
other things, the financial results, the earmings and distributable reserves,
the operations and liquidity requirements, the debt ratio and possible
impact of credit facilities, and the current and future development plans of
the Company.

Dividends

The Board has recommended, subject to the approval of the Shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting (the “AGM") on Thursday, 23 June 2022, the
payment of a final dividend of RMB9.00 cents (equivalent to HKD10.9197
cents) per Share for the Year (2020: a final dividend of RMB3.00 cents
per Share) to those Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Wednesday, 29 June 2022. The proposed
final dividend will be paid in Hong Kong dollars. The RMB to Hong Kong
dollar exchange rate for the final dividend is calculated using the opening
indicative counter buying telegraphic transfer rate for off-shore RMB of The
Hong Kong Association of Banks announced on 25 March 2022. The final
dividend is expected to be paid on or around Tuesday, 12 July 2022.

AEBTHEIHA T -_ZTFEMN AR 141,327,0007T
FAZEZE - —FEMNARE169,821,0007T & EIRLH A
20.16%  (THHEXFEREBAETE - BHER - A
S RITESER -

AEBRENEABA S _ZTFE M AR49,6150007T
FRAEZZ - —FEMHARK62831,0007T @ 184
2664%  EEBRAEBFATNEETEENZRITRE
FRIENFTER ©
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure
In 2021, the Group's main sources of funding were cash generated from
operating activities and bank loans.

/]lb@]ﬁ% jE&ﬁ/ﬁ&ﬁz'gmﬂ*ﬁ
RIE_—FEAKENESRRFER/QEREAEE
WIRE RBITER

2021 2020

—E-—F —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Net assets BEFH 1,381,952 1,189,574
Bank balances and cash IRITEBRRIRS 229,581 185,367
Total borrowings Rk 1,191,454 1,111,343
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company KA EEE AELRER 1,111,522 965,681
Current ratios mEh L& 1.19 1.06
Net gearing ratio* FEEAML R 78.23% 84.87%

* The net gearing ratio is calculated as net borrowings divided by equity attributable

to the owners of the Company, in which the net borrowings are calculated as total

bank and other borrowings less pledge deposits and bank balances and cash.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a net cash inflow of RMB44,214,000.

The IFRS Interpretation Committee (IFRIC) meeting in December 2020
has made an agenda decision on the impact of the application of financial
reporting standard in cash flows. It clarified how to present the liabilities
for the payment of goods or services received and the settlement-related
cash flow generated by the financing arrangement of the supplier under
the consolidated statement of financial position and the consolidated
statement of cash flows. The direct settlement of trade-related payables
by the relevant financier constitutes a non-cash transaction. Subsequent
settlement between the entity and the financier shall be regarded as
repayment of borrowings and reported under the financing activities item
in the consolidated statement of cash flows. The agenda decision also
includes content that in the context of supplier financing arrangements,
the accounting policies related to the presentation of the consolidated
statement of cash flows have been reassessed. When the bills discount
arrangement does not meet the conditions for de-recognition of
receivables, it will be presented in cash inflow from financing activities in
the consolidated statement of cash flows.

* FEERBILRTDVRETRERARRBTEE ARG ER
B APEFUFEIRRTT REME AR E D EIRRTER
REFITRB IS -

R-ZE-—F+-A=1+—8 AEBRLFE
#:44,214,0007T °

/}ILA}\E

BRI BREEAREZEERN S 2F T _ANER
%T?ﬂ#fﬁﬁméﬁﬁ%zﬁ&%ﬁﬂwﬁﬁﬁ R EBIEHBIDRE
BERRB T MAESHRBRRARMNEHRERERTT
B MREBINEDHRENEEUARHEERELHESE
MEERRRSRE - RS T EREEREZARN
ENFORBAFRER S - BREBERERENNEERE
REEER  YHEAHRERERNOBETHE TR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the net cash used in operating
activities would have been decreased by approximately RMB376,286,000
(2020: RMB279,779,000) and the net cash from financing activities would
have been decreased by RMB376,286,000 (2020: RMB279,779,000), if the
Group has not applied the accounting policies.

The following table is prepared by the Management showing what the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2021

WASEWEEAZESHER WIBE-S=_—F+=
A=+—BLFENEEEBMARSSRIHARE
376,286,000t (ZE =T F : AR¥279,779,0007T) © &
BEEBARES FRERD ARKE376,286,000T (==
—E4F - ARB279,779,0007T) ©

ERECDRETER BRI EETEEAZSESTR
R BEZE-—FRZE_TF+_A=+—HLFE

and 2020 would have been if the Group has not ap
policies.

plied the accounting  4rEIRERERMBEN ©

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R S
Profit before tax R A& A 237,316 64,931
Adjustments for: AT SIEEHFAE
Finance costs LA AR 62,831 49,615
Interest income FEUTA (4,573) (5,153)
Impairment losses recognised on trade and other EWRE 5 &AM EUGIERERE
receivables 1,288 5,055
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - BERREBINE 96,105 91,508*
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 20,331 21,034
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEEH 602 =
Impairment loss recognised on property, plantand ~ EER¥IE - WE K& ERERIE
equipment 22,229 1,215
Covid-19-related rent concessions Covid-191EFH £ 18= - (1,411)
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment &Y « BiE k& EEE TS 1,377 2,280
Exchange gain on borrowings B FE £ AVIE X IS (930) (3,486)
Government grants amortised from LA A U5 A B8 8 60 TR
deferred income (4,488) (4,100)
Operating cash flows before movements in working &iEEARNFFFIL LIRS RE
capital 432,088 221,488
Increase in inventories FEEM (54,869) (14,952)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 & E A U ER IR AN (371,482) (178,011)*
Increase in borrowings relating to discounted bills ~ BEIE 8L IR FEUEIR 2 (535 N
receivables 92,585 99,100
Decrease (increase) in contract assets BHEERDGEM) 3,078 (1,671)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables B 5 REMEMAFIEEMCRD) 101,833 (49,285)*
Increase in contract liabilities EHaEEm 4,442 1,368
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to directors FERZERFIECHL )G M (64) 153
Cash generated from operations CEEESIRE 207,611 78,190
Income tax paid EATPTIEH (26,309) (585)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEBRBRESFE 181,302 77,605
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2021 2020
—B--fF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBT T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXEHK
Interest received BUFE 5,556 5,057
Proceeds on disposals of property, plant and HEWE - RE RERESHIE
equipment 26,289 2,812
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWME - BFEREE (206,226) (132,763)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and  BEEWE¥ « BEREEHEE
equipment (29,499) (30,137)
Purchases of intangible assets BEETEE (562) (1,498)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary B A RIIR &L F5E - (18,211)
Consideration paid for acquisition of a subsidiary U BEF B A RIFTHR(E (12,130) =
Placement of pledged bank deposits FABEBIRITFR (200,339) (311,775)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits B B AR R TR 214,372 345,278
Receipt of government grant relating to non-current  UKEE BA3E 7 B) & B 2 BRI #i AL
assets 5,105 2,200
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXBMAREER (197,434) (139,037)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES LSS
Interest paid BEASFLE (62,033) (48,413)
Dividend paid BfRE (15,000) (15,000)
Dividend paid to a non-controlling interest BT IR AR AR R AR 2 (900) =
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BBIRIT REAER (852,547) (602,142)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEEEAE (15,391) (14,026)*
Capital contribution from a non-controlling interest [ B2 &) FE#E Hxﬂx%?x]\§$ - 3,200
Repayment of amount due to a non-controlling 1B R AR AR R R
interest - (21,468)
New bank and other borrowings raised FEBIRIT R EMER 1,006,217 713,559
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEXBREREEHE 60,346 15,710
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND RERASEEYWEMORD) FE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 44,214 (45,722)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B—HNWRERRASEEY
AT 1 JANUARY 185,367 231,089
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RT-A=+—HWEERELESEY
AT 31 DECEMBER BRITHBMRES 229,581 185,367

*

presentation.

Note: Comparative figures had been reclassified to conform with the current year

*

M HBRBFEEMDEUTALAFENZR -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

R BT

As at 31 December 2021, the inventories of the Group increased by
31.54% to RMB223,283,000 as compared to the inventories balance of
RMB169,750,000 as at 31 December 2020. During the Year, the inventory
turnover day was approximately 25 days (2020: 26 days), remaining at a
normal level.

As at 31 December 2021, the trade receivables not backed by bills
amounted to RMB585,425,000 (as at 31 December 2020: RMB506,620,000).
The Group generally granted credit period of 30 to 120 days to our paper-
based packaging products customers and credit period of 30 to 75 days to
our wrapping paper customers. The trade receivables turnover days was
approximately 56 days (2020: 75 days).

As at 31 December 2021, the trade receivables backed by bills receivables
amounted to RMB465,399,000 (31 December 2020: RMB372,379,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the trade payables amounted to RMB114,341,000
(as at 31 December 2020: RMB139,194,000). The Group managed to obtain
a credit period of 30 to 120 days from the majority of its suppliers. The
trade payables turnover days was shortened to 16 days (2020: 25 days).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank and other borrowings
balance amounted to RMB1,191,454,000 (as at 31 December 2020:
RMB1,111,343,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the gross gearing ratio was approximately 39.27%
(as at 31 December 2020: 41.43%), which was calculated on the basis of the
total amount of bank and other borrowings as a percentage of the total
assets. The net gearing ratio was 78.23%, which was calculated on the basis
of the amount of bank and other borrowings less pledged bank deposits
and cash and bank balances as a percentage of the shareholders’ equity (as
at 31 December 2020: 84.87%).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group pledged certain assets with carrying
value of RMB940,077,000 as collateral for the Group's borrowings (as at 31
December 2020: RMB836,290,000).

R —F+-_A=+—H AEENEFEELH
31.54% % AFR#223,283,0007C * ¥tk —_ BB _FF+=
A=+—HEE%EA A AR 169,750,0007T - IRAF

B FEABRBHNBR(ZT_TF : 26K) BEF
IKAE o
W —F+ZA=1—0 EEBEARENEFRK

E%AE%%SQS%Wﬂ\_7_2¢+*H*+—
E-AE%maﬁqmmw AEBERBEREMEFPE
%ﬂ?wiiu@ﬁﬁﬁ%% Iﬁ@%%%ﬁ&%w%
F75RNEAY - EZREGIBENAEXHX56K(Z
ZEF 1 75K) e

RZBZ—F+-A=+—0 UBBABENEIRE
UK IE A A R# 465,399,000 ( 2T FE+ - A=+—
B : AR#372,379,0007T) °

RIBE-—F+-_A=+—8 BHENZEAAR
MHmmmmﬂ_E_?¢+ H +—B: AR¥
139,194,0007¢ ) ° K DEERRAEEE TN FI0K

Z120KMERE - B ENFUBNEAEREHERLE 16K
(ZZE=_ZTF: %i)
RZZE-_—F+_fF=+—8 AEERTERLEM

ERESARK1,191,45400T (R E -5+ A
=+—H : AR®1,111,343,0007T) °

RZE-Z—F+=-A=+—8 ' 4
3927%(MR_ZE_FTF+-_A=+—H :41.43%) " ItJy
RIRTERREMERSEOBREEATOLLTE - 34
ERBHERAISB%(N_E-_ZF+=-A=+—8:

84.87%) & UL THRIRITIER &EMFﬂﬁﬁﬁEﬁ#ﬁ

BRERE RIBITESE  ERRETEDLETE

REEABLLEOR

W2 —F+ZRA=+—H  AEEERETREEA
R #940,077,0007t (R ZZ2_FF+_A=+—H : AR
#836,290,0007T) MEE @ ERASBEEEMIEMS -

Annual Report 2021 21
o

=

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
EXERFEERARAT



Management Discussion and Analysis
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group's capital commitments (including the
engaged and authorized capital commitments) were RMB212,752,000 (as
at 31 December 2020: RMB22,484,000). All the capital commitments were
related to purchase of properties, plants and equipment, and commitment
to acquire Zhongshan City Zheng Ye Leasing Company Limited (“Zheng
Ye Leasing”) for RMB186,000,000.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities
or litigation or arbitration of material importance.

Majority of the Group's revenue and expenses are denominated in
RMB. The Group conducts certain transactions denominated in foreign
currencies, mainly USD and HKD, which have low exposure to exchange
rate fluctuations. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. The Board, however, will monitor foreign exchange rate
closely and consider entering into foreign currency hedging arrangement
should the need arise.

Human Resource Management

The Group had 2,812 employees as at 31 December 2021 (as at 31
December 2020: 2,833 employees), in which approximately 481 were
engineers and technical staff or employees with higher education
backgrounds. The staff costs amounted to RMB323,577,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (for the year ended 31 December 2020:
RMB229,764,000). The table below shows the number of employees of the

RIZBZ—F+A=+—0 ' AEBEFEAE(BEE
AR REEREAEYE) B ARE212,752,000T (R ZF
—ZEF+IF=A=+—08: AR¥22484,0007T) ' FTH
BEARFEERBWEDE  BREREE - FEEREFR LTIE
¥MEFMRAR([EEBEE]) ARE186,000,0007T °

"
BEp NG/

—F+ZA=1t—H AEELESAHEERE
APEL o

REBARBHWRAREENTHAARBHE - NEEHE
TETLONEENR S - FERERTRBT - HAXE
¥5)§§bﬂﬁﬁ$’*1ﬁ AR B IR MANE SRR o AT
EXZSRHMEBINERXRENERERLHEITING
HEZRE -

ADERERE

R-B-_—F+-_A=+—8 AEEEMH2812EET
(R=ZZE_ZTF+_A=1+—H8 :2833KET) 481
%i%ﬁiﬁﬂi&&m/\;jzélﬁ EHEESWES - #HZE
—F+=ZA= + Etiﬁﬂjﬁ!;l}ﬂm‘i/\w@
—EF+-A=+—HLFE:
TRV =_ZE=Z—F+=A

=

323,577,0007C (B & —
}\E%229,764,0007z)

Group by function as at 31 December 2021: =T AREEIEBAEESNESHE
Percentage
of total
Number of number of
employees employees
HEESEH
Function RgE EE#E WAL
Management and Administration BB RITIR 358 12.73%
Sales and Marketing SHE K& iH 109 3.88%

Research and Development in Technology e R T2

and Engineering 321 11.42%
Production and Quality Control B KRB S 2,024 71.98%
Total Bt 2,812 100.00%
Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited 2% Annual Report 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group offers remuneration packages determined by reference to the
employees’ experience, qualification and overall market situation, while
the bonus is related to the financial performance of the Group and the
individual performance. The Group also undertakes to provide proper
trainings and sustainable professional development opportunities for the
employees if needed.

The Company has also adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) and a share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme"”) with a
primary purpose of motivating our employees and other eligible persons
entitled under the Share Option Scheme or the Share Award Scheme to
further contribute to the Group and to reward them for their contribution
to the Group.

Major Risks and Uncertainties

In order to achieve stable business operations, the management of the
Company pays close attention to the risk factors that the company may
face. Based on the key risk indicators, after evaluation and analysis, the risks
faced by the Company mainly include:

Due to macroeconomic policy adjustments, certain impacts on the
upstream and downstream customers of the Group will indirectly
affect the sales and profits of packaging and papermaking
enterprises (including the Group). Due to the tightening of the
environmental protection policy, the cost of the paper packaging
industry will increase and there will be certain operational risks.

Since the costs of raw material account for a relatively high
proportion of production costs, fluctuations in raw material prices
have a certain impact on profits.

The Group's packaging business has a low concentration. The
enterprises with certain scale and strength in the industry are mainly
expanding their production capacity and increasing their market
share. The market competition is fierce. The papermaking business
of the Group faces leading enterprises in the industry to compete in
the same region and the competition is fierce.

Due to the inability to meet the product quality standards in the
industry, the mass quality problems caused by customers’ demand
cannot be met, which resulting in losses from batch waste or

REBENFHGFED2EEMNE TNEBRIEL REED
WU TE © TEAT AN SR B e 75 3645 I BRI 2R 3R e - A%
ETMRE S RIEE RENFBRARSFRIEE HEIR%
FEEXERKE -

AR B R RB A AT 81 ([ R A S 81 ) At 22080
AE(TRDRBEE)) - TEE 2B BB 8 M
D ERETEIAB R TREMEERAL  RAREAREKE
MER - MR FBENERLE TIER -

EXREBRRFEEM
RTEREBRELE - ARAT]
ﬁ%@ﬁ%ﬁ’]ﬂﬁl% Wéﬁﬁfkﬂ el - KB

EBESEWIAAEY
BAEEIb)

MR ZERRAE  HEEL  THEFPEL—E

TE SREFERRNERCX(BEAEE)N

HERANE - ARBERRRERBE - §EKER
RITERRAEN - B—ERLLER -

HRERKAEEERANRELERS
ERHRBEMNBELE—ENTE -

ESI AR

AEBBEREBETFERE - TERAEE—ERR
MENNERGUE—FEAERE  BINTS6EE

RETEEEEE  MEHFHZ - AEBERE
BEETEANEECXERBEANRSE  SmFY
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to present the
corporate governance report in the annual report of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”).

The Company has consistently adopted the Corporate Governance
Code (the "Code"”) promulgated by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) as guidelines to reinforce our corporate
governance principles. This report describes how the Company has applied
the principles during the year.

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the Code
as stated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) in force throughout the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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Board of Directors

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company has a balance of
skill and experience and a balanced composition of Executive and Non-
executive Directors, the overall management of the Company’s business
was vested in the Board. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business to the executive management
team, and focuses its attention on matters affecting the Company's overall
strategic policies, finances and shareholders. As at 31 December 2021, the
Board comprised seven members, consisting of three Executive Directors
namely, Mr. Hu Zheng (Chairman), Mr. Hu Hancheng (Co-Chairman) and
Mr. Hu Hanchao, one Non-Executive Director namely, Mr. Chen Riyue and
three Independent Non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Chung Kwok Mo
John, Mr. Liew Fui Kiang and Mr. Shin Yick Fabian. The Directors are well-
versed in respective areas such as knowledge and technical know-how
of paper-making and packaging industries, accounting and finance and
business management. The Board as a whole has achieved an appropriate
balance of skills and experience. The profiles of all directors and the
relationship among members of the Board (including financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships, if any) are set out on
pages 38 to 44.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Four Board meetings were held during the financial year. All the Directors
actively participated in each meeting in person, via telephone or
videoconferencing. They received reports on the activities of the operating
divisions and which required the Board approval. Board approval also be
obtained through voting at the Board meetings.

The dates of the 2021 regular Board meetings, of which 14 days notice was
given, were determined according to the requirement of the Bye-laws and
any amendments to this schedule were notified to all the Directors at least
14 days before the meeting. Suitable arrangements were in place to allow
the Directors to include items in the agenda for regular Board meetings.

If a Director had a conflict of interest in a transaction or proposal to be
considered by the Board and which the Board has considered to be
material, the individual Director would declare his interest and was required
to abstain from voting. The matter would then be considered at a Board
meeting attended by independent Directors who had no material interest
in the transaction.

Exg
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Details of the attendance of Directors at these Board meetings and
at the meetings of the five Board committees (the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Risk
Management Committee and the Budget Management Committee) and
the annual general meeting (the “AGM") for the Reporting Period are set
out in the following table:

TREAHEPHEETHFEFTEERRAEAEEREE
(BEZLZBE  FHEZEg REZBg RAREEZSR
ELEHERZES) MERBFAS([RREFAE])

SEETAE

Meetings Attended/Meetings Held

HEES BTEERY
Risk Budget
Board Audit  Remuneration Nomination ~ Management ~ Management
Name of directors Meeting Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee AGM
B HH f% BREE REEE &
Bpg Ezg Z58¢8 £ %88 %588 Z5¢% BEXE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Hu Zheng IR 4 NIATER 111 " 20 1 171
Mr. Hu Hancheng HEREE 4/4 N/ATEFR N/ATEE N/ATEF N/ATEF 17 1/1
Mr. Hu Hanchao R 44 NATER  NATER N/ATER N/ATE R n 1l
Mr. Hu Jianpeng e e N/ATEF N/ATEF N/ATEF N/ATEF N/ATEF N/ATEF N/ATEF
(appointed on 8 February 2022) M=Z-—F
ZRNBZf)
Non-Executive Director FUTES
Mr. Chen Riyue BAA%E 4/4 N/ANER N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER N/ANER 17
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ B ¥HTES
Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John EEREE 4/4 22 7 1”n 22 N/ANER 17
Mr. Liew Fui Kiang i 4/4 22 7 1”n 22 N/ANER 17
Mr. Shin Yick Fabian rAEE 4/4 22 1”n 1 22 N/ANER 1
All Directors had access to the services of the company secretary who RARIMEFHENEESNEANEEEE  2EEEY

regularly updated the Board on governance and regulatory matters. Any
Director, if consider necessary in discharging their responsibility, might take
independent professional advice (through the Chairman) at the Company'’s
expense. The availability of professional advice extended to the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Risk Management Committee and the Budget Management Committee.

Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board committees, together
with any supporting documents, were available to all Directors. Draft and
final versions of the minutes were sent to all Directors for their comment
and record respectively.

ABEARNE - ANEFTUERRBETRELZNENR
TOEREER)SKBVEXER  BRBARAXN °
BERLZES FHZES REZET REREEZEE

LEHERZEENASREXER -

E=gNEFR RS LRERENA XA RHE
THREES - IR EAERREER - MREERHE
YRRCERZ A °
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which
sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in
order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience, industry experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board recognised the benefits of diversity in the Board in enhancing
the Board effectiveness and corporate governance. The Nomination
Committee will give consideration to a number of factors as set out in
the Policy when identifying suitable qualified candidates to become
members of the Board, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, industry
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Board will consider
well balanced and of a diverse mix which is appropriate for the business
operation and development of the Company. The Company will also take
into account its own business model and specific needs from time to time
to determine the optimal composition of the Board. The Company will
review the Policy on a regular basis to ensure its continuous effectiveness.

Board Committees

The Board has established five committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Risk
Management Committee and the Budget Management Committee,
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021. During the year, these
committees adhered to their principles, procedures and arrangements set
out below. The respective committee secretary or designated person took
full minutes of the meetings of these committees and the work of these
committees was reported to the Board regularly.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO")

Under the Code provision A.2.1 in force, the roles of chairman and CEO
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and CEO should be
clearly established and set out in writing.

During the year, Mr. Hu Zheng was the Chairman, Ms. Chen Wei was the
CEO of the Company for purpose of maintaining and a more balanced
basis for judgments and decisions. The Board considered that, under the
leadership of Mr. Hu Zheng, as the Chairman of the Company, takes up
the role of leadership for the Board and ensures that the Board works
effectively and discharges its responsibility properly. He also ensure that
the Board acts in the best interests of the Company and the Group.
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Ms. Chen Wei, as CEO of the Company, was delegated with the authority
and responsibility to operate the Group’s business and day-to-day
operation, and implemented the Group's strategy in achieving the business
objectives with the assistance of the Executive Directors and the senior
management.

Responsibilities of and Delegation by the Board
The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, overseas
the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and performance.

The management, consisting of Executive Directors along with the senior
executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing the strategy
and direction as adopted by the Board from time to time, and conducting
the day-to-day operations of the Group. Executive Directors and the senior
executives meet regularly to review the performance of the businesses of
the Group as a whole, co-ordinate overall resources and make financial
and operational decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as to
their powers of management including circumstances where management
should report back, and will review the delegation arrangements on a
periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the
Group.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of the
Company and its Shareholders at all times.

Non-Executive Directors

Each of Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Director
was appointed with specific terms. Each of them had signed a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of 1 year commencing from 1
January 2021, and is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the bye-laws
of the Company (the "Bye-laws").

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the Company
confirms that all Directors have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

Liability insurance for Directors and senior management of the Company
was arranged by the Company with appropriate coverage for certain legal
liabilities which may arise in the course of performing their duties.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board has adopted the terms of reference on corporate governance
functions on 23 March 2012. The terms of reference of the Board in respect
of corporate governance function are summarized as follows:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

() to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices to
ensure compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e)  to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions set
out in the Code and Corporate Governance Report contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules and its disclosure requirements in
the Corporate Governance Report.

The work performed by the Board on corporate governance functions
during the year ended 31 December 2021 included developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies on corporate governance and making
relevant recommendations.

Continuous Professional Development

Under A.6.1 and A.6.5 of the Code in relation to Directors’ training. All
Directors namely Mr. Hu Zheng, Mr. Hu Hancheng, Mr. Hu Hanchao,
Mr. Chen Riyue, Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John, Mr. Liew Fui Kiang and Mr.
Shin Yick Fabian have completed continuous professional development
training by attending the 19th Tricor Seminar on the theme of “Driving
Sustainability Through Digital Governance” organized by Tricor Group. The
attended Directors have provided a training record to the Company.

EEREREBASEERR
ARRADAEERERERABBEERERS -
TRERS TS B TRER A RIVERR «

HIREE

T REAMEE
EERN T —F=A -+ ERMOEE AR
HRE - EEEHLETORENBERE I HEMT

(@) HIERBHARRAEEEARRENLER

b) BEKEFEERSRERASNOZIRSERE

TR

© REREFEARFRHRRER  NWEBTEAREREE
IRIE

d  HIE - BEREREANEEREZNRTER

ABRFMIE) : Rk

) MAARAATEFLEHRAME+OOEEER
SAREREABEBATRIEXNBERARERE
ERMENNKERNL -

B2 - F+_A=1+—HIFE EFSCBTS
MEEB RN TIERESTE MR AR RNEEEA
BRI T 2% -

HEERBREE
RRTRAIALIRALSIFERESRE - TBEES - BIiA
ER4E - tHEREL  HEHLLE  RBAKXLE  ERK
Kt BIERAEARES AN E L ER S ERE AR
FRABT OB EREURERR INEI9ERESF
EmEFEEERRE) - CHENESEMARTRMH
HEIRCER o

Annual Report 2021 29
== ke

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
IEXERIERB R AR



Corporate Governance Report
oe SXCPIER ot

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee for the purposes
of making recommendations to the Board on the Company'’s remuneration
policy and structure for directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee presently comprises one Executive Director,
namely Mr. Hu Zheng and three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John, Mr. Liew Fui Kiang and Mr. Shin Yick
Fabian. The chairman of the Committee is Mr. Shin Yick Fabian. The
Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year and details
of attendance are shown in the table on page 26 of this annual report. The
work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31
December 2021 included the following matters:

o make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
Executive and Non-executive Directors for the years ended 31
December 2022. The Remuneration Committee has considered
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-
based remuneration;

o review and approve remuneration and performance-based
remuneration scheme of Executive Directors from time to time by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time; and

o ensure that no Director or any of respective associates is involved in
deciding their respective remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it will review
the proposals made by the management on the remuneration of executive
Directors and senior management, and make recommendations to the
Board. The Board will have final authority to approve the recommendations
made by the Remuneration Committee.
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The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the "Option Scheme”)
whereby the Board may at its discretion grant options to such eligible
participants (as defined in the Option Scheme) to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The principal terms of the Option Scheme are set out in
Appendix V to the prospectus of the Company dated 24 May 2011. As at 31
December 2021, all granted share options were cancelled or lapsed.

The Company has also adopted a share award scheme (the “Award
Scheme”) whereby the Board may at its discretion grant shares to such
eligible participants to award the shares of the Company. The principal
terms of the Award Scheme are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 23 April 2019. The purposes of the Option Scheme and
Award Scheme are to enable the Company to grant options or award
shares to selected eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group.

Nomination Committee

According to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall have power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any person as a director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. A director appointed by
the Board is subject to re-election by shareholders at the next following
general meeting of the Company. The nomination of a director should be
taken into consideration of the candidate’s skills and experience which are
appropriate for the needs of the Company’s business.

The Company has established a Nomination Committee for the purpose of
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors.

The Nomination Committee presently comprises four Directors, including
Mr. Hu Zheng, an Executive Director, and three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John, Mr. Liew Fui Kiang
and Mr. Shin Yick Fabian. The Committee is chaired by Mr. Hu Zheng.

The Board delegates the responsibility of appointing and re-electing
Directors to the Nomination Committee and they are responsible for
considering the suitability of a candidate, and approving and terminating
the appointment of a Director. Reviews of the plans for orderly succession
for appointment to the Board and its structure, size and composition are
done on a regular basis by the Nomination Committee. They are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and external consultants
may be engaged, if necessary, to access a wider range of potential
candidate(s).

In evaluating whether an appointee is suitable to act as a director of the
company, the committee will review the professional knowledge, industrial
experience and personal skills of the appointee as well as personal ethics
and integrity of the appointee.

ARREERA—RBBER ([ BRETE))  BUHES
EAREMEBEERSEE(ERAE)RHOBERE
AR R BI - BRBHERT 81 RIEKENAAE A
AT ——FRA-tHOENBEREREMERT - 82
“ECF+A=+T—B AERENERESER
S

AR FRIES B R 2B &I ([ RBET &) - BUES
EAREAEBEERSEEERARARE - REYFHE
WEIREREREAARAMAS T -NFOA—+=AN
N o BRE BB 8| S EEARRAREENS
BERSEERLBEREXERRD - (FAEHNEERR/
KRN K 2R

REZES

BERME - ZESEERITRERERZEEAALKAE
T NERESETERSENES - BEESSLIENES
BRAREIREERAIRREAE LWRRERET - EZ0R
BHREBREANENREREEETARAEBHE

ARFERIREEAD -
it o

HARNEFERESNERMEIR

REZESHMMOAEEAN  BRIMTESHELER
—EEMIFMITES - NERREL - BEFREERES
S - ZREERMMIERERIER -

EXERESNZILEEREEBRTRAZES - #4
ZESRABERREANGEN  ARIERKIEERN
RE - REZESTHMENESTEZENE FEMEEIN
REZRHE - REREK - REZESGRARONERET
HEME (L E)IRFEINSBREEE Z 1B ERE
A °

RiHE—REZEARBDESREARRESE -
SREMZEZEANEEND  TEEREEA
PAR (B AHYSBIBELHAE ©

=
RE

Annual Report 2021 31
—T-HFR

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
IEXERIERB R AR



Corporate Governance Report
R E R

According the Bye-laws, at each AGM of the Company, one-third of the
Directors shall retire from office by rotation and every Director shall be
subject to retirement at least once every three years. Director(s) newly
appointed by the Board shall hold office until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the
meeting.

The Board considers that it is the responsibility of the existing Directors to
give an induction on the information of the Group to the newly appointed
Director and present a manual on the duties and responsibilities as a
director of a listed company to enable the newly appointed Director to
have a proper understanding of the business.

Three Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Hu Zheng, Mr. Hu Hancheng and
Mr. Hu Hanchao had entered into a service contract with the Company
for a period of three years commencing from 1 January 2021, unless
terminated in accordance with the terms of the service contract. The
Non-executive Director and each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors had signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of one year commencing from 1 January 2021 and is renewable upon its
expiration and may be terminated in accordance with the terms of the
letter of appointment. During the financial year ended 31 December 2021,
there was one meeting held by the Nomination Committee. Details of
attendance are shown in the table on page 26.

The work of the Nomination Committee during the year ended 31
December 2021 included the following matters:

° to make recommendation to the Board on renewal of services
contracts of Non-executive Director and Independent non-executive
Directors; and

J to assess the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the fees charged by the Company’s
auditors in respect of audit amounted to approximately RMB1,950,000.
There is no remuneration paid to the Auditor in respect of non-audit
services.
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Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Company'’s financial reporting
process and internal controls.

The Audit Committee presently comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company, namely Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John,
Mr. Liew Fui Kiang and Mr. Shin Yick Fabian and is chaired by Mr. Chung
Kwok Mo John.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year and details of
attendance are shown in the table on page 26. The work of the Audit
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2021 included of the
following matters:

o provide recommendation to the Board on the reappointment
of external auditors, and approve the audit fee and terms of
engagement of the external auditors;

o review and monitor external auditors’ independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standard, and discuss with external auditors before
audit commences, the nature and scope of the audit and reporting

obligations;

o monitor integrity of financial statements, interim report and annual
report, and review significant financial reporting judgments contained
in them;

o review financial controls, internal controls and risk management
systems;

o discuss with management regarding the system of internal controls

and ensure that management has discharged its duty to have an
effective internal control system including adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and budget;

o ensure co-ordination between internal and external auditors, and to
ensure that internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and monitor
the effectiveness of internal audit function;

o review financial and accounting policies and practices; and
o review external auditors’ management letter, any material queries

raised by auditors to management in respect of accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and management'’s response.
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Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for Accounts
The Directors acknowledge the responsibilities for preparing the accounts
of the Company. The external auditors’ statement about their reporting
responsibilities is set out on pages 62 to 63.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Internal Controls

The Board has kept the Company’s system of internal controls under review
to ensure its effectiveness and convened meetings regularly to discuss
financial, operational and risk management control.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee was set up on 18 December 2015 and
currently comprises eleven members, including two executive Directors,
namely Mr. Hu Zheng and Mr. Hu Jianpeng, three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John, Mr. Liew Fui Kiang
and Mr. Shin Yick Fabian, and six senior management, namely, Ms. Chen
Wei, Ms. Hou Lusi, Ms. Cai Yan, Mr. Ye Ningfei, Ms. Zhang Zheng and Mr.
Liang Nianlin. The chairman of the Committee is Mr. Liew Fui Kiang.

The Risk Management Committee is established to, without limitation, assist
the Board to evaluate and determine the nature and extent of the risks the
Board is willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives, ensure
that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems, and assist the Board to oversee
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management system
carried out by the management on an ongoing basis.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Risk Management Committee
held two meetings and discussed and reviewed areas including but not
limited to the key risks faced by the Group, risk management policy and
practice annually as well as the appointment of senior managements in
taxation and information technology as members of the Committee.
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Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the strategic objectives
of the Group and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Group's risk management framework sets out the process of
identification, evaluation and management of the principal risks affecting
the business. The Group has adopted a set of internal control measures
to address various potential operational, financial and legal risk identified
in relation to the operation, including but not limited to procurement
management, inventory management, information disclosure control, IT
management and other various financial control and monitor procedures.

The Board is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems through regular meetings
with the management. In addition, the Audit Committee with professional
advices and opinions from the external internal control consultant of the
Company is responsible for ensuring the sufficiency and effectiveness
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems through
regular inspection and monitoring. The compliance officer is responsible
for reviewing the compliance policies and procedures of the Group
annually. The compliance officer will also be responsible for updating the
compliance policies and procedures of the Group to ensure that they are
up to date in accordance with the applicable regulatory requirements. The
Group's risk management and internal control systems will be reviewed
annually for the past financial year.

The Group has in place an anti-bribery and anti-corruption policy to
safeguard against any corruption within the Group. The policy explains
potential bribery and corruption conduct and the Group's anti-bribery
and anti-corruption measures. The Group makes its internal reporting
channel open and available for its employees to report any bribery and
corruption acts, and its employees can also make anonymous reports to
the compliance officer. The Group's compliance officer is reporting for
investigating the reported incidents and taking appropriate measures in
response to the relevant incidents, if any. To strengthen internal control
of the Group in relation to anti-bribery and anti-corruption, the Group has
also started to provide trainings of anti-bribery and anti-corruption to all its
employees every year.

FRREERAIREZ R
EFGEHTERETEE RN R B EH AR
ZERMERIZE  ARBRARERY RRBEETE
B2 ARERRAIERRS -

AEEZERERERS BB  HEREEFEER L
I2EBME - ARBERA—ENRBERER - &
BEEEWBN REEEEHBERE MK RERRE
% BREMRNRBEE FEEHE  BRREEE -
ITEIR AR B A TR B T Bt SR B AR AR Fr o

EXerisRREEEENen  FHAKERREE
R AEDEAE R Z AR o WOl - BEARRRIHEAAALEE
BRZ2EXZBLER  BRZES8EEBEHRER
BER  BRASE/REBREERATEERRTOMAE
Mo ARBEREESFENIEEZARBERNER - &
REFMAEENAEE 2 A RBRNIER - ARERZFR
RERFEREHIZEREERE - AREEFERT L
— A EE 2z R EIE & A BRI AT

AEED BIERBRMRETHRE - AP EAEEREE
75 o RBURIRAUBE M R E)STTRARANEE 2 < FEiE
RIRERER - AEBMEMBAMERRE  REESE
WEMBELRESTTA  MEETARARIEFELES
B o AEBZARTERKAEERER - WS - L
HEHRASHRNEERR(IE) - REEAEEERER
iR RESZNEREE - REETRGESFR2EEER
heft i N R B -

Annual Report 2021 35
== ke

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
IEXERIERB R AR



Corporate Governance Report
R E R

The risk management framework, coupled with the internal controls,
ensures that the risk associated with different divisions of the Group are
effectively controlled and in line with the Group's appetite. However,
the Group's risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objective, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system for the year ended 31 December 2021 and considered the
internal control system effective and adequate and no significant areas of
concern which might affect shareholders were identified.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

With respect to the handling and dissemination of inside information,
the Group has adopted various procedures and measures on disclosure
of inside information with an aim to ensure that the insiders abide by
the confidentiality requirements and that inside information is to be
disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner in accordance with
the applicable laws and regulations. Such procedures include, among
others, notification of regular blackout period and securities dealing
restrictions to the Directors and employees, dissemination of information
to specified persons on a need to-know basis and use of identify projects.

Budget Management Committee

The Budget Management Committee was set up on 1 September 2018 and
presently comprises four executive Directors of the Company, namely Mr.
Hu Hanchao, Mr. Hu Zheng, Mr. Hu Hancheng and Mr. Hu Jianpeng and is
chaired by Mr. Hu Hanchao.

The responsibilities of the Budget Management Committee is established
to, without limitation, assist the Board to monitor and review the
effectiveness of the Group's annual business plan and financial, to review the
implementation of the Group's budget in existing or potential investment
projects and make recommendations, and also give the recommendations
to the Board on the capital expenditures.

Company Secretary

Mr. Li Kin Wai has been appointed by the Company as the company
secretary since 1 April 2021, his biographical details are set out in the
section headed "Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report. Mr. Li has complied with the requirement under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules during the year. He worked and communicated closely
with Ms. Chen Wei, a chief executive officer of the Company.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Company endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue with its
shareholders, and in particular through annual general meetings or other
general meetings to communicate with the shareholders and encourage
their participation. The Chairman of the Board will make himself available
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Thursday, 23
June 2022 to answer any questions from shareholders.

The Group's official website http://www.zhengye-cn.com contains an
‘Investor Relations’ section which offers timely access to the Company’s
press releases, financial reports and announcements.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective investor
communication policy and to update investors with relevant information of
the Group in a timely manner.

Shareholders’ Rights

Right to Convene Extraordinary General Meeting and
Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings
Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company and Bermuda Companies Act,
in addition to regular Board meetings, the Directors of the Company,
on the requisition of shareholders of the Company holding not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company, can convene a special
general meeting to address specific issues of the Company within 21 days
from the date of deposit of written notice to the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong. The same requirement and procedure
also applies to any proposal to be tabled at shareholders’ meetings for
adoption.

Right to Put Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong. The address is set out in the “CORPORATE
INFORMATION" section of this annual report for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

Constitutional Documents
There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year.
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Directors

Mr. Hu Zheng (#81E), aged 59, he is the Chairman and executive Director
and one of the founders. Furthermore, Mr. Hu Zheng is the chairman of
the nomination committee and members of the remuneration committee,
risk management committee and budget management committee. Mr. Hu
Zheng is responsible for overseeing the overall corporate management,
operation and development planning and had over 30 years of experience
in the paper-making and packaging industries. Prior to founding our
Group, Mr. Hu Zheng worked as a technician and as assistant engineer at
a then state-owned paper factory since 1983 then he was a director of a
PRC paper and packaging products manufacturing factory, responsible for
the management of daily operation and strategic planning from 1990 to
2003. In October 1981, Mr. Hu Zheng graduated from Guangdong Foshan
Vocational College (BRI B3 K112 87) (formerly known as Guangdong
Foshan Region Agricultural Mechanical College (&% A @8 1L Hb & 2 A
{ELEE1R)) and completed a Master of Business Administration at the Macau
University of Science and Technology in August 2001. Mr. Hu Zheng is
the brother of Mr. Hu Hancheng (an executive Director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company (the “Shareholder”) through his interests in
Golden Century Assets Limited) and Mr. Hu Hanchao (an executive Director
and a substantial Shareholder of the Company through his interests in
Leading Innovation Worldwide Corporation).

Mr. Hu Hancheng ( # /& 12 ), aged 62, has been appointed an executive Director
since 4 March 2011. He is also the Co-Chairman of the Company, and
also a member of budget management committee. He is responsible
for the comprehensive operation management of the Group. He joined
the Group in 2003 and has been the legal representative of Zheng Ye
Packaging (Zhongshan) Company Limited, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, between December 2007 and January 2017.
Mr. Hu Hancheng is in charge of the management and operation of the
packaging business division of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Hu Hancheng was the general manager of a PRC packaging products
manufacturing factory from 1997 to 2003 responsible for the overall
operational management of the business. Mr. Hu Hancheng is currently the
vice president of Zhongshan Association of Packaging Industry. In January
1995, Mr. Hu Hancheng completed an economic management program at
the Guangdong Polytechnic College (&R & Ti2 i Z T 2Ft) formerly
known as Guangdong Province Adult Technology University (5 & B AR
FKE). Mr. Hu Hancheng is brother of Mr. Hanchao (an executive Director
and a substantial Shareholder of the Company) and Mr. Hu Zheng (an
executive Director and a controlling Shareholder of the Company through
his interests in Gorgeous Rich Development Limited).

Biogra hical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Hu Hanchao (#/%85), aged 64, an executive Director of the Company,
he is also the chairman of budget management committee. He joined our
Group in 2003 and he was appointed as a Director in September 2010 then
was designated as an executive Director in March 2011 and appointed
as Vice Chairman in November 2012. Mr. Hu Hanchao is responsible for
the daily operations management of the Group and supervised the daily
comprehensive operation management in corrugated medium paper
division. He has been involved in corporate management for more than 28
years. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Hu Hanchao was the deputy general
manager at Zhongshan City Zhong Fa Equipment Rental Company Limited
from 2000 to 2003 responsible for the overall operational management
of the business and before that he was the assistant manager of Xinhua
Bookshop from 1985 to 1994. In August 1985, Mr. Hu Hanchao graduated
from Zhongshan Municipal Communist Party Cadre School (F 1L i1 # &0 £
). Mr. Hu Hanchao is the brother of Mr. Hu Zheng (an executive Director
and a controlling Shareholder of the Company) and Mr. Hu Hancheng (an
executive Director and a substantial Shareholder of the Company).

Mr. Hu Jianpeng (RA2HE), aged 35, joined the Group in 2014. Mr. Hu Jianpeng
is an executive Director of the Group. Mr. Hu Jianpeng held the post of
the Group’s general manager in procurement between 2014 and 2017,
was responsible for the supply chain management and procurement
strategy formulation in the Group. In 2018, Mr. Hu Jianpeng served as
the chief operating officer of the Group and responsible for the overall
operation and management in sales, raw materials and procurement of the
Group. Mr. Hu Jianpeng obtained double Master degrees in finance and
marketing awarded by the University of Sydney in 2013. Mr. Hu Jianpeng is
a son of Mr. Hu Zheng (an executive Director and a controlling Shareholder
of the Company). Also, Mr. Hu Jianpeng is a nephew of Mr. Hu Hanchao (an
Executive Director and a substantial Shareholder of the Company) and Mr.
Hu Hancheng (an Executive Director and a substantial Shareholder of the
Company).
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Mr. Chen Riyue (] B ), aged 43, joined our Group in 31 May 2019. He served
as Guangdong Industry Polytechnic and is currently an associate professor.
He obtained a bachelor's degree in engineering from Wuhan University of
Technology in 2001. He also obtained a master’s degree in engineering
from China University of Geosciences (Wuhan) in 2012. Mr. Chan is a
niece-in-law of Mr. Hu Hanchao (an executive Director and a substantial
Shareholder of the Company), Mr. Hu Hancheng (an executive Director and
a substantial Shareholder of the Company) and Mr. Hu Zheng (an executive
Director and a controlling Shareholder of the Company).

Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John ((2E1 ), aged 53, joined the Company on 4 March
2011 as an independent non-executive Director. He is also the Chairman
of audit committee, remuneration committee and risk management
committee and also a member of nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Chung graduated from Macquarie University, Australia in 1992 with a
Bachelor of Economics degree, then became a member of CPA Australia
in 1995 and that of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
in 1996. Mr. Chung has over 20 years of experience in auditing, financial
management and corporate finance. Mr. Chung was an auditor in an
international accounting firm from 1992 to 1999. From 2000, Mr. Chung had
held several senior management positions, including chief financial officer,
executive director and independent non-executive director, in a number
of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chung is presently a vice president
of Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited (a listed company on
the Stock Exchange; stock code: 3608). Mr. Chung is also an independent
non-executive Directors of BYD Electronic (International) Company Limited
(a listed company on the Stock Exchange; stock code: 285), YTO Express
(International) Holdings Limited (a listed company on the Stock Exchange;
stock code: 6123), B & S International Holdings Limited (a listed company
on the Stock Exchange; stock code: 1705) and Tokyo Chuo Auction
Holdings Limited (a listed company on the Stock Exchange; stock code:
1939) since June 2013, December 2017, February and September 2018
respectively.
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Mr. Liew Fui Kiang (2{E$%), aged 55, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since May 2019. He is a fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a solicitor of England and Wales, and
a solicitor of Hong Kong. Mr. Liew obtained a Bachelor of Laws (Tetley &
Lupton scholar) from the University of Leeds in the United Kingdom and a
Master of Business Administration from the Hull University Business School
in the United Kingdom. Mr. Liew is currently an independent non-executive
director of Shandong Gold Mining Company Limited (stock code: 1787 and
Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code: 600547), China Apex Group Limited
(stock code: 2011) and Zhongchang International Holdings Group Limited
(stock code: 859) respectively. Mr. Liew was the chairman of the board of
directors and executive director of PacRay International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1010) from 2017 to 2019. He was a non-executive director of
Amber Hill Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 33) in December 2019.
Mr. Liew previously served as an independent director of Baoshan Iron &
Steel Company Limited* (25 [Li#i#A% 15 AR 2 7], Shanghai Stock Exchange
stock code: 600019), a Fortune Global 500 company.

Mr. Shin Yick Fabian (%), aged 53, joined the Company on 31 May 2019
as an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Shin graduated from the
University of Birmingham in England with a bachelor’s degree in commerce.
After graduation, he worked in the audit department of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu. He had also worked in a listed company in Hong Kong as group
financial controller and company secretary. He is a fellow member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, The Chartered Governance Institute and the Hong
Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. Mr. Shin is a non-executive Director
of Pak Tak International Limited (a listed company on the Stock Exchange;
stock code: 2668) since February 2017. Mr. Shin is also an independent
non-executive Directors of Lisi Group Holdings Limited (a listed company
on the Stock Exchange; stock code: 526), Newton Resources Limited
(a listed company on the Stock Exchange; stock code: 1231) and China
Tianrui Automotive Interiors Company Limited (a listed company on the
Stock Exchange; stock code: 6162) since January 2013, August 2015, and
December 2018 respectively.

*  For identification purpose only

BlEsERAE 55 BT —NF+—AREZITAAR
RAIMBULIERITES - RABBESEE2EREE - &
TSR TR R AN AN A SR P B BB AT o B AR EMNEER
B KBREFEEZ T2 (Tetley and Lupton#Z2E ¢ £
) WEERABEFBASEHERESIHERELTS
fir o BIEERABLEFSEERMD AR QG (BDARIE
17878 LBFEE R ZFIRMASR : 600547) - REIEZRSE
BEAER AR (MRS : 2011) AT ERBEEREERS
RAR(BRMDREE : 859) B IERNITES - BIEEZRN
TRt FEIT-NFEAREERZERARAR (R
MR 010N ESSETRERITES - HERZT—N
F+ZASAZRIUSEROBRAR(BRMHARIR : 33)M3E
WITESE - B E D EA(IE )R IR50058 (¥ = 1L 0
RO BRAG(LEBESRZSFMRMAIE - 600019) 8
MNEE-

EHFE 53 R-E-NAFHEA=T—BMALXR
BIRREIETE S - REENEZRBAHAE - 5
BBETEM - REXREK - REHBREH S EHA
ZEZEP - RABERN —HEELTAR - EEEE
MBRERAFMNE - RABTEEFMNAE  ZEFHFA
REFEAE  REFFEALRERBERAFNERTE
REE - AEEA T tF - ARECAERERRA
Bl KRBT LM AR R - BRIHRIR - 2668) HIFEH
TEF AEEFIIB-_T—=F—H8 —Z—0FN
ARZF-NF+-AEDIEENEREGEBR)BRA
Bl (=R PA EHIRR] - IRHSE - 526) - FTEE
RERDAN(—FKNBRPT EMERA] - BREIR - 1231)
RABXREAEAHFARART(—KRBRALETHR
Bl RIS ¢ 6162) MBI IFMITES -

Annual Report 2021 41
T FFR

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
IEXERIERB R AR



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

IR R e B R

Senior Management

Ms. Chen Wei (FR), aged 46, joined our Group in 2007. Ms. Chen is the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group and responsible for the management
operations in finance, human resources, legal, internal audit, information
systems and Hong Kong head quarter of the Group comprehensively.
Ms. Chen has over 15 years of experience in financial management and
tax services. She served as financial supervisor in several papermaking
enterprises and group companies during the period from 1995 to 2001
and was in charge of accounting and financial management matters.
Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Chen served as account manager and tax
consultant in Zhongshan large-scale tax agent from 2005 to 2007. Ms. Chen
completed the accounting course of Jinan University in December 2005
and obtained a undergraduate diploma. Thereafter, she was awarded the
Master of Business Administration degree from the University of Wales in
April 2011, and obtained the title of senior accountant awarded by Human
Resources Bureau of Guangdong Province (/& % & A £ E2) in December
2008. In September 2009, Ms. Chen obtained professional qualification as
a senior international finance manager awarded by International Financial
Management Association. She is the member of International Financial
Management Association.

Mr. Hu Jianjun (#Bf2%), aged 37, joined the Group in 2010. Mr. Hu Jianjun
is the Chief Operating Officer of the Group and is responsible for the
operations, strategic planning in sales and raw paper procurement in
packaging division and maintain customers relationships. Mr. Hu Jianjun
obtained the undergraduate programme in design awarded by the
Wuchang Shouyi University (former known as Huazhong University of
Science and Technology (Wuchang campus)) in 2008. Mr. Hu Jianjun
is a son of Mr. Hu Hancheng (an executive Director and a substantial
Shareholder of the Company). Also, Mr. Hu Jianpeng is a nephew of Mr.
Hu Hanchao (an executive Director and a substantial Shareholder of the
Company) and Mr. Hu Zheng (an executive Director and a controlling
Shareholder of the Company).

Mr. Tan Xijian (B #5{), aged 37, joined the Group in 2014. Mr. Tan is the vice
president of the Group and is responsible for the sales and raw materials
operation management. Mr. Tan was the general manager in raw materials
from 2014 to 2017 and was responsible for the formulation of raw materials
management and procurement strategies of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, he had five years of project planning. Mr. Tan obtained a degree in
Business Administration from Guangdong University of Technology in 2016.
Mr. Tan Xijian is a son-in-law of Mr. Hu Hanchao (an executive Director and
a substantial Shareholder of the Company). Also, Mr. Tan is a niece-in-law
of Mr. Hu Hancheng (an executive Director and a substantial Shareholder
of the Company) and Mr. Hu Zheng (an executive Director and a controlling
Shareholder of the Company).
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Mr. Fu Guofa (f8E3%), aged 49, joined the Group in 2017. Mr. Fu is the vice
president of the Group, and is mainly responsible for the management of
the papermaking sector, mainly in charge of the papermaking business
department, the industrial paper raw material business department and
other related management work. Mr. Fu has over 25 years of experience
in the technical, production and management skills in paper industry. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Fu worked as deputy general manager in one of
subsidiary of Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings) Limited from 2010 to 2016 and
was responsible for the overall production management. Mr. Fu obtained
an undergraduate qualification majoring in pulp paper craft from Nanjing
Forestry University in 1997.

Mr. Zeng Chunlai (& & k), aged 47, joined the Group in 1999. Mr. Zeng
currently serves as the managing vice president of the Group, and is
responsible for the management of daily operations of the Group's
packaging business as well as the marketing department. Mr. Zeng's
previous positions in the Group include director of quality control, director
of business, director of sales, deputy general manager of sales, and deputy
general manager of operations, during which he led the establishment
of the Company’s quality control system and enhanced the Company's
sales management system, sales costing and customer management
system. He has been involved in the development of a customer base
with various industry brands and has over 20 years of solid marketing
management experience. In 2017, Mr. Zeng was awarded the Group's
"Excellent Manager”. Mr. Zeng graduated from the School of Mechanical
and Electrical Engineering of Hunan University in 1996, majoring in applied
electronics.

Mr. Zhu Dejun (R125), aged 47, joined the Group in 2009. Mr. Zhu currently
serves as the vice president of the Group, and is responsible for the
management of the Group's packaging business division (base and
packaging technology centre) of the packaging business. Mr. Zhu has
over 20 years of experience in sales and production management in the
packaging industry. Mr. Zhu's previous positions in the Group include
base director of operations, base deputy manager of sales, base director
of production, and base general manager. From 1999 to 2007, he served
as sales director of a Group company, and was responsible for base
sales management. In 2019, Mr. Zhu was awarded the Group's "Excellent
Manager”. Mr. Zhu graduated from Hubei Xiangfan Normal College in
1993.
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Mr. Liu Haibo (%78 %), aged 51, joined our Group in 2018. Mr. Liu is the
vice president of the Group, and is in charge of the sales of corrugated
medium paper and raw material management. Mr. Liu has over 27 years
of experience in paper products sales and participated in the marketing
of paper products in various paper products enterprises. He graduated
tertiary level in international trade and marketing at Shandong TV University
and awarded the title of assistant economist.

Company Secretary

Mr. Li Kin Wai ( 2 & & ), was appointed as the Company Secretary and
Authorized Representative of the Company on 1 April 2021. Mr. Li is
a Manager of Corporate Services of Tricor Services Limited, an Asia’s
leading business expansion specialist specializing in integrated Business,
Corporate and Investor Services. Mr. Li is a Chartered Secretary and an
Associate of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators).
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The Directors are pleased to present to the shareholders their report
together with audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the "Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Group are manufacturing and sale of paper, paperboard and paper-
based packaging products. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are
set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at that date are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 64 to 169 of this annual
report.

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of RMB9.00
cents (equivalent to HKD10.9197 cents) per share to the shareholders on
the register of members on 29 June 2022, amounting to approximately
RMB45,000,000 and the retention of the profit for the year approximately
RMB115,841,000.

The dividend will be payable in HKD. The exchange rate will be based on
the opening indicative counter exchange rate (Buying TT for RMB) as on
25 March 2022 (the date of unaudited annual results’ board meeting of the
Company) disclosed by The Hong Kong Association of Banks.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
for the financial year under review are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2021, calculated
in accordance with the provision of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
amounted to RMB139,000.

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the latest five financial years is set out on page 170 of this annual report.
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Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities of
the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities shares during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no pre-emptive under the Company Bye-laws, or the laws in
Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

Tax Relief and Exemption
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding the Company’s securities.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the Reporting Period.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year ended and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. HU Zheng (Chairman)

Mr. HU Hancheng (Co-Chairman) (Mr. HU Jianjun as his alternate)
Mr. HU Hanchao (Mr. TAN Xijian as his alternate)

Mr. HU Jianpeng (appointed on 8 February 2022)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. CHEN Riyue

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CHUNG Kwok Mo John

Mr. LIEW Fui Kiang

Mr. SHIN Yick Fabian

The Company confirms that it has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), and it still considers that the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.
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Pursuant to Bye-Law 108 and Bye-Law 112 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr.
Hu Hanchao, Mr. Hu Jianpeng (“Mr. Hu"), Mr. Liew Fui Kiang (“Mr. Liew")
and Mr. Shin Yick Fabian (“Mr. Shin") shall retire from office by rotation
at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves was for re-
election as Directors at the AGM.

Directors and Senior Management
The biographical details of Directors and Senior Management are set and
on pages 38 to 44 of this annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The executive Directors namely, Mr. Hu Zheng, Mr. Hu Hancheng, Mr.
Hu Hanchao and Mr. Hu have renewed their service contracts with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2021. Both
are subject to termination by either party giving not less than three months’
written notice to the other.

The non-executive Director, Mr. Chen Riyue and each of the independent
non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John, Mr. Liew Fui
Kiang and Mr. Shin Yick Fabian have been appointed for a term of one year
commencing from 1 January 2021. Both are subject to termination by either
party giving not less than three months’ written notice to the other.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Permitted Indemnity Provision
As at the date of this report, all Directors of the Company were covered
under the liability insurance purchased by the Company for its Directors.
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Emolument Policy

The emolument policies of the Directors and other employees are
formulated based on individual experience, qualification and over market
situation and are reviewed regularly, while the bonus is related to the
financial performance of the Group and the individual performance. The
Directors’ remunerations are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was set out below:

FENBUCR

EFRHEME THHMBEE N2 EERE THERREAE
REBTRMIE * AL RARENE 52 R ERIRRH
- BEHFMPBFAE A -

REBEE T —F+ - A=+—RI-FEREHEHMERIE S
ZRREEABHIETIIT

Number of

individual

Remuneration band (RMB) FHENAER (ARHE) A
0-500,000 0-500,000 3
500,001-1,000,000 500,001-1,000,000 19
1,000,001 1,000,001 8

Details of the Directors’ emolument and emoluments of the five highest
paid individuals in the Group are set at the notes 13 and 14 to consolidated
financial statements.

Director’s Interest in Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed in the section headed "Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this report and note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements, no Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year under review.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed under the sections headed "Directors’ and Chief
Executive's Interests in the Securities of the Company or its Associated
Share Option Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme”,
at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of

7

Corporations”,

the acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding companies, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in the EERFETHAERAQTREBHEE
Securities of the Company or Its Associated MR 5 RS
Corporations

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the directors RZZEZ—F+ZA=+—H  AARESFREBITHA
and chief executive(s) of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and ~ BRAR RIS EH (W HEAE (T& BB H REEEG)D
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within ([ E&RBEMRAE ) EXVEL) Mk - BERND REHE
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO"))  #iH Ml MRk B MZERIEE FH LB §HI 58 3521558 8%
as recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of AR ABFFEZRZMA - KERE ETARAMEHN LT
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange ~ BEITAZEFETESF I SHNRETARENEARARAIRE
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of  BHARXZFTER AR ([BRE])EMT :

Listed issuers contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Approximate

Name of Directors Name of Group member/ Capacity/ Number and class of percentage
and Chief Executive associated corporation Nature of interest securities (Note 1) of shareholding
BEEKk
TEARARLE ARERALT MMEEEE 56 REEE 3208 RERI (M) BRAMAE S
Mr. Hu Zheng The Company Interest of controlled 191,250,000 ordinary shares of 38.25%
corporation (Note 2) HK$0.10 each
HALESE A4 ZAN/NS]| REGEERER (M 2) 191,250,000 A SRR E(E
0.10 B &k
Gorgeous Rich Development Beneficial owner 1 ordinary share of US$1.00 100%
Limited (“Gorgeous Rich") BEmBEAA 1 BRTEE1.00 £ TH) & @Ak
Mr. Hu Hancheng The Company Interest of controlled 93,750,000 ordinary shares of 18.75%
corporation (Note 3) HK$0.10 each
HERRSE A /NG| AR (FPRE 3) 93,750,000 &R EE
0.10 BTHE R
Golden Century Assets Limited Beneficial owner 1 ordinary share of US$1.00 100%
("Golden Century") BERBEAA 1 IREE 1.00 =TT EMK
Mr. Hu Hanchao The Company Interest of controlled 75,000,000 ordinary shares of 15%
corporation (Note 4) HK$0.10 each
ERERASEE AT R{EHAEERS (M 4) 75,000,000 B EE
0.10 BTH @R
Leading Innovation Worldwide Beneficial owner 1 ordinary share of US$1.00 100%
Corporation (“Leading EmBEAA 1 BRTEI(E 1.00 ETH)E @R
Innovation”)
Mr. Chen Riyue The Company Interest of controlled 15,000,000 ordinary shares of 3%
corporation (Note 5) HK$0.10 each
A AKE AIE] ZyEtlxE S (M5 5) 15,000,000 BEMREE
0.10 BITH EimAK
Fortune View Services Limited Interest of spouse 1 ordinary share of US$1.00 100%
(“Fortune View") [y S 1 BEI{E 1.00 ETTHEBK
Ms. Chen Wei The Company Beneficial owner 818,000 ordinary shares of 0.16%
HK$0.10 each
BREZ L I NC] BEaEA 818,000 A FAREfH0.10/8 TTH)
B
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Notes:

All the interests stated above represent long positions. The percentage shown was
the number of shares the relevant directors or chief executive was interested in

expressed as a percentage of the number of issued shares as at 31 December 2021.

These shares were held by Gorgeous Rich, which was wholly owned by Mr. Hu
Zheng. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hu Zheng was deemed to be interested in the
shares held by Gorgeous Rich.

These shares were held by Golden Century, which was wholly owned by Mr. Hu
Hancheng. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hu Hancheng was deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Golden Century.

These shares were held by Leading Innovation, which was wholly owned by Mr. Hu
Hanchao. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hu Hanchao was deemed to be interested in the

shares held by Leading Innovation.

These shares were held by Fortune View, which was wholly owned by Ms. Hu
Jianwen, a spouse of Mr. Chen Riyue. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chen Riyue was
deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fortune View.

Share Options to subscribe for the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in

the Company were granted to, among others, certain Directors pursuant

to the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 3 June 2011.

Information in relation to these Share Options was shown in the following

section under the heading “Share Option Scheme”.

Save

as disclosed above and in the paragraph headed “Share Option

Scheme” below, no other interest or short position in the shares, underlying

shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations

were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO.

PR -

LB RS RER - FIRED L AEBEERTRITRA
EHARGEORNEE  UME—E-_—F+-A=+—HE%
TR E B BOLERR

Gorgeous Rich# A E M) - MEAES L2 EHES Gorgeous
Rich o B % K EIE &I - #A 1E 5 4 ##R AR Gorgeous
RichFT# A B RO TEE R o

Golden Century 3 B Z E ity - MBEREEL2EHES
Golden Century ° RIEEH REIE G - tHEREEHR AR
Golden Century i B8R HE B s o

Leading InnovationF B2 F M th - MAAERAEELEREE
Leading Innovation © iR %5 R ARG RAI - $AEER B EHAR
& Leading Innovation P A MR DS 2 ©

Fortune Viewl Sk - MPRA A x4z RRBHEZEL LT
& AFortune View ° IRIEES MEIEIEE] - FRA ALER
R AN Fortune ViewFTH B BIRH B s o
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the Securities of

the Company

executive(s) of the Company, the following parties (other than directors
or chief executive(s) of the Company) were recorded in the register kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be

NT T —

As at 31 December 2021, so far as are known to any directors or chief RZZT=

interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company.

FERRAA QTR SFHER

Number and class of shares
held in the Company

F+-A=t—B sEAEEFRARFEE
TTHRABRA  TIHALCGFESERARREEITHAR)
BRIEE S KB GDIE 336G EN AR R FEER
A - REMRENE AR B EERAREEEEIIRE
RERRATDBITIRANS%IA 8k -

Approximate
shareholding

Name of Shareholder Capacity/ Nature of interest percentage (Note 1) percentage
AR BEROHE R IRAEREA

REREH 5 REmtE FRI (M) BoOk

Gorgeous Rich (Note 2) Beneficial owner 191,250,000 ordinary shares of 38.25%
HK$0.10 each

Gorgeous Rich([ff52) BEmlEAA 191,250,000/% &A% E{E
010 TTEY AR

Ms. Li Lifen (Note 2) Interest of spouse 191,250,000 ordinary shares of 38.25%
HK$0.10 each

FRE L (MiE2) iy o 191,250,000/% & AR H &
0108 TTEY AR

Golden Century (Note 3) Beneficial owner 93,750,000 ordinary shares of 18.75%
HK$0.10 each

Golden Century(Ff7£3) BEmEAA 93,750,0008% i3 FEI{E
0.107%8 Ty E ik

Ms. Li Siyuan (Note 3) Interest of spouse 93,750,000 ordinary shares of 18.75%
HK$0.10 each

FRE(ME3) fe B R 93,750,0008 F AR E &
0.107% T8y E Ak

Leading Innovation (Note 4) Beneficial owner 75,000,000 ordinary shares of 15.00%
HK$0.10 each

Leading Innovation(F15£4) EmEA A 75,000,000/% &A% B
0.107% T8y & ik

Ms. He Lijuan (Note 4) Interest of spouse 75,000,000 ordinary shares of 15.00%
HK$0.10 each

Al sE 2 £ (Mi5E4) AotBiEas 75,000,000 & A E &
0.10/8 LY & A

RAYS Capital Partners Limited (Note 5) Investment manager/Beneficial owner/ 47,542,000 ordinary shares of 9.50%

RAYS Capital Partners Limited (Fff5E5)

Interest of controlled corporation
RELIE " BRBEEN/ ZEHEE
i

HK$0.10 each
47,542,000/% X EE
0.1078 LAY & AR
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Number and class of shares
held in the Company

Approximate
shareholding

Name of Shareholder Capacity/ Nature of interest percentage (Note 1) percentage
A ARRGBE R IRAEREA
RER B 513, RmtE BRI (M) Bk
Mr. Ruan David Ching-chi (Note 6) Interest of controlled corporation 47,542,000 ordinary shares of 9.50%
HK$0.10 each
Ruan David Ching-chi &4 (FfizE6) R EE R 47,542,0008% X B
01078 TL Y 3B A
Asian Equity Special Opportunities Beneficial owner 46,516,000 ordinary shares of 9.30%

Portfolio Master Fund Limited (Note 5)

Asian Equity Special Opportunities

BERmEAA

Portfolio Master Fund Limited (Mf5E5)

Notes:

All the interests stated above represent long positions. The percentage shown was
the number of shares in the Company that the relevant director of chief executive
was interested in expressed as a percentage of the number of issued shares in the
Company as at 31 December 2021.

Gorgeous Rich is wholly-owned by Mr. Hu Zheng. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hu
Zheng was deemed to be interested in the shares held by Gorgeous Rich. Ms. Li
Lifen is the spouse of Mr. Hu Zheng. Under the SFO, Ms. Li Lifen was taken to be

interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Hu Zheng was interested.

Golden Century is wholly-owned by Mr. Hu Hancheng. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hu
Hancheng was deemed to be interested in the shares held by Golden Century. Ms.
Li Si Yuan is the spouse of Mr. Hu Hancheng. Under the SFO, Ms. Li Si Yuan was
taken to be interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Hu Hancheng was

interested.

Leading Innovation is wholly-owned by Mr. Hu Hanchao. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Hu Hanchao was deemed to be interested in the shares held by Leading Innovation.
Ms. He Lijuan is the spouse of Mr. Hu Hanchao. Under the SFO, Ms. He Lijuan was
taken to be interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Hu Hanchao was

interested.

Asian Equity Special Opportunities Portfolio Master Fund Limited (“Asian Equity”)
is wholly-owned by RAYS Capital Partners Limited. Therefore, RAYS Capital Partners
Limited is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Asian Equity.

The shares in RAYS Capital Partners Limited is held by Ruan David Ching-chi.
Therefore, he is deemed interested in all the Shares held by RAYS Capital Partners
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no other interest or short position in the shares or

underlying shares in the Company were recorded in the Register.

i

HK$0.10 each
46,516,000/ F L EIE
0.10/8 TR L RAL

LLﬁﬁﬁ%\\ﬁﬁﬂﬁ PR B DL AR R EA R A
REABROBE  MEZR - —F+ - A=+—BARAEHT
BOBEBILERR -

HAIE %o 4 2 B Gorgeous Rich © IRIFFFH M EE KL - $HIE
T HEMAR B Gorgeous RichFTiF B MR M IEAER - TBH
RERPERENRS - REEFFRAERD - TEF LK
EEREA A A RENAREE RO A RER -

HEIR A2 E BB Golden Century  IRIZESH R EASEH

IR S AR B Golden Centuryﬁﬁhﬁﬁqﬂxﬁﬁﬁﬁ%m

FRELZLTRAERTENRS - REZHFRBAER -
BT E ERERIR S A A i ER 2B IR 1D EPT?’WE%

5o

2 EH S £ 2 A A Leading Innovation © IRIEFEFH & HIE ik
Bl - $HESA & A AR AR Leading Innovation FT#58 %15
B o MBI R T RIPER L ENER - RIFZHRAEK
Bl - B L T B 1ER I ERR e AR A i BRI 2 A IR 1D
hEEERER o

Asian Equity Special Opportunities Portfolio Master Fund
Limited ([ Asian Equity |) FARAYS Capital Partners Limited &
EWA - Ett © RAYS Capital Partners Limited?® A% A Asian
Equity TR 9 By 2 E0 S ©

Ruan David Ching-chisE£#58RAYS Capital Partners Limited
f&f o B - HEER FHEARAYS Capital Partners Limited T
FEI DB 2 BB o
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Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”), which was adopted on 3 June 2011 (the “Adoption Date").
Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Option Scheme will
remain in force for 10 years from the Adoption Date. The major terms of
the Share Option Scheme are summarized as follows:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives or
rewards to selected eligible participants for their contribution to the Group.
Under the share Option Scheme, the is Directors of the Company may
grant options to any Directors, employees, suppliers, customers, service
providers, shareholder, advisors of any member of the Group or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds and equity interest and any other
person who the Directors considers, in its discretion, have contributed to
the Group.

The total number of share which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the share in issue as at the date of listing, unless
shareholders’ approval has been obtained, and in any event must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the share of the Company in issue from time to
time. The total number of share issued and to be issued upon the exercise
of the options granted to or to be granted to each participant under the
Share Option Scheme in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
share of the Company in issue.

The exercise price for the shares under the Share Option Scheme shall be
such price as the Board may in its absolute discretion determine at the time
of grant of the option but the subscription price shall not be less than the
highest of the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of the Board approving
the grant of an option, which must be a business day ("Offer Date”);
the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the Offer Date; and the nominal value of the Company’s shares.
A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of
an option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and notified
by the Directors to each grantee, which period may commence from the
date of the offer for the grant of options is made, but shall end in any event
not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option subject to the
provisions for early termination thereof. Unless otherwise determined by
the Directors and stated in the offer for the grant of options to a grantee,
there is no minimum period required under the Share Option Scheme for
the holding of an option before it can be exercised.

As of 31 December 2021, none of these options has been granted and
exercised and all granted options have been cancelled or lapsed.

BT E
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Share Award Scheme

The Company operates a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”), which was adopted on 23 April 2019 (the “Adoption Date”).
Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Award Scheme will
remain in force for 10 years from the Adoption Date.

The Board may, from time to time and at its sole discretion, select any
eligible person to participate in the Share Award Scheme and determine
the number of Shares to be awarded and the terms and conditions of
the awards. Awards shall be satisfied by Shares acquired in the market at
the prevailing market price and no new Shares will be allotted and issued
under the Share Award Scheme. The trustee of the Share Award Scheme
(the “Trustee”) shall hold the awarded shares on trust for the award
holders until the awarded Shares are vested in the relevant award holders
according to the Share Award Scheme rules. Upon vesting, the Trustee
shall either transfer the vested awarded Shares at no cost to such award
holders or sell the vested awarded Shares at the then prevailing market
price by way of market order and remit the net proceeds to the award
holders in accordance with the direction given by such award holders.

The Board will constantly review and determine at its absolute discretion
such number of Awarded Shares to be awarded to the selected persons
under the Share Award Plan with such vesting conditions as the Board may
deem appropriate

Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the Share Option Scheme of the Company as disclosed above,
no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that
will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the
Company during.

Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements also constituted connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, and are required to be disclosed in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The following transactions between
certain connected parties (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the Company
have been entered into and/or are ongoing for which relevant disclosure
had been made by the Company in the announcement dated 1 January
2020.
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One-off Connected Transactions

In December 2021, Zhongshan Rengo Hung Hing Paper Manufacturing
Company Limited (“"Hung Hing”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and Shanghai Rengo Packaging Decoration Company Limited*
(LB A B KESBRADA) ("Shanghai Rengo”), a limited company
established in the PRC, and Wuxi Rengo Packaging Company Limited*
(E55 45 BE AR A F]) ("Wuxi Rengo”), a limited company established
in the PRC and owned as to 91% and 9% by Shanghai Rengo and Rengo
Company Limited* (L > O —#k X & — %K X & 4t). Shanghai Rengo and
Wuxi Rengo provided an extension of financial guarantees to Hung Hing to
secure the banking facilities with an aggregate amount of RMB1,800,000.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Under the de minimis provision set forth in Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules
and is therefore exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval.

Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

The following transactions between member of our Group constitute
non-exempt continuing connected transaction of our Company under
Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules since the applicable percentage ratios
(other than the profits ratio) are greater than 5% on an annual basis and
with annual consideration being greater than HK$1,000,000.

Zheng Ye Packaging (Zhongshan) Company Limited (“Zheng Ye
Packaging (Zhongshan)”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
Zhongshan City Zheng Ye Leasing Company Limited (“Zheng Ye Leasing”)
entered into three tenancy agreements made between Zheng Ye Leasing as
landlord and Zheng Ye Packaging (Zhongshan) as tenant in respect of the
letting of the premises as summarized below:

o Date and subject matter of each tenancy agreement:

- Tenancy agreement dated 1 January 2020 (the "First Tenancy
Agreement”) in relation to the letting of premises located
at Dongcheng Road, Dongshen Town, Zhongshan City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC for use as our production site
with a total gross floor area of approximately 36,475 sq.m..

- Tenancy agreement dated 1 January 2020 (the “Second
Tenancy Agreement”) in relation to the letting of premises
located at No. 126 Dongcheng Road, Dongshen Town,
Zhongshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC for use as our
production site with a total gross floor area of approximately
7,844 sgq.m..
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- Tenancy agreement dated 1 January 2020 (the “Third Tenancy
Agreement”) in relation to the letting of premises located
at Nos. 119 and 126 Dongcheng Road, Dongshen Town,
Zhongshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC for use as our
workshop and canteen respective site with total gross floor
areas of approximately 2,622 sq.m. and 304 sg.m. respectively.

o Monthly rental and management fee payable:

- The First Tenancy Agreement is in amount of RMB459,605.

- The Second Tenancy Agreement is in amount of RMB98,833.

- The Third Tenancy Agreement is in amount of RMB36,867.

- The monthly rent payable for the renewal term under each
of the renewed Tenancy Agreements will be the then market
rent provided that any upward adjustment to the monthly rent
will be subject to a cap of not more than 10% of the monthly
rent payable immediately prior to the expiration of the original
term.

o Rental deposit paid:

- The First Tenancy Agreement in amount of RMB300,000.

- The Second Tenancy Agreement in amount of RMB100,000.

- The Third Tenancy Agreement in amount of RMB50,000.
During the year, the rental and management fee of the premises from
Zheng Ye Leasing amounted to VAT inclusive of RMB7,143,660 (2020:
RMB7,143,660).

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions of the Company and have confirmed
that these transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i)  on normal commercial terms; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the

transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The auditors of the Company have reported to the Directors that during
the financial year:

() the above continuing connected transactions have been approved
by the board of Directors;

(i) the above continuing connected transactions have been entered
into in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions; and

(i) the respective cap amounts set out in the relevant agreements
referred to above have not been exceeded.

Charitable Donations
During the Reporting Period, the Group made charitable donations of
RMB1,763,000.

Corporate Governance
Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set at in the
Corporate Governance Report of the annual report.

Mode Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. All the Directors of the Company have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, 19.22% of the Group's revenue was attributable
to the Group's five largest customers and sales to the Group's largest
customer accounted for 5.12% of the Group's revenue for the year. 50%
of the Group's total purchases was attributable to the Group's five largest
supplier and purchases from the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
16.03% of the Group is total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or shareholders, who to the
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital, had an interest in these major customers or suppliers.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the year, no Directors of the Company or their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) were considered to have an interest in
a business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than those businesses
of which the Directors were authorised to represent the interests of the
Company and/or the Group.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float during the year and up to the date of this report under the
Listing Rules.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the AGM.

By order of the Board

Hu Zheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ZHENGYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
EXBEBRZERER AR

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhengye
International Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 64
to 169, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter
RRETER

ARETTEEGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEEFNPIIREBREENSE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables not backed by bank bills and contract assets

BROTRBARENEZBRFARESHNEENRETE

We identified the impairment assessment of trade receivables
not backed by bank bills and contract assets as a key audit matter
due to the management’s judgment and estimates involved in the
determining provision for expected credit loss (“ECL").
EERBRTRB/RENE SRR A N EEMRERT HE5
RERESEE  DARNEERMGEEFE( BHEEEBEDREY
NERE A S AtET o

As disclosed in notes 4 and 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, the ECL on contract assets and trade receivables
not backed by bank bills is assessed individually for debtors and
contract assets with significant balances or credit-impaired and/
or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings
based primarily on the debtors’ ageing profiles. The provision rates
applied in the provision matrix are estimated using the historical
observed default rates of the debtors and contract assets taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable,
supportable and available to the directors of the Company without
undue costs or effort, and are updated if considered to be required.
AR A TS IRR M A RIOAKE - A NEERBRITRERR
BB SREFIAN S - BN AR REEGSEREERERNRT R
BREE  HHEEBEGUEBFA R SERFEENEBAR
HREREEE D AN B EREN SR RETHE - BEBEMER
BEE - DANABEEENERNENEEENE  FRARRES
BRIEEBTKNENKNANE NI ERNSBEERE(EELERER
TR RIRITIE LB R 1T (k5T ©

As disclosed in notes 21 and 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amount of trade receivables not backed
by bank bills and contract assets as at 31 December 2021, are
RMB783,053,000 (net of allowance for credit losses of RMB7,312,000)
and RMB15,550,000 (net of allowance for credit losses of nil),
respectively.

MR A RN E21 K23 T KRB -+ HA=+—
B BROTRBEAEENEZIRINFERSNEENREED RIAA
R #783,053,0007T (IR E E B 1EE I AR 7,312,0007T) B A R#
15,550,0007C (HIFRE EEIEEEE) ©

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of the
trade receivables not backed by bank bills and contract assets
included:
EERBRITEBREENE S RIFIENE K EERRERE
PUETTIZF B4

J Obtaining an understanding of the management process
in assessing the estimated provision for ECL for trade
receivables not backed by bank bills and contract assets;

o THREBEHNERTEBREENE ZRUFIARA L
BEMEEMEE B RN A BENER

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the management'’s
determination of the estimated loss rates (with reference
to historical default rates, internal credit rating, and
publicly available forward-looking information);

. TMEERELLEZRAROE ANEENR - AHRATE
HATHE M ERHMEREE BB ER D EIE

o Testing the accuracy of the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables not backed by bank bills on a sample basis to
the supporting documents;

s  HMBEREXRXM  REERTRBEREENEZEUGK
TR ERER DT O ZEREME

o Checking the accuracy of the management's calculation
of ECL for trade receivables not backed by bank bills and
contract assets under provision matrix;

s MEEEREMRERTEER/RENEZRUFARALNE
EREE AR IR EE R B RN -

o Evaluating the historical accuracy of estimated provision
for ECL for trade receivables not backed by bank bills and
contract assets.
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Other Information
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
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. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the e A R A BN BREF SRR M BT E B HRERT
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, EERFERRARER © ReT R TEZIZ T A LE
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, HZERE - AERTEMEENEARE  ER
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to FEEROER - BREGEI e RBHE - FiE
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material BRER  ERERMFSOZENEES 2 £ BitR
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting BE 25 IR K BREF M 8 B8 B2 K 5 s PR L A J&L Bt i A R
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional REE IR SRR MBI E RS MR A AR
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit THREFEHEMOAEES - ARFHEENEE
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the FFo BEEMIIEE SRERIERINERIEER
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on BA e
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the o FHEEE ARG BER AR B KA EE &5t
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures FTAER B EE R S IR o
made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going HESRARECE ST ERNR S HIEL &R ©
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence RRFTERAETRE - e FEMEEIRNE
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events NEBAHNBEATEEN - KMAlEEHE HE5E
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability WFECERE NEXERGER - WESRAFLE
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material APHEEN - BBV EEZEARETIRBERAE
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s A BARE M MEP ORI - G ERET
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial B RIESEERRIIBERBER - EENEHRT
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our EREZEZEA IS A B IEFTEUS R ERTRE A
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained i AREEHIERATEES EEETEFEL
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or & o
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Stephen C. L. Yuen.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—HAILLFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TE
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
BoaE AR®T T AREETTT
Revenue WA 5 3,558,009 2,493,041
Cost of sales SHEKA (2,881,037) (2,102,176)
Gross profit EA 676,972 390,865
Other income Ha A 7 50,715 26,287
Impairment losses under expected credit BIRTEEME B B8R S HRRE
loss model, net of reversal E518 - MkR#EE 8 (1,288) (5,055)
Other gains and losses H bl es & 518 9 (26,276) (2,201)
Distribution and selling expenses DIENIHEER (98,569) (72,651)
Administrative expenses TR (169,821) (141,327)
Finance costs B E R AN 10 (62,831) (49,615)
Other expenses H < (470) (1,926)
Research and development costs 3R (131,116) (79,446)
Profit before tax BRA AL A 11 237,316 64,931
Income tax expense PSRRI < 12 (29,038) (2,371)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year i@ & 2 H IR 258 208,278 62,560
Profit and total comprehensive income AT AT (S A F & 2 W
for the year attributable to: HER
Owners of the Company PA/NCIEZ ZEDN 160,841 54,772
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR RS 47,437 7,788
208,278 62,560
Earnings per share R EF
Basic (RMB) ER(ARE) 16 0.32 0.11
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

oo AR DL R
At 31 December 2021
RZZE-_—F+=A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TE
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
BoaE AR®T T AREETTT
Non-current Assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BRE R 17 1,132,113 1,040,423
Right-of-use assets EREEE 18 193,094 197,943
Intangible assets B EE 19 5,416 4,120
Deferred tax assets EEFTHE E 31 11,223 7,265
Deposits for acquisition of property, plant and BEME  BEREENZRS
equipment 29,499 30,137
1,371,345 1,279,888
Current Assets REEE
Inventories A 20 223,283 169,750
Trade and other receivables Z 5 Rk E A fE G IE 21 1,101,478 922,741
Contract assets BREE 23 15,550 18,628
Tax recoverable A [ TE 323 =
Pledged bank deposits EIEFRITIER 24 92,368 106,401
Bank balances and cash IRITEHREIRE 24 229,581 185,367
1,662,583 1,402,887
Current Liabilities b=k
Trade and other payables B 5 K EAMEN A 25 337,347 259,447
Consideration payables ENREBRE 26 5,818 11,956
Tax liabilities PIBEE 11,521 6,461
Bank and other borrowings IRIT R EALER 27 1,022,356 1,025,339
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 15,458 14,226
Contract liabilities EREE 29 8,025 3,583
Amounts due to directors EESHE 30 443 507
1,400,968 1,321,519
Net Current Assets REEEFE 261,615 81,368
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities EEABRABERS 1,632,960 1,361,256
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

or o BRI ER
At 31 December 2021
RZZE-Z—F+=A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TE
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB’000
gz AR¥T T ARETTT
Capital and Reserves BEAXR#E
Share capital &N 32 41,655 41,655
Share premium and reserves IR A E (B K R 1,069,867 924,026
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZN/NEIE7 2PN (g 2o 1,111,522 965,681
Non-controlling interests FEIE I o 270,430 223,893
Total Equity % 1,381,952 1,189,574
Non-current Liabilities rRBEME
Deferred tax liabilities BRI A E 31 8,737 6,787
Consideration payables FERMRBRIE 26 5,681 10,875
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EAMETK 27 169,098 86,004
Lease liabilities HEAaRE 28 29,857 30,998
Deferred income EIEFL AU A 34 37,635 37,018
251,008 171,682
1,632,960 1,361,256

The consolidated financial statements on pages 64 to 169 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2022 and

are signed on its behalf by:

Hu Zheng
HAIE
DIRECTOR
EF

BEeN T _F=-"A-t+HAMERBEETIESFM
0BG ATERE WA TATRAERE

Hu Hancheng

HER

DIRECTOR

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

A e B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE—

E2-—F+-A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FNAGER AL

Non-
Share Share  Statutory Other  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve profits ~ Sub-total interests Total
BEA  BRARE EERE HtRE  E7ER Nt FERER FERESR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR®TT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(note a) (note b)
(FizEa) (FizEb)
At 1 January 2020 RZE-_ZF—F—H 41,655 92,968 135,174 (23,389) 679,501 925,909 198,498 1,124,407
Profit and total comprehensive ERENR2ARRER
income for the year - - - - 54,772 54,772 7,788 62,560
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35) Y& 2 B (Pi#E35) = = - = - = 14,407 14,407
Capital contribution from a FERRERANEAR
non-controlling interest - - - - - - 3,200 3,200
Dividend paid (note 15) ERRE(FEE15) - - - - (15,000) (15,000) - (15,000)
Transfer to statutory reserve ERS LT HE - - 1,283 - (1,283) = = =
Transfer upon closure of a subsidiary B Al £ E# - = (1,546) - 1,546 = = =
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZE+-A=+—H 41,655 92,968 134,911 (23,389) 719,536 965,681 223893 1,189,574
Profit and total comprehensive FRENR2AKRER
income for the year - - - - 160,841 160,841 47,437 208,278
Dividend paid (note 15) B RE(Fi3E15) - - - - (15,000)  (15,000) - (15,000)
Dividend paid to a non-controlling ~ EfTIEZERAREARS
interest - - - - - - (900) (900)
Transfer to statutory reserve ERELTHE - - 7,289 - (7,289) - - -
At31 December 2021 WoF-—Ef-A=1—E 41,655 92968 142,200  (23389) 858088 1111522 270430 1,381,952
Notes: BE -

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the Peoples’ Republic of
China (the “PRC"), the subsidiaries established in the PRC are required to provide
for the PRC statutory reserve, by way of appropriations from their respective
statutory net profit (based on the subsidiaries’ PRC statutory financial statements)
but before dividend distributions.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of certain subsidiaries established in
the PRC, those subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation

to the statutory reserve.

Certain subsidiaries’ appropriations to the funds are made at the discretion of the
subsidiaries’ board of directors. The board of directors of the subsidiaries shall
decide on the amounts to be appropriated based on the profitability of each

subsidiary each year.

The amount mainly relates to reserve arising from group reorganisation carried
out by the Group (as defined in note 1) in preparation for the public listing of the
Company's shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) in 2011.

BigrhEARLMBE([HEDABERER - R BERIZAH
B A BARIRERSAEBR N KRES B RETAM(ERZ
Y~ B BUATE B T53R 3R ) Bleh BUAE R (R B -

RN BRI A S TIE A RRAKS 2R
BIRBRRTREAMA10% THEERHE

ETHEBRARSESNERAZMBRARNESTSHIBEL -
ERRARBEFRMNBARMNBTENEER TRNNS
e

AN
E=]

FZERTBREAREER —_F——FERHARARMORES
RSMARRNR([HBIZA]) EmETEESAEES RN

PREEERERIER -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

22 /\ Nl =R
SEBEiER
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-2-—FT_A={ BLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TE
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBETTT

EXBFERARAT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEER
Profit before tax BT ADE A 237,316 64,931
Adjustments for: AT RIEEL A
Finance costs BhE PR A 62,831 49,615
Interest income FBUTA (4,573) (5,153)
Impairment losses recognised on trade and E#RE S Rk HMERFIRERE
other receivables 2] 1,288 5,055
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - RE RERETTE 96,105 91,508
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 20,331 21,034
Amortisation of intangible assets m B 602 =
Impairment losses recognised on property, plant ERRYE - BE REERE
and equipment [E518 22,229 1,215
Covid-19-related rent concessions Covid-1918REH & E R - (1,411)
Loss on disposals of property, plant HEW  BREREREEE -
and equipment, net JFEE 1,377 2,280
Exchange gain on borrowings B IE S RE 3 U s (930) (3,486)
Government grants amortised from deferred VAR RE YT A B 85 ) IS T 4 B
income (4,488) (4,100)
Operating cash flows before movements LEEARPIKEHEERE
in working capital 432,088 221,488
Increase in inventories FEENM (54,869) (14,952)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E A GRIEE N (655,183) (358,690)
Decrease (increase) in contract assets EHEERDGEM) 3,078 (1,671)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables E 5 REMEMFEEEIMORD) 101,833 (49,285)
Increase in contract liabilities S4B EEm 4,442 1,368
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to directors FERESHIECR A )L (64) 153
Cash used in operations CEEEFTARE (168,675) (201,589)
Income tax paid [EERIZIEEY (26,309) (585)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXH AR & (194,984) (202,174)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EEHESRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z - —F+_A=1+—HILFE

2021 2020
—B-—fF —ETF
NOTE RMB’000 RMB’000
gz AR¥T T ARET T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXTE
Interest received B S 5,556 5,057
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - RE REESHIE
equipment 26,289 2,812
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEYZE  BE R&E (206,226) (132,763)
Purchases of intangible assets BEEFEE (562) (1,498)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEYE  BEREREMTEZES
plant and equipment (29,499) (30,137)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary WEEMT B A RIR &ML FRE 35 - (18,211)
Consideration paid for acquisition of a subsidiary U BE T B A RIFTHR(E (12,130) =
Placement of pledged bank deposits FABEIBRITER (200,339) (311,775)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits X B AR R TIE K 214,372 345,278
Receipt of government grant relating to non-current  UKEUE BA3E 7 B) & EE 2 B #i AL
assets 5,105 2,200
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXBMAREEH (197,434) (139,037)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEXL
Interest paid BAFE (62,033) (48,413)
Dividend paid ERRE (15,000) (15,000)
Dividend paid to a non-controlling interest BT IEE AR AR R AR B (900) =
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BARIRIT REAIERK (852,547) (602,142)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEEHEaRE (15,391) (14,026)
Capital contribution from a non-controlling interest ~ JE#% Hxﬂx%?x)\ﬁ$ - 3,200
Repayment of amount due to a non-controlling B2 FEIE AR AR RN
interest - (21,468)
New bank and other borrowings raised HiEiR1T R MR 1,382,503 993,338
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEXBAEREFH 436,632 295,489
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND ReRBLSEUEMOHED)
CASH EQUIVALENTS FEE 44,214 (45,722)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERREEEY
At 1 January Kn—A—H 185,367 231,089
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERREEEY
At 31 December Rr=EZ=—I8
represented by bank balances and cash BMRTTAE R IR & 229,581 185,367
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A e B R
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-2-—FT_A={ BLEE

General Information

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information section to
the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Mr. Hu
Zheng, Mr. Hu Hancheng, Mr. Hu Hanchao and Ms. Hu Jianwen,
who collectively own 75% of the Company’s shares in aggregate and
act in concert, are regarded as the controlling shareholders of the
Company.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are mainly engaged in
manufacture and sale of paper, paperboard and paper-based
packaging products. The Company and its subsidiaries are
hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Company and its principal subsidiaries operate.

Application of Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2021
for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Phase 2
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

—REHR
ARRRARARETMRINERRERAA - H
IR TRBE AP BT o AR B SRt Rk =2
EEMHCEARFRP AR EREIE

RAFR—FIREBEERADF  tAIESLE - SHERSL
£ ERRAERBRZ/ MR AREEALRA
T5%EL B —BITAL - BRBARNR FHERAR
o

ARBNMBRREZRELEERHER  BRE
MHEUBKER - ARRAREMBARNRTXAER
[RE&E ] -

GABRETIUARE (AR IIE - ARE
ARARREBWEA BN BEARS
BYEEHS o

EREBMHREEN ([ FEMBRE
R DIERT A

RAEE  ARERNREEAVBHRRFEBRE
RATHEEEFMAS((EREMAE])RAM
MEEMBREEAEITR  ZFETEAR_F
——F— A AR R RAIA 5 BRI SR R AR

BV BEHREERIZERE - T E BB E
BAGRTERIEI9HE - —£=5
BN REER BT -

AR BHRERA B4R
BAMBREERF 165
CCHEN)

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB R T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—HIFE

Application of Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”) of the International
Accounting Standards Board issued in June 2021 which clarified the
costs an entity should include as “estimated costs necessary to make
the sale” when determining the net realisable value of inventories.

Except as described below, the application of the agenda decision
of the Committee in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group's financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 2

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments relate to changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets, financial
liabilities and lease liabilities as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform, specific hedge accounting requirements and the related
disclosure requirements applying HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures.

The amendments have had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements as none of the relevant contracts has been transitioned to
the relevant replacement rates during the year. The Group will apply
the practical expedient in relation to the changes in contractual cash
flows resulting from the interest rate benchmark reform for bank
borrowings measured at amortised cost. Additional disclosures as
required by HKFRS 7 are set out in note 39.

EREBMHREEN ([ FERUBRE
R MERT A (@)

utm\ AKBERREEREFEAZEERN_F

—ERNARMHER ST ENREZER([E8
EJ)E’Ja RRTE - ZAERBERNEEFENT
BIRHERES REITHE B AT IR
IBH e

BRTIXFt &SN RAFEERAZ ESMHITRE
HAKERAFERAEFENP AR M REA

R/ SEBIIAARIRE S RROBEBERETEEX
& o

ERERPHEREEREIN - BESTERE3I9
5 EBMBREENETSR BRPBREED
BAFR BB BREERE 165 (BT R)FIRE
ERE-FoHNTE
AREBERANFEBRERZERTAR o ZIEFTANE
MEEENZS|IBERETEREE  SREER
HERBENANRESRENELE  FELHIHEF
REERUREREEMBREERNE R T
A KEEH -

HRAFEWEERALBEEEEERF X

BRI RE AR A M ISR WS T2 - ZK%
B i ph i S A AN AT 2 S T R EERCE 5| BUS iR
B A ENETERNANESRERARE
HE o BB ISRELERIE7RATREREINE B EL
N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB R T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—Z-_—F+-A=1+—BIFE

2. Application of Amendments to Hong Kong 2. EAEBNBHEEN(EBMBERE
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (Continued) B DIERT A (1)

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments

ZNER B ST AT FE A DA TS 2 2R AR e Al R AR SRR R T

to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective: BRI HREER M EREFTA ¢

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related BRI SR (R A4 RGBS
Amendments? £175

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework? BB IS LR e A HEL

F3HEFIR)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between BABTRIRE R L E RS NF]a A
HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint BB EB AL PEEIEEL E T B

Venture* R 8285k (1EF]A)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions BAB TR R 202146 H30H 114 £
beyond 30 June 2021 F165 (BRI R) Covid-1916B 811 % B &

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or BESER S5 WEES A TE ST

Non-current and related amendments to ({&3TA) U REEB L FEES T 1H
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020 55T (20209 )}
Amendments to HKAS 1and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies® BREGHENEVRRE ZiHRFE

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 BB HREERER

ELEEYEACCHIRS)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction®

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —

BRAGTEAF6
CHEN)

Rt ERE125%
CHEN)

BBt ERE 1657

Bi A TR

BE-RGELHEERE
B HE BB R

YE - Bz Rkt —hE] A

Proceeds before Intended Use? CHEN) FEIRIFTIZ AR
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling BASHERE37E B AN— JBTITA A2
a Contract® CCHES
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BB B G R BB IR 2ERD018E R
2018-20207 CHEN) 20205 BH FIEH#?
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021. 1 R-T=-—FWMA— B2 BRAZEEERAR -
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. 2 R-T-—F— B2 EBRRZEEHBAR -
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. 3 R-TE-=F—H— B2 4RB 7 EEHMAERR -
¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined. 4 MG B EIE 2 A Bt R RS HAR A ik o

The directors of the Company anticipate the application of all new NATIEETEH - FERAFA D B SR E R
R AP WS E R RERERT AR A R &

HARKEGEMBRTEREATE -

and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited i/
EXBIRERERAF]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB R T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories, or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

3

EXEFTEHE
RAMBRRDIREBEBEGAMAGMRMNES
MR ELERIGRE - RRERGEAUBERMS
FHENSERYEYEIZAPEHNRE - 8
BREMEERERX - LIl - SREVBHRREBEE
BHMARZAERARESF ETMRRINREE QA
DIFTAR ER BRI FEEIA

RRABESRIERE VB RRESEEASE
BRBERANAIRARIFECE - FLL - FER
REANGAMBREABEERBRECLEEENS
FTEREE o

AR A BTG IRR THIR B SE AR BN R R IR AR
2 FBEER T XAEERTBCR

JEE 52 P78 — AR BT A A 78 m A1 AR A B P R O (B
HRTIE

ARENMSE2EENFERSREFRZTHE
BEPTUERERE B B Z B - TNz (E
BT EEBRESKA EABE A ETTAGE ©
KT EERBENDAER @ Mii528EERH
EANHEESAREEREEREERARBZRE
B AIAEBEEEZERE o R%TRAMER
KPR ER S RBEARZ RAETRILELERE
T HEBRAMHME LB 2RK D BEETHE
BAR AERNRZR S - REBMERELER
F1REECFCEERS - UREARERUE
WIREZFEGIMEBSAERNE2RFELZ
AR ERBA G F365REE B E 2 £
{EEERIN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

»‘/T\

A B R R 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE—Z-_—F+_fF=+—HILLFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) EREHEE®E

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements UEoh - BB HREM S - AR E BARAA(ER

are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which BB ABBABEERERANENE 2B ARBE

the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the HERRB/ SEMISRE—  ZR=FK  Fiw

significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, I

which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets o FE—RBABIB DB EBR E‘|’i HEA R 705 B2
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the TS AR & Ek 8BRS 2 WECREH
measurement date; %)

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included o FE_RBABBRTAE —RFAHRELAINZ
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, ARG MZEEE M EBEESEE
either directly or indirectly; and ATEESEEBRZRARE : &

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. J FE=REMABBRIEERA B2 A EREH

ABUE -

The significant accounting policies are set out below. FESHBERETNAT -

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial FEVBHRERBEARARRRAR A REAWE A AZE

statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company il 2 (3 2 ISRk - I —RIEAR AT

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee; J AEREBRRITREZEN

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its J ARENF A2 EREH R A E B R &R
involvement with the investee; and KiEN R

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. . ERHENAZEH D -

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts WMEEERERNETR EM=TFRKHEFR 185k

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of HIREY - AREEEHTAESTHRREAR

the three elements of control listed above. TF A il -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB R T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specially, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary attribute to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit of loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

EXRSTBE®)

HIE AR TINASBEIGHE R RIZEHEREE A
B WRARBREZMNME R REHIERZIEA
i R LZMBARZEAa AR - FHRIR  FR
PUREB K & 2 B BB 12 ) 2 WA B F ST R AN SR R
BEHIEEAREAEE T HEGZMEARZA
IFEF AR A ER R E 2R ER

B MEMEERARSED FBN AR R RIEH
BARIEZRER - MBARNZERARERE
RARBEIGHEE ARIFERES - BRI
IRV SR B A A AR £ ©

A MNE  BEMERRNFBRERELTFE - LA
EESFBREREEEMK SRR PARAERE
iﬁo

AEBEKRB 2R G EEERNARHEERS
& s WA AXMAZREERNFAKIE
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Acquisitions of business are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an asset
and a liability in the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued in October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised , and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in HKFRS
16) as if the acquired leases were new leases at the acquisition
date, except for leases for which (a) the lease term ends within
12 months of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is
of low-value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted
to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease when
compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If,
after reassessment, the net of the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair
value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration that
do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation
is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

o the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the

customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract
are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Group's efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best
depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of goods or
services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on
the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components, including
contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a property which
includes both leasehold land and non-lease building components,
unless such allocation cannot be made reliably.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-lease
components from lease component, and instead account for the
lease component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of motor vehicles and properties that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic
basis over the lease term.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability; and

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities other than adjustments to lease
liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related rent concessions in which
the Group applied the practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end of
the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 3. BEXRESTEE®)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBERRBAE)
Lease liabilities HEEE
At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and REERE B H - ANEERZ A RN HHEFIER
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments BERERKGTEHEAE - RAEHERIBRER
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease WA ER SR REAETE - AIASBEEAHEER
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the 15 B BRE) IS S BRI R E -

lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.

The lease payments include: HEFIERE -

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less . (& E 30 (B 48 B 1 A9 [ B A5 R R A A g
any lease incentives receivable; and WHERE &

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is o ERREEBRESTEBEEENERT
reasonably certain to exercise the option. ZBERENTTEE -

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by R B A& - HE S EL R R R REERIER

interest accretion and lease payments. o

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding BEMMEY A AMITEREERNIHEY K&

adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever the lease ERENtEHERECIMAREREEEER

term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise FEFEE) - RILBEAT - HAHSEEEERFERR

of a purchase option, in which case the related lease liability is BRI B BB AT AL EREIR SR M E (3K

remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a MERETE °

revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the REBRGEMBIRAXAKEER GRS ABEL
consolidated statement of financial position. IHA -
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modlifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the Group
applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for a lease
modification as a separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of
the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using
a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has elected to apply the
practical expedient not to assess whether the change is a lease
modification if all of the following conditions are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised consideration
for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of
the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes in
lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same way it
would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the changes are
not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments
are accounted for as variable lease payments. The related lease
liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with
a corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the
period in which the event occurs.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Sale and leaseback transactions

The Group applies the requirements of HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers to assess whether sale and leaseback
transaction constitutes a sale by the Group.

The Group as a seller-lessee

For a transfer that does not satisfy the requirements as a sale, the
Group as a seller-lessee continues to recognise the assets and
accounts for the transfer proceeds as borrowings within the scope of
HKFRS 9.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the general
borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivables as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable. Such grants are presented under
“other income”.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes/the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits
the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries) after deducting any amount already paid.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to
the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis.
Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for
the business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the Group
considers whether it is probable that the relevant tax authority will
accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be used by
individual group entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable,
the current and deferred taxes are determined consistently with the
tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the
relevant taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most likely
amount or the expected value.

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress as described below)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Buildings and machinery in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by the management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment (other than construction in progress) less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the entire consideration is allocated between the leasehold land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial
recognition. To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-
use assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold
land, the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
° how the intangible asset will generate probable future

economic benefits;
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and

development expenditure (Continued)

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the assets, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, and intangible assets are estimated individually. When it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs,
and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or a cash-generating unit for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-
generating unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a
group of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any gooduwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or
the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or

EXRSTBE®)

RABURERNE S EA B - Er iy — @81
R—BODEERER - DECREEZRMAREE
EEM HNEERREESFMERNEERE
T ERER BN DR ELE - Al O S REZ D
BEMBREELSMICGESELBEMARIEER
WEess - WEARMBR cELBUNIRGEEEN
AR BRE(EE TR -

ARESERRAEREHER N R EREERE
FREREE - RFHEEREER @ fEARKRSR
ENNURARR XN ERE - AR EERRE
RIS ARG B REE R & ER E R (Gt
ME » ARREREMETHAEHFR) -

firfh et BB (IR E LB 2 AT Bl & A5 D7
HifkmE - RIEE(HREELFEM) 2 FREERT
MEEATKEI SR - BLTEEIREIE R — B D BCE
ENRERCELBUNCEEELNNEEEE
msE  AEES—EAReELEL(BRIEEZ
MRTELBUNAREBEXBNEREENRE
B)NEAEEZARSEESMNATRESRE
TTHE - RABRERER - 5o REREN
BAEREENBREEER) - ARIZLOIRE
ZEAREENRAENREEMEE - BERM
BETERDERRERREER L EMA (A
B) HERBEWAEE)RZEZTHNREE -
ERTTOEEREZREBBERELIIDEEZ
B HMEE < BEBEERDABIRFER

R EE IR R - A NEEMREE (KR
TELBM) EEAINEHEBNERT LA -
HEIE NFE O BRE (BT AR R IB W B £ S B SRR
ZEE (SR EEBA)WRERR M EREE R
E{E ° R (ERE R E B ERAKA -

loss.
Annual Report 2021 89 Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
=y EXERFEEARAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB R T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z _—F+_A=1+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on a weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale
include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and non-
incremental costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Shares granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share-based payments reserve). At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based payments reserve. For
shares that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the
shares granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities other than financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost as
measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

EXRETBE®)

ERNEERFERNERBRACREEXSRE
8 B 3 3H PR AR A e 0 BE ) B MR A e M B B ST 89 77
% o BERMERBAEFARRASKRARZH (2F
BRERERNEZNMACNAEKER R XE
B RGRAREMEERTR) RSB EERE
BABNERFHIBE AR R FERE) L’
RE V) ERIREFER K o

TRMEE
EHEEMSERE LT E
TREEE NS B NS BIEAR AR SHARANGT

= -

e  SRMEENERBRANHASRESBNZIER
BARE Rk

s ANKFEBREEAHERAEERES
BXNAERASZRERE

BESN - R E S E R A AT IREC - ARE A
AR E 4 TE R R SHAK ANFT E R S RVE B /A AR

AREABEE -

BESHAAR S A B IA

HIZRE A EN S REENN SR AZER
MEERER - MBBMADH SR EEREAAERR
BERMNTENE - RIEZeREELROREER
BE(ETX) - FHRLREERENEREE 7
BWATIE T — & RS2 S BE E 2 B R
ERBERANZEMR - EHREERENSRH TR
ZEERBRAMREMTBHREERNE - AR
WATBEEZEENHLHRERRMEZ RS
PG E % & BE ERE A ERA BRI ORHER

Annual Report 2021 91
=y

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
EXERFEEARAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

»‘/ﬁ

& BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-Z

T—Ft+ZA=T—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances) and contract
assets which are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS
9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for contract assets and
trade receivables. Trade receivables are categorised into receivables
fully backed by bank bills and not backed by bank bills. The ECL
on contract assets and trade receivables not backed by bank bills is
assessed individually for debtors and contract assets with significant
balances or credit-impaired and/or collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings based primarily on the debtors’
ageing profiles. The ECL for debtors with trade receivables backed
by bank bills is assessed individually taking into consideration of
credit rating and reputation of the banks issuing the bills.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) EREHEEE
Financial assets (Continued) EREEGE)
Impairment of financial assets and contract assets subject to WRIE BB B T3 £ 2E R B O3 R 7 TR (B AT A 2
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued) BEERALEERE(E)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) (i) ZE}—L feraEIE (&)

In particular, the following information is taken into account BEms WTNATHEEERBEGEAE

when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly: IATZE BHER :

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the o SR T A ZINEB(anE ) SRS E B REAR
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal BYE s ERL
credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of o EERBAINETISIEREEERL - f
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, WEARZE - BB AERENEIER
the credit default swap prices for the debtor; FREILAN

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial . BT TE B SR TR E - BB A
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a B R TESeERERABZRIEERE
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its TEBEENEN
debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the o ERARGLEEETE A EE
operating results of the debtor; 1k ;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the . BEARER « &F « SUINREEE
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of S FBHRR E AN EE R (EIF A BEE
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the B BITER BT -
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the HEom E T E 2 AR - BEALMNREH

Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly HBiH30K - AREBERE Eff b B 1) A HE

since initial recognition when contractual payments are more RBUARFEZIZN - BRIEREBESERGE

than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and B ER B VEZER

supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria REETFHERAESZNRETLEEER

used to identify whether there has been a significant increase ?ﬁ%iﬂuﬁ’\]’fgﬁz}ﬂl¥ C WA E B RS .J

in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the FEAE . PUREIRZIEEN S FEm B AT A s RS

criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit EE R EIEEEEN -

risk before the amount becomes past due.
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A s iR M T
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—Z-_—F+-_A=1+—HIFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
(¢)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

EXRETBE®)

EMEEE)
WRIRB B B &R E SN R TT R BRI A) %
BEEREHEENREE)

(ii)

(iii)

BUMER
RABEERRETEMS  EARERLEY
S ER 19 50 B R R (R A TA AT B 2 B
NEBEA - BEAEE (T RAEERE
EMERR)  AAEERAERERNE
o

Eam L XATAER - B REERHER
R AEERREBEROEN  BRIFELRE
EASEIEEBEMBRERABRENS
HEELBE °

CREEHREERE

TREEAERLE —AXZHEYZEREEN
EEAARKRIR S REBER P ENEOEM
WBERATROBREERE -SREELRE
ERENZEEEEER AT B4R #22
5 -

@ BIARBRAGEBREHBAE
b) BRAEK  PIEERIGBHIEM
© ERAZERAEGBERAM KRR
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—RIEERNES K
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and contract assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights. The Group uses a practical
expedient in estimating ECL on trade receivables using a
provision matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables, other
receivables and contract assets where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.

EXRETBE®)

EMEEE)
WRIRB B B &R E SN R TT R BRI A) %
BEEREHEENREE)

(iv)

MRS

BEEERBTEF I FERENRRE R
BEERICERDIE - fltn - EWFHEE
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FB)ETHRBARBEBME(RIFRFEHL
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SRBEESIZFH E M S B E ERIRTT
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o °©
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BR(NFERZBONBEATHRIERAE)
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e BB R T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 3.

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts
it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, consideration
payables, amounts due to directors and bank and other borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

Critical Accounting Judgement and Key Sources
of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company has made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Sale and leaseback transactions - seller-lessee

The Group has entered into sale and leaseback arrangements in
relation to machinery leases with financial institutions. The Group
applied the requirements of HKFRS 15 to assess whether sale and
leaseback transaction constitutes a sale by the Group. When the
Group enters into sale and leaseback agreements, the legal title
of the machinery is transferred to the financial institution, while the
machinery remain in the factories of the Group. The management
considered that the control of these machinery have not been
transferred to the financial institutions and these legal transfers do
not satisfy the requirements of HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as a
sale of the machinery. Thus, the Group as a seller-lessee continues
to recognise the assets and accounts for the transfer proceeds as
borrowings within the scope of HKFRS 9. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group has raised RMB91,792,000 (2020:
RMB137,757,000) borrowings in respect of such sale and leaseback
arrangements. The information about the sale and leaseback
transactions are disclosed in note 18 and note 27.

4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

Critical Accounting Judgement and Key Sources
of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Impairment assessment of ECL for trade receivables not backed
by bank bills and contract assets

The ECL on trade receivables not backed by bank bills and contract
assets is assessed individually for debtors and contract assets with
significant balances or credit-impaired and/or collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings based primarily on the
debtors’ ageing profiles.

The provision rates applied in the provision matrix are estimated
based on the historical observed default rates of the debtors taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable,
supportable and available without undue costs or effort. At the end
of each reporting period, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and updated if required after considering the forward-
looking information that is available to the directors of the Company.
The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables not
backed by bank bills for the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore estimated the expected loss rates for the trade receivables
not backed by bank bills and the contract assets on the same basis.

The allowance for credit losses is sensitive to changes in estimates.
Due to greater financial uncertainty triggered by the COVID-19
pandemic, the Group has increased the expected loss rates in
the current year as there is higher risk that a prolonged pandemic
could led to increased credit default rates. The carrying amounts of
trade receivables not backed by bank bills and contract assets are
RMB783,053,000 (2020: RMB707,250,000) (net of allowance for credit
losses of RMB7,312,000 (2020: RMB6,873,000)) and RMB15,550,000
(2020: RMB18,628,000) (net of allowance for credit losses of nil (2020:
nil)) respectively. The information about the ECL and the Group's
trade receivables not backed by bank bills and contract assets are
disclosed in note 39.

4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—Z-_—SF+-_A=1+—HIFE

5. Revenue 5.

(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

LA ON
(@) REFEFEHHBADHT
Corrugated
medium  Paper-based
paper packaging Total
RS AHEE st
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBTT AR®TT

Types of goods or service ERRRKEER
Sales of corrugated medium paper SHE FAS AR E &
products
Corrugated medium paper AA grade  AARRELES AR 2,455,576 - 2,455,576
Corrugated medium paper C grade CHLIAE A 1,013 - 1,013
Craft paper ARAR 176,814 - 176,814
2,633,403 - 2,633,403
Sales of paper-based packaging HEARBEER
products
Craft box RENAEFE - 629,385 629,385
Honeycomb paper B E AR M - 149,526 149,526
Color box W EARE - 145,695 145,695
- 924,606 924,606
Total FE 2,633,403 924,606 3,558,009
Timing of revenue recognition WA BB
A point in time H—rrE 2L 2,633,403 - 2,633,403
Over time P B el e 2R - 924,606 924,606
2,633,403 924,606 3,558,009

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in the
segment information.

TRINFKBEEP AR AERD FBEFR T
RESHROHEK -

Segment

revenue Elimination Consolidated
P EBBA B Foe)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AR¥TT AR¥TT

Sales of corrugated medium paper SHE FASSAE @

products 2,944,245 (310,842) 2,633,403
Sales of paper-based packaging HEARBEER

products 924,606 - 924,606
Revenue from contracts with customers  REZF & 4RI A 3,868,851 (310,842) 3,558,009
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—Z_—Ft-A=1+—HLFE

5. Revenue (Continued) 5. WA
(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers (a) REEFANNBRADH
Corrugated
medium Paper-based
paper packaging Total
TS 4R REBE et
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT ARBFIT
Types of goods or service ERRRKER
Sales of corrugated medium paper SHE FAS AR E @
products
Corrugated medium paper AA grade  AAZRELIF AR 1,684,546 - 1,684,546
Corrugated medium paper C grade CHBREIS AR 8,302 - 8,302
1,692,848 - 1,692,848
Sales of paper-based packaging HERHBEERD
products
Craft box HRENAEAR - 538,250 538,250
Honeycomb paper EE AR M = 116,668 116,668
Color box =i - 145,275 145,275
- 800,193 800,193
Total st 1,692,848 800,193 2,493,041
Timing of revenue recognition R A BB
A point in time KB 1,692,848 = 1,692,848
Over time RERS R AR - 800,193 800,193
1,692,848 800,193 2,493,041

TRIBREES S DR RS AR
RESENLE -

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in the
segment information.

EXBFERARAT

Segment

revenue Elimination ~ Consolidated
DEBUA i N
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT ARETFT ARBFT

Sales of corrugated medium paper SHE A SALE @
products 1,839,318 (146,470) 1,692,848

Sales of paper-based packaging HEAREEEM
products 800,193 - 800,193
Revenue from contracts with customers R B & F & #IHUA 2,639,511 (146,470) 2,493,041
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z - —F+_A=1+—HILFE

5. Revenue (Continued)

(b) Performance obligations for contracts with customers

(1)

@)

Sales of corrugated medium paper (revenue recognised
at a point in time)

For sales of corrugated medium paper products, revenue
is recognised when control of goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the
customer’s specific location. The normal credit term is
30-120 days.

The Group requires certain customers to provide
deposits. When the Group receives a deposit before
delivery of goods, this will give rise to contract liabilities
at the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on
the specific contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.

Sales of paper-based packaging (revenue recognised
over time)

The Group's contracts with customers for the
manufacture and sale of paper-based packaging
products are tailor-made based on customers’
specification with no alternative use to the Group.
Taking into account the contract terms, the legal and
regulatory environment in the PRC, some of the contracts
provide the Group an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date and revenue is
recognised over time based on the stage of completion
of the contract using input method. The normal credit
term is 30120 days.

Please refer to note 23 for details on recognition of
contract assets.

(c) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contracts with customers
The performance obligation under the contract for the sales

of corrugated medium paper and paper-based packaging

products has original expected duration of less than one

year and as permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price

allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—HIFE

6. Segment Information 6. DEPEFR

The Group is principally engaged in manufacture and sale of AEEFZRFREREERG CA R BEE
corrugated medium paper and paper-based packaging products. m e

The Group is organised into business units based on their products, REEREEREDFEBEL - WHREFEFEMD
based on which information is prepared and reported to the Group's BH - 2HRAEEFELERFE (BIRQFHANT
chief operating decision maker (i.e. the executive directors of the BF)  UEERD @E&iﬁnﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ REER
Company) for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment BEBMBSMEENESRZESHBANE 2
of performance. The Group's reportable segments under HKFRS 8 PNEEED BRI

Operating Segments are identified as two main operations:

1. Corrugated medium paper: this segment produces and sells 1. R - D EBEERIEE RSO -
corrugated medium paper.

2. Paper-based packaging: this segment produces and sells 2. #HEeE: WHHEERHERROKER -
paper-based packaging products.

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results AEERFZMREEDEE DA K E
by reportable and operating segment. BOWIT -
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE-_—F+-H=+—HLFE
Corrugated
medium  Paper-based
paper packaging Total
B4 HRBEHE #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR¥T T AR¥TT

REVENUE WA
External sales HNER S & 2,633,403 924,606 3,558,009
Inter-segment sales D EPFESHE 310,842 - 310,842
Segment revenue DEBUA 2,944,245 924,606 3,868,851
Eliminations #85 (310,842)
Group revenue EEWA 3,558,009
Segment profit 73 B Al 232,566 13,688 246,254
Unallocated other income RAOBEMUA 614
Unallocated corporate expenses ROREERE (9,552)
Profit before tax PR AR A 237,316
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—Z_—Ft-A=1—HLFE

6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. DEER )
Other segment information included in the measurement of RO HEAMBEEMOBER
segment results
Corrugated
medium  Paper-based
paper packaging Tota
B4 HRBEHE et
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT ARBTFT
Depreciation on property, plant and M - BE REETE
equipment 75,643 20,462 96,105
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEETE 7,081 13,250 20,331
Amortisation of intangible assets EmIEERE 602 - 602
Total depreciation and amortisation W R ssaEt 83,326 33,712 117,038
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories & : EEMEMNEFEE SR (58,820) - (58,820)
Less: Amount capitalised in intangible & : EEAMMEREFL EESTE
assets (105) - (105)
24,401 33,712 58,113
Impairment losses recognised on trade  HtE 5 & E Ath FE KGR IE TEFRHY
and other receivables RIEEE 482 806 1,288
Impairment losses recognised on ME - BB KR AR
property, plant and equipment BEEE 22,229 - 22,229
Annual Report 2021 103 Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited

=y EXERFEEARAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A e B R I
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-2-—FT-A={ BLEE

6. Segment Information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

6.

DEBER (@)

BE_Z-_ZF+_A=+—-HLEE

Corrugated
medium Paper-based
paper packaging Total
FLES B REBE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMET T ARET T AREET T

REVENUE PN
External sales HNEBIHE 1,692,848 800,193 2,493,041
Inter-segment sales D EBFESHE 146,470 - 146,470
Segment revenue DEBUA 1,839,318 800,193 2,639,511
Eliminations I (146,470)
Group revenue £BIMA 2,493,041
Segment profit 73 B A 46,815 22,786 69,601
Unallocated other income R BLEAUA 3,623
Unallocated corporate expenses RO ERE (8,293)
Profit before tax BREERT &= A 64,931
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_ZT-—F+-A=1T—HIFE
6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. DEER )
Other segment information included in the measurement of FTENEEEMBIEEMAEER

segment results:

Corrugated
medium Paper-based
paper packaging Total
FLES Sk REBE Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMET T ARET T AREET T

Depreciation on property, plant and M - BE REETE

equipment 68,251 23,257 91,508
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREESENE 8,830 12,204 21,034
Total depreciation ELE 77,081 35,461 112,542
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories & : EEMEMNEFEE SR (50,944) - (50,944)
Less: Amount capitalised in intangible & : EEAMMEHEFL EESTE

assets (136) - (136)
26,001 35,461 61,462
Impairment losses recognised on WE 5 K H R BRIBFER

trade and other receivables JEEE 1,825 3,230 5,055
Impairment losses recognised on ME - BB KR AR

property, plant and equipment BEEE 1,215 - 1,215
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the EE S BT BUR R 3 A LB |G
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note BURAER o D BB 5 2 REAY = A -
3. Segment results represented the profit earned by each WS B WA R o

segment without allocation of corporate income and expenses.

Annual Report 2021 105 Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
T —FFR IEXBIBRZERAGRAF]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB R T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—Z-_—F+-A=1+—BIFE

6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. DEER )

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its AEEFEERNBRADTAT :
major products:

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Corrugated medium paper AA grade AAL FUAB A 2,455,576 1,684,546
Corrugated medium paper C grade CHR SR 1,013 8,302
Craft paper HR4K 176,814 -
Craft box R ENAEAE 629,385 538,250
Honeycomb paper BEaAsm 149,526 116,668
Color box K e 145,695 145,275
3,558,009 2,493,041
The Group's operations and customers are all located in the REBEEBREPEMNFE o
PRC.
For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no customer HE_Z-_—FR-_T-_TF+-_A=+—
contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for the HIEFE @ WEEAEPRBRFELHARE
respective year. E R AT RI0%IA L ©
Information of the reporting and operating segments of the MFEELERRESBRIMEBEIRD B RKER
Group reported to the chief operating decision maker for the FHMERENAEEFE 2RI EES AR
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment TREEMEEREE Al WEZ25]H
does not include any assets and liabilities. Accordingly, no HEEREE -

segment assets and liabilities are presented.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

7. Other Income 7. HygA
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Interest income from bank deposits ITIFRH B A 4,469 5,057
Imputed interest income from rental deposits HERSHER SWA 104 96
Management fee income ERERA 27 39
Net income from sales of scrap materials HE R A FEE 2,503 1,249
Government grants related to income (note) B A B 128 0 T e B (PR =) 37,115 14,290
Government grants amortised from FT AR RE A B 85 ) ST 8 B (P E34)
deferred income (note 34) 4,488 4,100
Sundry income IR 2,009 1,456
Total st 50,715 26,287
Note: Government grants received by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries as financial BT« ZNER A AR B P B 1 ) 7 ER A BT R B R 3 755 B R 8
incentives for operation. No conditions are attached to these financial B - %5 B B0 A Y AR AR A -

incentives.

8. Impairment Losses under Expected Credit Loss 8. BEAHGEEBFBEERIRBERE

Model, Net of Reversal HIBR#EEE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECTEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBFIT
Impairment losses recognised on trade and HE 5 R H b BRI RER AR EEE
other receivables 1,288 5,055
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A e B R I
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-2-—FT-A={ BLEE

9. Other Gains and Losses 9. Hfth=mREE
2021 2020
—E-—F —TFF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETTT
Exchange loss (gain), net bE s (B51R) - %ER 2,670 (1,294)
Loss on disposals of property, plant and HEWZE « BFERREERE - 558

equipment, net 1,377 2,280

Impairment losses recognised on property, plant  Bt¥I% - B/FE &R FETER AR E RS (iEE)
and equipment (note) 22,229 1,215
26,276 2,201

Note: During the year, certain machinery became idle after the completion of
"coal-to-gas” conversion project in two of the subsidiaries in the Group. As a

BiEE : MAFE » AEEE T MKHTER R TTRERER B
EIRAR  BETHRERFEERE  BERERER

result impairment losses were recognised in profit or loss. RERE -

10. Finance Costs 10. MERAE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECTEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBETT

Interest on: IATIEER BVAILE -

Bank and other borrowings SR1T R H A& 58,017 45,288
Lease liabilities HEBAB 4,016 3,125
Others HAtb 798 1,202
62,831 49,615
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—Z-_—F+-A=1+—BHIFE

11. Profit Before Tax 11. BRBEANER
Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging (crediting): BRELATR A E R (GEA) THISIE :
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREET T
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y% - WE REETE 96,105 91,508
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 20,331 21,034
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERH 602 -
Total depreciation and amortisation Pree M S 117,038 112,542
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories B BEERMENTFEE SR (58,820) (50,944)
Less: Amount capitalised in intangible assets B BEEAMEMEREESTE (105) (136)
58,113 61,462
Covid-19-related rent concessions (note 18) Covid-19t8RMH & E=R (K17E18) - (1,411)
Auditor’s remuneration =B RN & 1,950 1,950
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense BRAERATNEEK A 2,767,047 2,028,040
Staff costs BTA
— directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments —EF RITHREE S (FI:E13)
(note 13) 5,504 4,975
— salaries and other benefits costs for staff other —EERITBBHAINE TS &
than directors and chief executive HiwEH 296,020 220,508
— retirement benefits schemes contributions for —E B RITREBEAINE TH R IRE R
staff other than directors and chief executive HEIHR 22,053 4,281
Total staff costs BT KAN42%E 323,577 229,764
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories B BENMENEESRE (54,677) (47,354)
Less: Amount capitalised in intangible assets B BENMENBETEESR (258) (841)
268,642 181,569
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BE—Z_—Ft-A=1+—HLFE

12. FTBFHiMAx

12. Income Tax Expense

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTFTT

PRC Enterprise Income Tax: FR I ZEPRAS A -

Current tax BNHEARL TR 27,271 3,579
Overprovision in prior years BITFERREEE (839) (3,615)
26,432 (36)

Withholding tax TELRPTIS 4,614 1,237
Deferred tax (note 31) IRER A (FFE31) (2,008) 1,170
29,038 2,371

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group
has no assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years. Certain PRC subsidiaries
approved as advanced-technology enterprises by the relevant
government authorities are subject to a preferential tax rate of 15%.
During the year, five (2020: four) PRC subsidiaries approved as “small
and low-profit enterprises” by the relevant government authorities
are subject to two-tiered preferential tax rates. The first RMB1 million
of taxable profit of the qualifying group entities will be taxed at 2.5%

AEBERMEFREABETEELRRBGN - &
W ER BB EBIEL RS -

RIBPBEEEMASTOE(TREMEBUE ) RO
STOEERIED] - BB QR R MR EFE1
R25% ° HTHEHBRRERTEBE RRER
BIBMEER  IZEBEREIS% - RAFE -
EEMBRR(ZZE-ZF  MF)BNERE R
ERlEEFEE] IZEMEHEERE -4
EREEETEREZEARK I BB THNERT G
MIR25%AB(—FE_TF : 5%) » MEBARE
1B S TTRERBOE M RIIR10% R ©

(2020: 5%) and taxable profit above RMB1 million will be taxed at

10%.
Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited 110 Annual Report 2021
EXBFERARAT —E-—FFEH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB R T
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BE—Z-_—F+-A=1+—BHIFE

12. Income Tax Expense (Continued)

The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

12.

Fri8®ip (@)
AEERIBE Y HEA B R M2 IR E AR
BATH RIS T -

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFTT
Profit before tax B 5 Al g A 237,316 64,931
PRC Enterprise Income Tax at 25% R25%T R B ATE T 59,329 16,233
Tax effect of income tax credit granted to Bt S A B R A B B AN R R PTG AR S 1Y
subsidiaries for research and development costs i/ 2 (25,638) (12,361)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax IR R -
purpose 6,499 2,215
Effect of tax exemption on concessionary rates R BIFTE N R R BB RS R
granted to the PRC subsidiaries & (19,820) (4,401)
Tax effect of tax deductible temporary differences A TEFR R F0H1 B BF 14 2= KB A9 i 75 57 22
not recognised 1,631 1,705
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REREE RO L 2,447 1,946
Utilisation of deductible temporary differences B) A SRR MR R A E R 2 58
previously not recognised - (278)
Overprovision in prior years BAFEREREE (839) (3,615)
Withholding tax on profits distribution of the PRC ¥/ B E A A& 5 B A B E TR TE IR
subsidiaries (note) Frfs® (FiaE) 5,429 927
Tax expense for the year REEHIAMI 29,038 2,371

Note: In accordance with the PRC tax circular (Guoshuihan 2008 112) effective
from 1 January 2008, the PRC withholding income tax at the rate of 10%
is applicable to dividends declared to “non-resident” investors who do

not have an establishment or place of business in the PRC. For “resident”

investors with establishment or place of business in the PRC, the PRC

withholding income tax is 5%. The above withholding income tax represents

the withholding income tax provided on the profits arising from the PRC

subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021
which are available for distribution amounting to RMB77,500,000 (2020:
RMB12,400,000). During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, one
(2020: one) of the subsidiaries applied the “resident” certification of its

investor and the withholding tax rate changed from 10% to 5%.

C AR BB A (B 9200811258 ) - —TENF
—A—B8  RPBEARRIEESIBINEER D
EREBHIR SRR 0% T RBURTFBRAEE - ©
FRRIEESISANER | CENEIRAMEHE
KA ABS% o ERAIIBRE/RESE_SE=_—F
+ZA=t—HLEE HARAFEHBRAEE
ADEFEARKT7,500,000T(ZE 24 : ARK
12,400,0007C) FrEH R TEIRFISHL - BHEZT = —F K
—ZE-TE+-A=+—ALEE  —FKHBRAR(Z
ToTF —R)EAREENIBERIFMHAE » MiE
RSB R Al 10%22 A5% °
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BE—Z-_—F+-A=1+—BIFE

13. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 13. EERTREZME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 (2020: 7) directors ENSENTERES(ZE_2F - +8)RITHA
and the chief executive were as follows: OB T -

Retirement

Performance benefits

related schemes
Fee Salary bonus contributions Total

ERER
e e RARSE sHEIHRER #st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TxR

For the year ended BE-Z-_—F+=A

31 December 2021 =t+—HILFE
Executive directors HWITES
— Hu Zheng —#ALE - 999 - 15 1,014
— Hu Hanchao — HERA - 1,000 - - 1,000
— Hu Hancheng — ERR - 999 - 15 1,014

Non-executive director EHRITES
— Chen Riyue —RAA 360 - - - 360

Independent non-executive B FEITEE

directors
— Chung Kwok Mo John ~ —#EEIE 166 - - - 166
— Shin Yick Fabian — %5 149 - - - 149
— Liew Fui Kiang — 2z 149 - - - 149
Chief executive TR
— Hu Jianpeng — iR - 1,213 420 19 1,652
824 4,211 420 49 5,504
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—FT_A=1t—HLFE

13. EERTHEATMES @)

13. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments
(Continued)

Retirement
Performance benefits
related schemes
Fee Salary bonus contributions Total
RIREF
e e KRS FHEIE kS
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AREET T AREET T AREET T AREET T
For the year ended BE—ZT-=F+=8
31 December 2020 =+—HIEE
Executive directors HITESE
— Hu Zheng —#ALE = 1,000 = 18 1,018
— Hu Hanchao —tAERA = 1,000 = = 1,000
— Hu Hancheng — R = 1,000 = 18 1,018
Non-executive director EHRITES
— Chen Riyue —RAA 360 - - - 360
Independent non-executive X IFTTES
directors
— Chung Kwok Mo John  — &R 174 = = = 174
— Shin Yick Fabian — %5 156 = = = 156
— Liew Fui Kiang — 2= 156 - - - 156
Chief executive 1T AREL
— Hu Jianpeng — BAENs = 900 188 5 1,093
846 3,900 188 41 4,975

Note: Mr. Hu Hancheng and Mr. Hu Zheng are the co-chairmen of the Company Wit : HERALERPELELERBEAAARBEESRER |
KAEBEENHE O ERECHEESERIEERY
WNE o ERFITATESERITREIME IREE
BBRARARAEBEHIRERBHOME - ERAT
FRNTEERBLIFRTEFTHE IR BREREER
RIEERERBHME -

and their emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered
by them as the co-chairmen. The executive directors’ emoluments and chief
executive’s emoluments shown above were for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
emoluments of non-executive director and independent non-executive
directors shown above were for their services as the directors of the
Company.

During both years, no emolument was paid by the Group to the directors R EEE » AN B30 8 A & B/ TR B E L 1E
B (ERABBMERMARNEEFE - KR EF
B - WHESRRITBEHMEEMIE

or the chief executive as compensation for loss of office or an inducement
to join the Group. None of the directors or the chief executive waived any

emoluments for both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—Z-_—F+-A=1+—BIFE

14. Five Highest Paid Employees 14. IEBEHEET
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year RAFE - AEERERSHUES FETHEAR
included the chief executive (2020: the chief executive and two (ZE_ZF  1THRBHEEAREBES) - ENEF1S
directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 13 R EXMFE13 c EBUE(ZE_FF : B)W
above. Details of the remunerations for the year of the remaining FARRRESHITHERE N &S T HIE S N FENE
four (2020: two) highest paid employees who are neither a director BT :

nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Salaries e 4,518 1,709
Performance related bonus FIAERATEAL 2,487 1,125
Retirement benefits schemes contributions RIREFFTE 49 8

7,054 2,842
Their emoluments were within the following bands: FENMENTATEE :

Number of employees

BT A%

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 7T % 1,500,000/ 7T 1 -

HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,000 7T 1 2

HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,0017% 75 22,500,000/ 7T 1 -

HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 7.2 3,000,000/ 7T 1 -

4 2

During the year, no emoluments of the five highest paid individuals RAFEVERENAESEETMAL(BREEER

(including directors and other employees) were incurred as Hith g 8 ) KB € ToVER I A & [ 55 B B B
inducement to join the Group or compensation for loss of office. BmEAE
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15. Dividend

Dividend for ordinary shareholders of the Company recognised as
distribution during the year:

1 5- Hﬁ/%\
AEERBRDRT AL AL BRI S :

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETTT

2020 Final — RMB0.03 (2020: 2019 final - RMB0.03) —ZT =4 ERH — SR ARK0.037T
per share (ZZ2=FF : T NFERH —
FREAR#0.037T) 15,000 15,000

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 of RMB0.09 (2020: final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 of RMBO0.03)
per ordinary share, in an aggregate amount of RMB45,000,000 (2020:
RMB15,000,000), has been proposed by the directors of the Company
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
general meeting.

16. Earnings per Share
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the following data:

R|ERLERE  ARRESERENEE=Z
T F+ A=+ BHLEFERBREERAR
OO (ZE=EF : ZE_FF+A=+—
AlLLtFEERPBRESBRARK0OZT) @ A5FAR
# 45,000,0007T (=T —Z4F : A K% 15,000,000
L) MEBERRAEERRBFE KSR o

16. BRER
AREHER ANEEEREABMZATEIRAE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TEF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBETT

Earnings ZF
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the R EBRERBFNARRHEE AEMG
Company for the purpose of basic earnings F RN
per share 160,841 54,772
Number of shares ROEE
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of FA oA B G AR BN B ) 3 R AR AR 2K

basic earnings per share

500,000,000 500,000,000

No diluted earnings per share for both 2021 and 2020 were
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue for both
2021 and 2020.

HR - E - FR_E-_EFHERTEEL R
I MW B2y T - —FR T _TFHNERE
SEAF o
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment 17. Y1% - BERR®E

EXBFERARAT

Leasehold Furniture Motor Plantand  Construction
Buildings improvements  and fixtures vehicles machinery  in progress Total
BF HENERE GAREEEE "E T ERBIR &zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT
CosT KA
At 1 January 2020 WZE-TE-H-H 189,466 11,309 41,606 20953 1,143,810 58,033 1,465,177
Additions AE 164 32 1,248 870 - 137,657 139,971
Acquisition of asubsidiary ~ WEHBAE 34,530 786 807 372 53,421 12,706 105,976
Disposals HE (125) (1,620) (1,202 (1,078) (13,480) (1,369) (18,874)
Transfer from construction BER TSR
in progress 18,232 - 3,240 - 140,171 (161,643) -
At 31 December 2020 i a2
+=-A=+-H 242,267 10,507 45,699 24471 1,323922 45,384 1,692,250
Additions AE - - 390 3448 33,559 200,293 237,690
Disposals HE () (438) (1,335) (2,077) (64,126) (672) (68,653)
Transfer from construction ~ MERTIRER
in progress 12,035 - 964 - 165,938 (178,937) -
At 31 December 2021 WZE=—F
+=A=1-AR 254,297 10,069 45718 25,842 1,459,293 66,068 1,861,287
DEPRECIATION AND WERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2020 RZE-TE-A-H 92,956 9,539 19,811 17,601 432979 - 572,886
Provided for the year FRER 10,983 1,090 3,040 2530 73,865 - 91,508
Eliminated on disposals L E R (42) (1,618) (1.118) (941) (10,063) = (13,782)
Impairment loss recognised ~ INERTERAAEEE
in profit or loss - - - - 1,215 - 1,215
At 31 December 2020 RZB-ZF
+=-A=+-H 103,897 9,011 21,733 19,190 497,996 - 651,827
Provided for the year FREHR 12,124 742 2,315 2,123 78,201 - 96,105
Eliminated on disposals HER (@) (40) (1,144) (1,860) (37,939) - (40,987)
Impairment loss recognised ~ INERERAAERSE
in profit or loss - - - - 22229 - 22229
At 31 December 2021 RZBE-—&
+=A=+-H 116,017 9,713 22904 20,053 560,487 - 729174
CARRYING VALUES fREE
At 31 December 2021 RZE=—%
+-A=1-H 138,280 356 2814 5,789 898,806 66,068 1,132,113
At 31 December 2020 NZZ-%%
+-A=1-H 138,370 1,49 23,966 5,281 825926 45,384 1,040,423
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—HIFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 17. Y% - BERRE®

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual values at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 4.50%-18%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term of

the lease, or 20%-50%
Furniture and fixtures 11.25%-18%
Motor vehicles 18%
Plant and machinery 4.50%-18%
Details of property, plant and equipment pledged are set out in note
37.

During the year, certain machinery became idle after the completion
of “coal-to-gas” conversion project in two of the subsidiaries in the
Group. The management concluded that there was an indication
for impairment and conducted impairment assessment on these
machinery with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB36,388,000. The
recoverable amount of the machinery, within the corrugated medium
paper segment, is estimated individually.

The recoverable amount of the machinery has been determined
based on their fair value less costs of disposal. The Group
estimates the fair value less costs of disposal of the machinery
by obtaining direct quotation from the potential buyer. The fair
value measurement is categorised into Level 2 fair value hierarchy.
The machinery were impaired to their recoverable amount of
RMB14,159,000, which is their carrying value at year end and the
impairment losses of RMB22,229,000 have been recognised in profit
or loss during the year.

BRIERTRRIN - ERATIIME - BERZRBHEREE
s RAEFHERER - WERER S AIERFHAR
TONFERE LRI E -

BF 4.50%%18%
THEMZEEE FHAIEAMR 55 20% 2= 50%

NG E A%
FEREETEEE 11.25% % 18%
RE 18%
R BS B A 4.50%%18%

EEMYE - BB MREF BN o

RAEE zx% EE T RSB A ek R
HEEE % ATHRERBERE - EERERA
HIRRERR I;TEEETEAEM%%SOOOEE@
ZEWWEITRET S - ZSHHMBR AR TED
o He el & Ee @R AET o

EA%&%WE’\]EMK@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁi@ﬁiﬁéﬁfﬁ?ﬁﬂié%#ﬁ
& BREAABERBEXAG - RAEFEDR
RAREE B - SHERER MTJ%HE’J—M&
O & R AR14,159,0007T © RFEREREE - I
AN ERN B iR R (B R 1E A R#522,229,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—Z-_—F+-A=1+—BIFE

18. Right-of-Use Assets

8. EHAEEE

Leasehold Leased Machinery
lands properties and vehicles Total
HE T MEHEE HEERER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTET
At 31 December 2021 R_EBE-_—F+=-_A=+—H
Carrying amount BREE 166,806 20,486 5,802 193,094
At 31 December 2020 R-ZF-_FF+_A=1+—H
Carrying amount BRmEE 172,583 19,316 6,044 197,943
For the year ended HE-Z-—F+-A
31 December 2021 =T—HIFE
Depreciation charge WEEH 5,525 11,815 2,991 20,331
For the year ended HE-_Z-ZTF+-A
31 December 2020 =t+—HIEFE
Depreciation charge HEEH 5,888 12,569 2,577 21,034
2021 2020
= —ECoTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETTT
Expense relating to short-term leases RHETR SRR 4,319 3,636
Total cash outflow for leases HEZRE& R B 23,726 20,787
Additions to right-of-use assets mEﬁﬁﬁT&ﬁE 15,482 1,259
Disposal of right-of-use assets due to lease LI EREGREEE
termination - (6,282)
For both years, the Group leases various offices, warehouses, PREEE  ANEEGFHELEBEHERAE THAS - §

machinery and vehicles for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 12 months to 22 years, but may have
extension options as described below. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings where its
manufacturing facilities are primarily located and office buildings.
The Group is the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire these property interests. The leasehold land
components of these owned properties are presented separately
only if the payments made can be allocated reliably.

B HW A58 - HEABEEMRE12(8 8 E22F5]
SAEK - BN XETA] RE AR IE RAR EE - THE
G TR ERIEERER - WS EZNTRIER K
&M o PAEEE FE BR R a4 1S AT B ER HABR 4R AR + X
SEEREHNZEERETERTFESHZHM -

AN - AEERABEE BEERGHAE < TEE
FRBRAERT - AEBETIMEME s (BHEE
%%TET:U&)Z’T:‘.:EH%/\ o BALLEYE SR
fEH —IRMETRRIFR &t—ﬁ#ﬁ%%ﬂ’ﬁﬂ — s 2%%)
@Eﬁﬁfiﬁmlﬁab SO BRER N8BT
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—HIFE

18. Right-of-Use Assets (Continued) 18. EAEEE®)
The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for motor vehicles RNEBEMRTERYET LERHEE - R=F
and properties. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the portfolio of —FRIBIEF+A=+—8H" ﬁﬁﬂﬂ&i
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to S8 FRAAEERAAEAAROEREEREE
which the short-term lease expense disclosed above. HEEU -
The Group has extension options in a number of leases for REEGE THEEEZEEREERE - At EE
properties. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in ZIKE. SETEREEFRERARGEL - A
terms of managing the assets used in the Group's operations. The REBEET - KNEHEAIHAKRTE - mh
majority of extension options held are exercisable only by the Group ?%Hﬂﬁ%@ﬁ%ﬂ/\ﬁﬁ °

and not by the respective lessors.

The Group assesses at lease commencement date whether it is REBNREERG AT GRS EBETHLER
reasonably certain to exercise the extension options. The potential BEEE o TRMARAER TS ERETHLER
exposures to these future lease payments for extension options in BIEEM S i B EAARKREERNK
which the Group is not reasonably certain to exercise is summarised
below:
Potential Potential
future lease future lease
payments payments
not included not included
Lease in lease Lease in lease
liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities
recognised as at recognised as at
asat 31 December asat 31 December
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
2021 (undiscounted) 2020 (undiscounted)
R-2=— R-F-TF
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-H
R-Z=-F FHAHEEE —TTF TFHAHEEE
tTZR=+—-H WEEAREE Jr ﬂ T—H HEERREE
BRNEEEE ARCRER) BROEEEE  IRCRER)
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TT AR¥TFT AREFT AREFT
Properties E 6,723 20,819 12,932 20,819
In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain BEoh 8 A R E R A 8 E N 15
to exercise an extension option upon the occurrence of either a BASANER  AEBEENTHES J—‘Eﬁﬂﬁ@
significant event or a significant change in circumstances that is TR EREE BE T FR_T_FF
within the control of the lessee. During the year ended 31 December TZA=T—HIEFE  BEZEREZZERLLN
2021 and 2020, there is no such triggering event. N
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—Z-—H+-A=1+—HItFE

18. Right-of-Use Assets (Continued) 18. EAEEE®)

Lease liabilities of RMB45,315,000 (2020: RMB45,224,000) are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of RMB37,671,000 as at 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB37,259,000). The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no rent
concession provided by the lessors.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, lessors of various offices,
equipment and vehicles provided rent concessions to the Group
through rent reductions ranging from 1% to 100% over two to six
months.

Some of these rent concessions occurred as a direct consequence of
COVID-19 pandemic and met all of the conditions in HKFRS 16.46B,
and the Group applied the practical expedient not to assess whether
the changes constitute lease modifications. The effects on changes
in lease payments due to forgiveness or waiver by the lessors for
the relevant leases of RMB1,411,000 were recognised as negative
variable lease payments.

Some of these rent concessions were not within the scope of Covid-
19-related rent concessions. The reduction of the Group’s lease
liabilities of RMB199,000 and a corresponding adjustment of the
same amount to the right-of-use assets were recognised.

To better manage the Group's capital structure and financing needs,
the Group sometimes enters into sale and leaseback arrangements
in relation to machinery leases. These legal transfers do not satisfy
the requirements of HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale of the
machinery. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
raised RMB91,792,000 (2020: RMB137,757,000) borrowings in respect
of such sale and leaseback arrangements.

Details of the leasehold lands pledged are set out in note 37.

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
notes 28 and 39.

R-_E-_—F+-_A=+—HBH EHEIAHEESE
EAARBAISIS00T(ZE_ZTF : AR
#45,224000T) KRBT REEERARK
37,671,000 (ZE = F : A R ¥ 37,259,000
L) c REBAAREREERBERERI - BH
T E R INE R 2% - HREETSRER
RPELR o

HE T —F+-A=t—HItEETETAL
FAARENHASES -

BE_Z-TF+-_A=+—HILFE  HFTHL
= REMIEHHEAENRENE A AR R
NF1%E100%EERAEBRHESEE -

BHELEBRCOVID-19RIBAEEEYR - K&
BB EERNE1646BIEHRTERNTE G - A
SEEERARENE  TETEEHREDHRTEN
MEEFT - AFHHEENHEARRKARRER
ENTEEHHTEARKE,411,0007T 2 #ER 0] &
HENKAE -

BHESEBLTER Covid-19HHH S BB
HEAN EEILEENHEBERIARE
199,0007T K {5 R B EIRARE S R IEAREHE

AEHHMERAEEMNERNERBIRESR K - &
SETRAERBEI VERARZH - 25%
EEEV IS B SMEHRELERIFI5KOAE
NHEZSEMLE REBEE=-Z=_—F+=A
=+—HLEEE  FAEECHAZSEAHANTHE
EAREE1,792,000tHfER(ZZ_ZF : AR
137,757,0007T) °

B RS D IS BN M EE37

EHAEaENHAERHOMAFBEIHR N E28 &
Mf5E39 ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

19. Intangible Assets

9. BILEE

Development

costs
B R R A
RMB’000
AREBTTT
COST AR
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-ZF—-H—H 8,563
Additions NE 4,120
At 31 December 2020 RZE-_ZF+-_A=+—H 12,683
Additions NE 1,898
At 31 December 2021 RZEBE-_—F+=-_A=+—H 14,581
AMORTISATION By
At 1 January and 31 December 2020 RZEZEF—A—ART+ZA=1+—H 8,563
Charge for the year FAEH 602
At 31 December 2021 KRB —F+=-_A=+—H 9,165
CARRYING VALUES FREE
At 31 December 2021 —E-—F+=ZA=1+—H 5,416
At 31 December 2020 —E-ZF+=-A=1+—H 4,120

Development costs are internally generated.

The above intangible asset has finite useful lives. Such intangible asset
is amortised on a straight-line basis over 5 years.

FZERARE AR -

LtiEREENAERFHER - ABVEERE
RROED SR

20. Inventories 20. &
2021 2020
—EB-—fF —ECTE
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
Raw material and consumables ERE N E R 127,365 119,657
Finished goods X & 95,918 50,093
223,283 169,750

During the year, the cost of inventories capitalised in intangible assets
amounted to RMB1,366,000 (2020: RMB2,622,000).

Details of inventories pledged are set out in note 37.

RAFE  TERAEFEENMCRELEEMN
TEBARKI136600L(ZF_FF : AR
2,622,000)7C °

B ERF R BENMEST -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—Z-_—F+-A=1+—BIFE

21. Trade and Other Receivables 21. EGREMEWFIE
2021 2020
:_—;'i: _$ =5 7

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T T AREET T

Trade receivables not backed by bills EEELZENE S ERGIE 592,568 513,348
Less: allowance for credit losses ﬂ EEEERE (7,143) (6,728)
585,425 506,620

Trade receivables backed by other bills NEAMZER R RENE 5 R 197,797 200,775
Less: allowance for credit losses L EEEERE (169) (145)
197,628 200,630

Total trade receivables not backed by bank bills BRITRBEREENE 5 EKEIAERTE 790,365 714,123
Less: allowance for credit losses A EEEERE (7,312) (6,873)
783,053 707,250

Trade receivables backed by bank bills NRITEBRREENE HEIGIE 268,533 172,076
Less: allowance for credit losses B S EEIERHE (762) (327)
267,771 171,749

Total trade receivables B S W IEE R 1,050,824 878,999
Advances to suppliers AT ?ﬁm 11,600 18,232
Prepayments TERTER 20,434 5,975
Other receivables Eﬁﬁﬁiﬂ&m 18,763 19,716
Less: allowance for credit losses B BB RHE (143) (181)
50,654 43,742

Total trade and other receivables B R EMER AL 1,101,478 922,741

As at 1 January 2020, trade receivables from contracts with customers

amounted to RMB728,444,000.

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 120 days from
the invoice date to its trade customers except for the newly accepted

customers for which payment is made when goods are delivered. For

customers with good credit quality, the Group also allows them to
settle with bills before the due date of settlement. Those bank bills
with maturity ranging from 60 to 180 days are guaranteed by banks.

\ZZE_ZFF—A—H BEFGNELNESREK
HIE R ARK728,444,0007T

AEEREERAABSRAE  MESRFREET
HI0E120RMEAE - ERENEFPEARE M
REFEAR - HREEBRINERE » AEEITTAGT
HRGEEZIHARUERESE - 2SR hIRTE
R - EIHAA N T60= 180K °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—Z_—Ft-A=1—HLFE

21.

Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, total gross amounts of bills received
amounting to RMB466,330,000 (2020: RMB372,851,000) before ECL
are held by the Group for future settlement of trade receivables, of
which certain bills were further discounted/endorsed by the Group.
The Group continues to recognise their full carrying amounts at the
end of the reporting period and details are disclosed in note 22. All
bills received by the Group are with a maturity period of less than
one year.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables not backed by
bills presented based on dates of delivery of goods at the end of the
reporting period:

21.

BEZRHEHMEWFIE S
R-E-_—F+-A=1+—8 AEEZHENEE
REENEHETEH(E B E 18R A A R #466,330,0007T
(ZZT-TF : AR¥372,851,0007T) * BIEE %A
HESRUWHIE  ERETEREEAEBRE—S
BN B E - RBFEHR  AEEEEREAREEE
258 - BRAFBRKIE2HE - AEEREE
ZER—FEAREIE -

AT BRmEHRILEMRTEAZINNEZEL
RENE 5 RUFIERE DT -

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTT ARETTT

0-60 days 0& 60K 470,595 409,324
61-90 days 61E90K 49,589 42,753
91-180 days 91£2180K 55,421 49,197
Over 180 days 180K LA 9,820 5,346
585,425 506,620

The aged analysis of trade receivables backed by bills based on dates

of delivery of goods at the end of the reporting period is analysed as

AT BRI EHRIRE MmN BHZINNARIES

RIENE 5 RUGRIARE DT :

follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTFTT
0-60 days 0E60K 48,245 41,818
61-90 days 61E90K 64,798 51,869
91-180 days 91E180K 216,694 195,698
Over 180 days 180K LA £ 135,662 82,994
Total st 465,399 372,379
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE—

21.

T A= —ALFE

Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group's trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of RMB65,578,000 (2020: RMB97,296,000) which are past due as at
the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, RMB9,820,000
(2020: RMB11,346,000) has been past due 90 days or more and is
not considered as in default after taking into account the repayment
histories and financial position of debtors. For trade receivables
in which customers have provided bills for settlement are not
considered as past due nor in default. Other than bills received, the
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Details of trade receivables backed or not backed by bills pledged
are set out in note 37.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables for
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 39.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group discounted
bills provided by external customers with recourse to banks or
other financial institutions for short-term financing. The proceeds
received from discounting of bills to banks which do not qualify for
derecognition have been included under cash inflows under financing
activities in the consolidated statement of cash flows. For proceeds
received from discounting of bills to other financial institutions of
customers, the relevant cash flows are presented as operating cash
flows in the consolidated statement of cash flows as the management
considers the cash flows are, in substance, the receipts from trade
debtors. For the non-cash settlement of discounted bills, please refer
to note 40.

During the year, the Group endorsed bills with recourse amounted
to RMB25,260,000 (2020: RMB26,490,000) to suppliers for settlement.
The relevant transactions are non-cash transactions and the effects
are excluded from the consolidated statement of cash flows.

The Group's trade and other receivables that are denominated in
the following currencies other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

21.

ESRHMEWRIE®)

RZB-_—F+-_A=+—H AEENESFE
WHEESOERRS BN HNNER - &
BEEEARKESS800T(ZE-FF : AR
#97,2960007C) - DEIEMGEHE R - ARK
9,820,0007T( = == 4F : AR#¥11,346,0007T) 2
BEAQOR LA b - MEASE BB ALB KRR
BRI - TIRIERY - B CIREEHIEEEN
4 5 YR AR R R E T R VEE 4 - RE U
ZRHh - REEL B EERIB A TTERSR o

BRNERRIBERKRE REERZBEREENE S
e TR IR R B B BTRET

EBEE—_E-_ -+t -A=1+—BItFEEEBFK
H fth fE W R IE R RV E RS B R IB A M RE39 -

REBEE-ZT - —F+-A=1t—HIFE  ~&E
H MR P AT IR M T e R RIRRR IR T IRTT A
RS - LEEVEHRE - BRREBR T IRITA
BRIEPTABRERNGME - XEFAKRESR
EREXRABEXKETRSRAER - SAERE
FPERTHMESREBASRENS - AREEE
REEMEERRSREEE L AE SRS - )
HARSRERNGARERERANZINAEERS
mE - BEREBRZIFREHEEME - F2HME
40 -

RAFE  AEEBHEERBEEARYE
25,260,0007C (= E=Z4F : AR¥26,490,0007T)
EETHERESE - BHEXZ AT H
HETHAGRBERER -

AEBATNIIEEREE TERNERRUINE
BAHERE 5 R AR YFORHIIN T

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

RMB'000 RMB000

ARET T ARBT T

Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD") Br(f#ET]) 64 167
United States Dollars (“USD") (S 234 =
Great Britain Pound (“GBP") HeE([S 1 =
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

22. Transfers of Financial Assets

The following were the Group's bills as at 31 December 2021 and
2020 that were transferred to banks, other financial institutions or
suppliers by discounting or endorsing on a full recourse basis. As the
Group has not transferred the significant risks and rewards relating
to the bills, it continues to recognise the full carrying amount of the
related trade receivables and trade payables and has recognised
the cash received from banks and other financial institutions on the
transfer as a secured borrowings (see note 27).

The bills from external customers are carried at amortised cost. Bills
arising from intra-group transactions in which the relevant group
entities discounted or transferred the bills to banks, other financial
institutions or suppliers, such trade receivables and related intra-
group payables have been eliminated in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position.

22.

BEITRMEE

KTER T _F_FF+_H=1+—H
AEEBHEEMERENRBEBURRSES
ETIRIT - ARt ER - EEE’\ZKE@T[
EERESBAENTIERR R EH - HEERER
HEAESRKHIERE ZRNFIANREEDER -
W R WIRTT R E M S B I R IR & R
REERER(RWE27) -

SNERE P RIBIA B SN RCAR o S EIE T EREA
SEHAERBZARIMEERBERRIE R TR
17 Bt BB ERmE - ZFEH5RUK
BREREEABR RN FTBRE R AEERAE
MTEARKRE B o

Bills
discounted
to banks/
other financial Bills
institutions endorsed to
with full suppliers with
recourse full recourse Total
ARIRM A 2E
EREZET HENWSEZE
$R1THith BREEE
SRS FtpER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®T AR®T T

Carrying amount of bills FIRREAE 322,749 10,380 333,129
— external customers — MR 305,999 8,756 314,755
— intra-group customers — SERBRHETP 16,750 1,624 18,374
Carrying amount of trade payables 2 SN FIEREE - (10,380) (10,380)
Carrying amount of bank and other $RIT R E A AR AREE
borrowings (322,749) - (322,749)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-2-—FT-A={ BLEE

22. Transfers of Financial Assets (Continued) 22 HESRMEE®)
Bills
discounted
to banks/
other financial Bills
institutions endorsed to
with full  suppliers with
recourse full recourse Total
AR 2
BREZET BEMTEE
$B1T,HAth BREZE
& RS THER 45T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREF T ARETTT
Carrying amount of bills FIRREAE 395,378 9,873 405,251
— external customers —HINEBR 263,154 9,873 273,027
— intra-group customers —SERNEEHREF 132,224 = 132,224
Carrying amount of trade payables B SR IEREE = (9,873) (9,873)
Carrying amount of bank and other $RIT R E A AR AREE
borrowings (395,378) - (395,378)
23. Contract Assets 23. BHEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETTT
Made-to-order paper-based packaging products ~ ER KR BEE 15,550 18,628
Current BNER 15,550 18,628
At 1 January 2020, contract assets amounted to RMB16,957,000. RZZE_TF-—H—H GHEERARY

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the rights
are conditioned on the Group's future performance. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional.

16,957,0007T °

BREENERENASERLE KA B BUEK
BHHER  ERZEENBEARBARRENTF
BEMAARFARER - AOBERZTREM S K
RS EE SRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—Z-_—F+-A=1+—BHIFE

23.

24.

Contract Assets (Continued)
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract assets
recognised are as follows:

The Group typically does not requires a deposit on acceptance of
order. The consideration is payable on the earlier of the delivery
and acceptance of the finished goods by customers or notice from
the customer to cancel the order. If the customer cancels the order
then the Group is entitled to receive payment for work done to
date pursuant to legal and regulatory environment in the PRC. The
Group typically issue bills to customers when the finished goods are
delivered to customers and acknowledged by customers. The credit
term is ranging from 30 to 120 days.

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in note 39.

Pledged Bank Deposits and Bank Balances and
Cash

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from 0.01%
to 0.35% (2020: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum. The pledged deposits
carry interest rates which range from 0.3% to 1.65% (2020: 0.3% to
1.65%) per annum.

Pledged bank deposits represent deposit pledged to banks to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits amounting to
RMB92,368,000 (2020: RMB106,401,000) have been pledged to secure
the short-term bank borrowings and bills payables repayable within
three to six months and are therefore classified as current assets.
The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the settlement of
relevant bank borrowings and bills payables.

Detail of impairment assessment of pledged bank deposits and bank
balances are set out in note 39.

The Group's bank balances that are denominated in the following
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

23.

24.

EHEE®E)
HWHRERA HWEES BEBR Y 20— BARIESRm
—F :

—RiME  ANEBEAEIERTEERKEES -
REERKBRINTEERERFZERESEER
FEUHFTER (AREHEEAE) T o SR
HETE - BIRNEEGEBEFRAEEMNEERE
WEES BIEFTER TIEMN KR - —imE © A%
ERKSBRNTEE RERFFREREFHAR
Z . ZAHPN T30E120K °

AR ER ORI 39 -
EEARTERRRTEHRRRAE

RITREBIZN F0.01ER035E(—ZE-F4F : 0.01
EZE0.35F)MmMHFEHNETE - BEEAFERENT
03EZE165E(ZF=FF : 0.3EE1.65E)HFF|
RETE o

BRI ERERRTRITINGER  (EARTAE
EEMRITREMER - TRARE2,368,0007T
—T-TF . ARM106,401,0007T) B EE - 1
BAR=ZENEARNEENSEBRITERIENE
BOER  WOoEARDEE - BEBRITFRE
FMEEAR R R T 15 SREFARRR -

BRI ER MIRTESRRET GRS
BT EESD

AREBATIIEBEEE T ERINGEEEAINE
HEHERRITASREZIAT

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBT T

HKD BT 1,654 7,303
usD =TT 401 177
GBP R 9 10
Euro (“EUR") BoT((& o)) 760 =
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25. Trade and Other Payables 25. EZRHEMENRIR
2021 2020
—E-—f —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREETTT
Trade payables E ZENFRIE 114,341 139,194
Bills payables — secured e S=E— B EA 83,630 15,829
Other tax payables (note) H A 18 (BT ) 51,959 37,893
Payroll and welfare payables FEAT S B K2 48 A1 B 43,080 35,919
Construction payables FEfT T2 FIE 5,668 4,341
Others HAl 38,669 26,271
337,347 259,447

Bz« EtbEMARIEEIEARK44,261,0000(ZE-Z4F :
AR #36,078,0007T ) HysE E R B o

Note: Included in other tax payables is provision for value-added tax amounting to
RMB44,261,000 (2020: RMB36,078,000).

LA B & BRI WS m B B2 5180 B Z e

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based

on the dates of receipt of goods at the end of the reporting period. FOERRE DT
2021 2020
B —F e ke 3
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®BT T ARETTT
0-60 days 0&60K 96,334 117,537
61-90 days 61E90K 5,126 5,040
91-180 days 91£2180K 5,093 8,456
Over 180 days 180K LA 7,788 8,161
114,341 139,194

The aged analysis of bills payables based on the dates of receipt of

AT RRBEHRREEE R B RN ENRR

goods at the end of the reporting period are analysed as follows: ARER AT :
2021 2020
—EB-—fF —ECTEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFIT
0-60 days 0£ 60K 12,326 5416
61-90 days 61290K 6,000 6,741
91-180 days 912180k 37,104 3,672
Over 180 days 180K E 28,200 3,672
83,630 15,829
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. Trade and Other Payables (Continued)

The credit period on purchase of materials is 30 to 120 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to monitor the
settlement.

The Group's trade and other payables that are denominated in the
currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant group

entities at 31 December 2021 is USD amounted to RMB81,000 (2020: nil).

. Consideration Payables

. B REMBEARKE@E
BME MR OEREN F0E120K - AEBRAH
BREREBIR AR REER -

AEBAHBEBRE T EENEEB NGRS
BERE 5 Kk HAERMNFKIE A ARS1,0007THZETT

(ZF=FF:F)-

26. ENRERE

2021 2020

=t = $ —===F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETTT
Non-current IERE) 5,681 10,875
Current ME 5,818 11,956
11,499 22,831
Fixed consideration payables at amortised cost RN 2 B E R B FIR 3,282 10,900
Contingent consideration payables at FVTPL T’Rﬂﬁfﬁuﬁ')@ﬁ'ﬁumiﬁ‘ﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁ 8,217 11,931
11,499 22,831

On 1 March 2020, the Group completed the acquisition of 80% equity
interest in Yudu County Zhengyi Paper Products and Paper Industry
Company Limited (“"Zhengyi”) for an aggregate consideration
of RMB47,200,000 plus contingent consideration. The aggregate
amount of cash consideration of RMB29,800,000 was paid upon
completion of the acquisition. For the remaining cash consideration,
RMB6,200,000, RMB7,860,000, RMB1,670,000 and RMB1,670,000
should be paid in September 2020, March 2021, March 2022 and
March 2023 respectively. Regarding the contingent consideration
arrangement, the Group is required to pay additional amounts
of RMB4,270,000, RMB4,270,000 and RMB4,260,000 as at 30 June
2021, 2022 and 2023 respectively if Zhengyi's profit after tax in each
of the calendar years 2020, 2021 and 2022 exceeds RMB3,000,000,
RMB4,000,000 and RMB5,000,000 respectively. The present value of
the consideration amounted to RMB27,829,000 was accounted for
by the Group with discount rate of 5.23% applied on consideration
payables at initial recognition. The fixed and contingent
considerations are subsequently measured at amortised cost and
FVTPL respectively.

During the year, imputed interest amounted to RMB242,000 (2020:
RMB646,000) and loss from changes in fair value of financial liabilities
at FVTPL amounted to RMB556,000 (2020: RMB556,000) have been
charged to profit or loss and total consideration amounted to
RMB 12,130,000 (2020: RMB6,200,000) has been paid.

R-ZT-_TE=ZF—H AEENERBARE
47,200,0007T B Nk AR E W E TEHZEERR KX
KEERAR([EMR])B0%HIIEHE - REKEEE
SRS R EARKE29,800,0007T © # NEESHE
AR #6,200,0007T + AR¥7,860,0007T @ AR
1,670,0007T & A R #1,670,000cED BN —ZZ =
TENA B —F=R T _F=ZAK—
T _=F=A%f- m%%&%%&%m fiti% IE
BRZ_ZTF T EN-TE - —FRE
FRFHEFED %tﬂAE%amwmm AR
%4mwmﬁﬂAE%5mwmﬁ AEEFTR
—E-—FRNA=tH DB FEM-_T =%
NAZT BRI ARKA4,270,0007T © AR
4,270,0007CF1 A R #54,260,0007CHIFEINS B8 » ANE
(B A 1] 2 T w2 B A JRE A< B B JE F B 3R 2R 5.23% 1%
AR #27,829,000t R ER B o TR LA
ENREFRBEEZD SIREHEK AT E RIZAE
sTABE -

RAFE - HEREABARK2420000(ZFE=F
&F : AR¥E646,0007T) RIZ AR BT ABZNE R
BEMNAAEEHEEAAREKS56,000T(=ZF=
TE . AR¥E556,0007T) B BBz - RAEKE
AR#12,130,00070 (=T =T 4 : AR#6,200,000
TLE X e
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27. Bank and Other Borrowings

27. RITREAMBER

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREET T
Bank and other borrowings IRIT R EAMEK 1,191,454 1,111,343
Less: Amount due within one year shown under B R—FARRIREHIERE B EN 5
current liabilities 1,022,356 1,025,339
Amount shown under non-current liabilities TWEIERE BB 169,098 86,004
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREET T
Bank borrowings RITIER 710,252 574,666
Bank borrowings (discounted bills RITER(MEEEERENRIAER)
with full recourse) 180,825 273,410
891,077 848,076
Secured A 873,907 764,583
Unsecured i sa i 17,170 83,493
891,077 848,076
Carrying amount repayable:* AR AT HiE R AREE :
Within one year —FR 796,955 833,826
Within a period of more than one year —F LA E RAF AT /IR
but not more than two years 57,376 14,250
Within a period of more than five years RF LA BB 36,746 =
891,077 848,076
Less: Amount due within one year shown under B RN—F AR SIERE B EN
current liabilities (796,955) (833,826)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities TIWEIERE BB TR 94,122 14,250

agreements.

The amounts are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

& ZE R ERIRETR AR EER AR -

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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27. Bank and Other Borrowings (Continued) 27. SRITRHEMERE)
The Group's bank borrowings that are denominated in the following REBUTIHEBEEETERBYEEE AN E
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant entities KEEHMERIRITIERE T T

are set out below:

2021 2020
:§:_$ S 7
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARETTT

HKD 17,170 47,324
usb 2,761 -
Detail of assets pledged for secured bank borrowings are set out in B KR EEEAEIRIPIEITEIIERNFES
note 37. N EERYAC
The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to REE BRI ERFEBER G KF %) 6 E 10
contracted interest rates) on the Group's borrowings are as follows: N
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF

Effective interest rate:

i /T\%|J$
Fixed rate borrowings 2.66% to 7.20% per annum 2.66% to 7.20% per annum
BIEF &5 B AR FHE2.66EE7.20E FRIZ2.66E E7.20/2
Variable rate borrowings 3.08% to 3.17% per annum 2.30% to 3.40% per annum
FBA G BAER FHE3.08EE3.17E FHIZ2.30E £3.402
At 31 December 2021, variable-rate bank borrowings amounted to 75/‘ T —F+ZA=1+— E! 5‘?’@3%”¥§+ e
RMB17,170,000 (2020: RMB47,324,000). The borrowings are charged HKEBARE17170000c( T F : AR
at the interest rate based on Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate 47 324,0007T) ° ZEBFIEEBRITRAZRE( &
("HIBOR") plus 3% (2020: HIBOR plus 1.5%), and expose the Group BRTEIEFREDIRE(ZE_ZF : FHETRE
to cash flow interest rate risk. At 31 December 2021, fixed rate bank %Tﬁ/%ﬂﬂ1.5r)f3’]f'J+ﬁE\ FAEEMBIR SR
borrowings amounted to RMB873,907,000 (2020: RMB800,752,000). FMERER HNZTBE-_—F+_F=+—08 ' BEF
%ﬁﬁﬁ%%AE%w3wnmmxf§ffir
AR#800,752,0007T) °
As at 31 December 2021, secured bank borrowings include the RZEZ—F+=-A=+—80  BEAR?
proceeds received from the discounting of (i) bills from external & i”@ﬁ RN EEAERENONIINTIRE,E
customers amounting to RMB164,075,000 (2020: RMB141,186,000), BAREK164, 075 00T (ZE_ZTF : ARK
and (ii) bills issued by group entities amounting to RMB16,750,000 141,186,000) ; R()EEENEELAREARE
(2020: RMB132,224,000), to banks with recourse. 16,750,0007c( —ZE —ZT4F : AR#132,224,000) F
RITZ PTS5RIE ©
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27. Bank and Other Borrowings (Continued)

27. SRITREMER @)

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTFTT
Other borrowings B AR 158,453 141,299
Other borrowings (discounted bills HiER (M2 EERENERER)
with full recourse) 141,924 121,968
300,377 263,267
Secured (note 1) B (PFFET) 298,577 253,127
Unsecured (note 2) AR (P 7E2) 1,800 10,140
300,377 263,267
Carrying amount repayable: BRIAT HARIE R RAREE
Within one year —&FR 225,401 191,513
Within a period of more than one year —F LA E R T H HAE
but not more than two years 57,112 54,041
Within a period of more than two years M LA £ R A E AT H) HAE
but not more than five years 17,864 17,713
300,377 263,267
Less: Amount due within one year shown under B R —FARRIEREHIERE B EN SR
current liabilities (225,401) (191,513)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities FVESEREN BB SR 74,976 71,754
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To—Ft+-A=+—HLLFE

27. Bank and Other Borrowings (Continued)

Notes:

M

In 2019, the Group entered into agreements (the “Agreements A"”) with
a PRC financial institution (“Financial Institution A”) whereby the Group
drew down RMB44,900,000 from the Financial Institution A (included in
other borrowings) which are to be repayable within 3 years from the date of
draw down at variable rates based on Benchmark Rate plus a premium. The
effective interest rates of the borrowings as at 31 December 2021 ranged
from 11.71% to 11.72% (2020: 11.71% to 11.72%) per annum.

In 2020, the Group entered into agreements (the "Agreements B") with
PRC financial institutions (“Financial Institutions B") whereby the Group
drew down RMB137,757,000 from the Financial Institutions B (included in
other borrowings) which are to be repayable within 3 years from the date of
draw down at variable rates based on Benchmark Rate plus a premium. The
effective interest rates of the borrowings as at 31 December 2021 ranged
from 9.60% to 10.24% (2020: 9.60% to 10.24%) per annum.

In 2021, the Group entered into agreements (the “Agreements C") with
PRC financial institutions (“Financial Institutions C") whereby the Group
drew down RMB91,792,000 from the Financial Institutions C (included in
other borrowings) which are to be repayable within 3 years from the date of
draw down at variable rates based on Benchmark Rate plus a premium. The
effective interest rates of the borrowings as at 31 December 2021 ranged
from 9.60% to 10.24% per annum.

As collaterals for the above financing, the Group transferred the ownership
title of the related machinery to the Financial Institution A, Financial

Institutions B and Financial Institutions C.

Upon discharging all the Group’s obligations under the Agreements A,
Agreements B and Agreements C, the Financial Institution A, Financial
Institutions B and Financial Institutions C will return the ownership title
of the machinery to the Group for nominal amount of RMB100 for each
agreement. Despite these agreements involve a legal form of a lease, the
Group accounted for the Agreements A, Agreements B and Agreements C as
collateralised borrowings at amortised cost using effective interest method
in accordance with the actual substance of the Agreements A, Agreements B

and Agreements C.

Except for the other borrowings related to Agreements A, Agreements B
and Agreements C, as at 31 December 2021, secured other borrowings also
include the proceeds received from the discounting of bills provided by
external customers amounting to RMB 141,924,000 (2020: RMB121,948,000)
to other financial institutions with recourse. Secured other borrowings are at

fixed-rate.

At 31 December 2021, loans of RMB1,800,000 (2020: RMB10,140,000) are
obtained from two companies (2020: two companies) controlled by a
non-controlling interest. The loans are arranged as entrusted loans through
banks, which are to be repayable within one year at fixed interest rate of
3.50% (2020: 3.50%) per annum.

27. $BITR

BiFE

M

Ht g @)

TNF - AEEE-RHESREE ([ SR
ﬁ@ﬁJi% (TR ) - &t - AEE PSR

HEFRIREUA R #44,900,0007T (FEAH A ) » B R
BB R = EUAREE - REREERRNZEHF
KB BNM—FHE -R_T=_—F+=A=+—
B ZEERZERFENTERNENTIEE1.72E
CNTFUTNEENT2E) -

(ZZ=%

RIT_ZF  AEEESHPES LS ([
BZ el ((HEs ) E%'Kilﬁ@@%
B ZIREA R #137,757,0007C (st A EffEE3%) -
RIEER B Hife At = F LAREE - &%#g&ﬂfmg
FFRFE BN—FHE-R=_FT=_—F+=A8
=+—RB  ZEERZEBBAENTEFNRIOER
10.28B(ZF=FF : NTI.0EE10.24F) °

REZT=Z—F  AEEEZEPESHEE([Sm
BARDZHA((HBER]) Bt - AEERS R
BARIMARE1,792,0007T (GHAHABE ) - BRI
BB HE A = E U AEE - REREERREFEHF
B BIN—%%EB R-E-_—F+-_A=+—
B - ZEERZ ERFENTFFEFZ.60EZE10.24 -

ER Ll RE 2 ER  AEECRARER e E
HRETZLRBET  SRRBIREREER -

RBRAREERET - BAZERBEATHEERE
% SEHEET SABELREREBERAMREER

AR ERBEARBI00TRHIBRER I AEERET
AEE - BEZEHHFOEERE - ARERE R
AT BRIRBEANBEEAR  HiHEF -
2, % 19h 7 7 R B Ay 158 PR T B ) SO S A A Y A 4R
fER

REGZER BRI kBEARBEHEMERIN - R

—T-EF+A=1+—H  BEFANEMGERTE
FEHAMNTEHERENIINBELEER T H i & i
BETESFIEARK141,924 000 (—E-FF : AR
121,968,0007T) ° B HEHRH) E A fE FRIR E E FIEET R o

—E_TF+=RA=+—8" /\RﬁMBOOOOOE(_
T T4 AR¥10,140,0007T ) &) & 5 Ty A FE 42 A

EREHNMR AR (ZE_FF  BRA 4Dﬁﬂ°
%%mﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ%%i&% P AR —FRE
REEFHNEIS0E(—F_FF : 350F)5t8 °

m§§ﬁNH%
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28. Lease Liabilities

28. HHEAEE

2021 2020
—B-—-F —EFTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTFTT
Lease liabilities payable: ERATHREENHERE :
Within one year —FR 15,458 14,226
Within a period of more than one year —F LA F R T H HAE
but not more than two years 4,678 13,122
Within a period of more than two years LA £ K& A FF AT B AR
but not more than five years 14,874 8,176
Within a period of more than five years TF LA ERIEAR 10,305 9,700
45,315 45,224
Less: Amount due within one year shown under B R—EAREBTIHERE B B S
current liabilities (15,458) (14,226)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities FIEIERB B BN R 29,857 30,998

The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities range

from 5.7% to 6.12% (2020: from 5.7% to 6.12%).

Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other than the

functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

HHEEAEREANELERENTS57EZE6.12E
(ZE-FFE :57EF612E) °

LAERA S EE T EEeT
EAEHYIT

BEEB N RHENE

2021 2020

B —ECTE

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BT T ARETTT

HKD BIT 209 518
29. Contract Liabilities 29. EXHEE

2021 2020

:g:—$ — 7 —= $

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBT T AREFT

Corrugated medium paper products A AR EE fm 8,025 3,583

As at 1 January 2020, contract liabilities amounted to RMB2,215,000. R_B_ZFE—-A—B AHNABRARE

2,215,0007T °

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—Z-_—F+-A=1+—BHIFE

29. Contract Liabilities (Continued) 29. EHNEEwW)
The amount of contract liabilities includes the revenue to be EHBESEEES THERARBEBER
recognised and the related value-added tax. The contract liabilities HEGEEREASBRRSHARRARTREEOEE ﬁ
balance varies in accordance with the number of contracts £o T%EJH—\ZKE’EEﬁﬁﬁEqu&A;q:ﬁ%‘amnﬁq{z\%\’j
outstanding at the end of reporting period. The following table BE/ES °

shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current year
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

Corrugated
medium paper
products
RESHEER
RMB’000
ARETTT
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_ZE-—F+=-A=+—HLFE
Revenue recognised that was included FTRERNFEAIEI A G R B BEARN W
in the contract liability balance at the beginning
of the year 3,272
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-EF+-A=+—HLFE
Revenue recognised that was included FIER N E AR AG N B EEH ke
in the contract liability balance at the beginning
of the year 1,960
No revenue relates to performance obligations that were satisfied in HE_ T -_—FR_FT_TFT_A=+—HILM
prior periods for both year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. 1Eglﬁﬂ\qﬁlkﬁiﬁiﬂﬁiﬂﬁﬁE@f‘fﬂ’]@?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ
7 o
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract AR A N B ESEBATEN — RGN
liabilities recognised are as follows: T
The Group requires a deposit on acceptance of orders from some REEAZEETEFPONF EREGZERWRGT€ - E
of the customers. When the Group receives a deposit before the ZK%.EAXH%EHEU%EDDHI WERET & HI 15
delivery of corrugated medium paper products, this will give rise e ’jﬁ?ﬁﬁAETFE HNEE BEZEHA ,‘\'7
to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue Fﬁﬁﬁuﬂ”&)\iﬁuTj’zﬂz
recognised on the relevant contract exceeds the amount of the
deposit.
30. Amounts Due to Directors 30. ENEERE
The amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest free and ENEFFIAREER R REREREE -
repayable on demand.
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31. Deferred Taxation 31.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

ELEH IR

EAMBIMRKREIIME - S TEEHRIEER
EEAGEEE - NN AMEHRE M S ELEHIBES
DT

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Deferred tax assets FREF IR E E (11,223) (7,265)
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIAE F 8,737 6,787
(2,486) (478)

The following are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

AT RBRAFEMBEFECHEAN T ZRTNIA
(EE)BEREE

Impairment

on

Provision Impairment Undistributed property,

Right of lease  Contract for  Deferred on Depreciation  profit of Unused Other plant and
useassets liabilities assets  inventory income  receivables differences subsidiaries  tax losses  payables equipment Total

1 HEAT RBRARA A 0% HRER

EREEE HERR ANHE  FERE  BERA  RWEE  FEER AW ER EHRE  RREE it
RMBOO  RMBOOO  RWBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBODO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBODO  RMBO0
ARMTE  ARRTT ARETT ARBTR ARETn ARMTR ARMTZ ARMTR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

At 1 January 2020 RZE-F£-F-R 8177 (8329) 510 (1.986) (5,839 (287) 1408 5500 - - - (846)
Acquisition of asubsidiary ~ HEHBAR 28 = = = = ) 2,000 = (2.949) 8 = 802)
(Credit) charge forthe year  FR(GTA) 3B (1,190 108 4] (33 2 (683 n 30 209 7 (183) 1850
Effectof change of taxrate. ~ HEZE Y2 - - - - - - - (680) = = = (680)
At 1 January 2021 RZFZ-4-F-R 7215 (7.301) 589 (2,019 (5,554) (1,029) 3479 5190 (920) (5) (183) (478)
(Credit) charge forthe year —~ FR(GTA)HB (1,443) 1,374 (140) (39) (104) (178) "7 815 920 5 (3,335) (2,008)
At31 December 2021 RZBZ-%1ZA

=t-A 5832 (5,927) 449 (2,058) (5,658) (1,207) 3,596 6,005 - - (3,518) (2,486)
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31. Deferred Taxation (Continued) 31. EEFHEE)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of RMB14,342,000 (2020: RMB10,686,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the unused tax losses of RMB 14,342,000 (2020: RMB4,556,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The unrecognised tax
losses at the end of reporting period will be expired in the following

RMERR  NEEERADATEEEARE
14,342,000 (ZZE =ZFF : AK¥10,686,0007T)
A] A 8H AR HROE T o B A AR 21 s Al SRR B LA 8
B - WA REARB) AR EEE A R#514,342,0007T (=
T —TFE . A R¥4,556,0007T ) FE R IE TE R IE
BE - RIEHRARNARBARBEBERUTEE

years: ZIHER

2021 2020

:——;'i: - $ = 7
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFTT
2024 :%:Pﬂﬂf 2,570 2,570
2025 —TE-hF 1,986 1,986
2026 —EREF 9,786 -
14,342 4,556

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of RMB16,282,000 (2020: RMB?,758,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.

The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
undistributed earnings of the PRC subsidiaries for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised was RMB767,171,000 (2020:
RMB591,369,000). No deferred tax liabilities have been recognised
in respect of these difference because the Group is in a position to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that such difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

RMERAR  AEEBEJHNREREEARE
16,282,0007c(ZE=F 4 : AR%9,758,0007T) °
R A AT 8 & 7 FE R A om A {EB) A AT HR B B =
BIREAR - WERZEUNRE R EEERTMN
RIERITAEE ©

RIERIEIET A B E R BT E A Bl AR 2K s A A8
RERE=RAEAARET767,171,0000( =2 =F
F : ARMES91,369,0007T) ° FHHAZN 5 B gk 2 ) 3
ClZEERE=HEMEE - BZSE=8RA R
AR RSB MU ERZSEARRAELHER

f& e

future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—Z-_—F+-A=1+—BIFE

32. Share Capital 32. kA
Number Nominal
of shares value
BHEE EHEE
HKD
BIT
Ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each FSREHE0.10BTHEER
Authorised: VAR ¢
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, and RZEBE_FF—H—H —Z_FTF
31 December 2021 +-A=t+—HER=Z=_—%+=A
=+—H 1,000,000,000 100,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, and i EI “ZCRE+TA
31 December 2021 =+—BFk—ZT-—F+-_A=+—H 500,000,000 50,000,000
RMB’000
ARET T
Presented as at 31 December 2020 and 2021 KRB ZFR T —F+_A=+—HZ% 41,655

33.

There were no changes in the Company'’s authorised, issued and fully
paid share capital during the both years.

Retirement Benefits Schemes

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of a trustee. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to
the scheme, which contribution is matched by employees but subject
to a maximum amount of HKD1,500 per month (2020: HKD1,500 per
month) for each employee.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries established in the
PRC are members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute certain percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
specific contributions.

The total cost charged to income of RMB22,102,000 (2020:
RMB4,322,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes by
the Group in respect of the current accounting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had
no forfeited contributions under the retirement benefits schemes
utilised to reduce future contributions.

33.

RRFE - RAREEE - 23817 MR ASTZR
BEE -

EARBEREE
AEEAMEEAAEREERARFMEATESST
gl o BN EERASENEESH - AfSFEA
= BeRE o A%E REEIIZIEEABAIS%
mZstEIRR B ERABREES A1,5004 7T
(ZZ=F4F : 1,50087L) °

= —=

ARABTEMBARZEEARTEBFMEER L
BZGR KRNI 2K E - WBARARESEH©
T B ARREFIRT B KA ETTHREER) -
AEBIERNENG B2 T 2 E—RERREZL
B REMR

AU AR FBR Y 48R AR X A R #E22,102,00070 (==
—EFE . AR¥EA322,0007T) FEAEBER A S HH
R FE il aT SIS RO HERR -

RBE—T 8 ZF-ZTF+_H=+—HIt
FE - AKEWEEFRAEHEEPIE T 22 H
AT AR FRUAR SRR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

34. JEFEWA

34. Deferred Income

In 2021, the Group received government subsidies of RMB5,105,000
(2020: RMB2,200,000) for the cost of constructions of its paper-
based package and corrugated medium paper plant and the
replacement of machinery. The amount was treated as deferred
income at 31 December 2021 and 2020. The amount is transferred to
income over the useful lives of the relevant assets and the amount
transferred to income during the current year is RMB4,488,000
(2020: RMB4,100,000). As at 31 December 2021, an amount of
RMB37,635,000 (2020: RMB37,018,000) remains to be amortised.

. Acquisition of a Subsidiary

On 10 December 2019, the Group entered into a letter of intent
with Jiangxi Shengjing Technology Company Limited (“Jiangxi
Shengjing”) for the acquisition of 80% of equity interest in Zhengyi.
Deposits totalling amounted to RMB5,000,000 were paid in 2019.
On 3 January 2020, the Group entered into an equity acquisition
agreement (“Agreement”) with Jiangxi Shengjing regarding the
acquisition of 80% equity interest in Zhengyi for an aggregate
consideration of RMB47,200,000 plus contingent consideration.

According to the Agreement, the Group is required to pay an
aggregate deposit of RMB16,000,000 inclusive of the deposit of
RMB5,000,000 paid in 2019, and cash consideration of RMB13,800,000
should be paid on completion. For the remaining consideration,
RMB6,200,000, RMB7,860,000, RMB1,670,000 and RMB1,670,000
should be paid in September 2020, March 2021, March 2022 and
March 2023 respectively. Regarding the contingent consideration
arrangement, the Group is required to pay additional amounts of
RMB4,270,000, RMB4,270,000 and RMB4,260,000 at 30 June 2021,
2022 and 2023 respectively if Zhengyi's profit after tax in each of
the calendar years 2020, 2021 and 2022 exceeds RMB3,000,000,
RMB4,000,000 and RMB5,000,000 respectively.

The acquisition was completed on 1 March 2020. Zhengyi is
principally engaged in the corrugated medium paper making
business and was acquired with the objective of improving the
Group's sales and production. The acquisition has been accounted
for as acquisition of business using the acquisition method.

RZTZ—F  NEBGERE B RS SR
5 A9 3 SR A 7N DA B A 28 B SR B BT 7 B A R S
51050007t (ZE=FF : AK%2,200,0007T) -
N —FR_ZT-_TF+_A=+—HNEE
WA WiIREEEEM A EAFHRERZEIR
Ao EAZKEJ*ET%&LI&Z)\E@@%E?%AE%UL%OOO
TT(ZE_ZTF : AR¥4,1000007T) - R=F
——F®+=-—A=+—8" hﬂiﬁ&ﬁémﬁﬁﬁﬁAEﬁ%
37,635,0007C(ZZE =Z4F : AK%37,018,0007T) °

W B B 2 A

M-ZE-NAE+-A+H  AEEETEEBRE
BRA T(FIE%FJ)MTami - NAB R
BIEE80%EHE  WHR—T—hEFEINEEARE
5,000,000 M ET & ° = 7_%¢ A=H " =K
EEELT IR R B R ([ZIBE]) -
HR(BAREA7,200,0007T B ik AR ERE EE
80% 54 -

RIEZ B - AREAESTE £ AR 16,000,000
TR (BERZZE-NFIMANTARK
5,000,0007T) * WBR TKEFLZHREREARE
13,800,0007T ° £ T & R {E A R#6,200,0007T
AR #7,860,0007T @ AR 67000073&/\}%?#%‘
1,670,000 CEED BN =T =FF N A - —
F=ZA ZE_—F=ZAR-ZT-_=F= ﬁiszﬁ
REMRAEELE  WEBR-_ZT=_FF -

T FMN_T__FXEBFNHENED B
ﬁAE%oooooo;ﬁ AE@MOOO,OOO%%ME
#5,000,000T ' AEBEE_ST-_—F A=
H - :2::$fu:$:_¢/\ﬂ_+EI%EIJS'ZH
AR#4,270,00070 + AR %4,270,00070 F1 A R
4,260,000 CHYEESNE 58 o

WEEEENR T FTF=F—HxK - EEEZE
fé%ﬁﬁ-’ﬁﬁ}a%&%% WiE B B ARRSANEEN
HEMEENKY - WEEHEERWREEACRS R
EBWE -
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35. Acquisition of a Subsidiary (Continued)

35. WEEKMB AR (#)

RMB'000

AREET T

Cash consideration HERE 29,800
Deferred cash considerations (Note) RER & RE ) 16,454
46,254

Contingent consideration arrangement (Note) HARE LB (T EE) 11,375
Total 5T 57,629

Note: RMB16,454,000 and RMB11,375,000 represent the estimated fair value of
the deferred cash consideration and the obligation from the contingent

consideration arrangement respectively.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised by the Group at the date
of acquisition are as follows:

BitsE © AR¥516,454,0007T & A R #11,375,0007T 7 Bl & iR
BEREOBTANERIARELHENFE -

REENWEAMEERARBEERBENT ¢

RMB’000

ARBT T

Property, plant and equipment Y% - B kB 105,976
Deferred tax assets RERIBE E 802
Right of use assets EREEE 7,806
Inventories =8 20,145
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk B R W kIR 4,205
Bank balances and cash IRITEBR LIRS 12,789
Trade and other payables B 5 N EAMm R FIE (27,219)
Bank borrowings IRITER (31,000)
Amount due to a non-controlling interest FEAS BEIE AR i 2 TR 1R (21,468)
72,036

The receivables acquired (which principally comprised trade
receivables) with a fair value of RMB4,205,000 at the date of
acquisition had gross contractual amounts of RMB4,619,000. The
best estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows not
expected to be collected amounted to RMB414,000.

The non-controlling interests (20%) in Zhengyi recognised at the
acquisition date was measured by reference to the proportionate
share of recognised amounts of net assets of Zhengyi and amounted
to RMB14,407,000.

iR IB(EBREE SRR RIkEER
HR A (EA A RE4,2050007T - AHBEAAR
#4.619,0007T ° FAUREE B 2R T8 BT RE R A 49
e MBI ERFTAARKEA414,0007T ©

RUEE B B AR IE (R A SRR AR A 25 (20%) I i€ 2 %
EERERFEERLINETNE - SEA/AARE
14,407,0007T °
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35. Acquisition of a Subsidiary (Continued)

35. WEEKMB AR (#)

RMB'000
ARBTFTT
Consideration transferred EEERE 57,629
Plus: non-controlling interests (20% in Zhengyi) N SERERR i AR (1R 18.220%) 14,407
Less: recognised amounts of net assets acquired & : EERMMKIEEEFE 72,036
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEESRIHE £ R & =
No goodwill arose on the acquisition of Zhengyi. W i 1F (B0 M 7 A (e P ©
RMB’'000
ARBTFTT
Net cash outflow from acquisition WEEEIRR IR £
Bank balance and cash acquired PR IRTTAE R IR & 12,789
Consideration paid in cash AR e MHRE (36,000)
(23,211)
Represented by: 15
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary BHE_ZT-NFT_A=T—HIEFEEE-FRHBERFMW
during the year ended 31 December 2019 A5 (5,000)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary HE_Z-_TFE+_A=+—HILFEKE—RHMBIAH
during the year ended 31 December 2020 IR B R (18,211)

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
RMB14,858,000 attributable to the additional business generated by
Zhengyi. Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 included
RMB 189,352,000 generated from Zhengyi.

Had the acquisition of Zhengyi been completed on 1 January 2020,
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 of the Group from
continuing operations would have been RMB2,509,570,000, and
profit for the year from continuing operations would have been
RMB62,073,000. The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2020, nor is it intended
to be a projection of future results.

BE—ZE-RFT-A=T—HIFENENERE
EREENRBRINER G AR 14,858,0007T © &
E_E_EET_A=1tBHLFENRABRELE
BEAERAK189,352,0007T °

BER_Z-_TF— A —AZKKEBIERE A&E
MEE-Z-_TF+-A=1+—BUILEENFER
2UL A JE A AR #2,509,570,0007T © i FEHEL
BRI e A AR B 62,073,0007T © #HEERHENES
AR BARAMAREETERER=S=F—A
—HERHIER FTEREERNRA RS EEERN
812 - INREMERARREEMNTEA o
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BE—Z-_—F+-A=1+—BIFE

35. Acquisition of a Subsidiary (Continued) 35. BB AR (®)
In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the Group RARIEEHEERNKRE AR BRAYE - BE LR
had Zhengyi been acquired at the beginning of the year ended HARGERAEEENSEAEYE - BRERKEN
31 December 2020, the directors of the Company calculated REREEENNTE REE  MSHERENEES
depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment and ToEFF A=+ HIEFENFYIEREBELE
right of use assets based on the recognised amounts of property, 1B RNEEM[EZ JUA K&
plant and equipment and right of use assets at the date of the
acquisition.
36. Capital Commitments 36. EXREE
2021 2020
= —ECoTHF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFTT
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of ERTAUWIE T - BB KRB ERR
property, plant and equipment contracted for RE M RARTIRBENE AR
but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements 26,752 22,484
Commitment to acquire Zheng Ye Leasing (as IWEEIE XM E (B2 RMTEE41) ByEdE
defined in note 41) 186,000 =
212,752 22,484
37. Pledge of Assets 37. EEKH
The following assets were pledged to secure certain banking and NTARBRERRAEEDEREE  (ERARTA
other facilities granted to the Group at the end of the reporting SEETRITREAMEEAER
period:
2021 2020
= —ECTF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARBTFTT
Buildings and construction in progress BFERERTRE 95,813 88,972
Plant and machinery 55 T i Ak 148,207 134,813
Leasehold lands T A 106,428 109,267
Trade receivables not backed by bills BERREENESHEKFIE 80,000 80,000
Trade receivables backed by bills NERREENE S EITIE 305,999 263,154
Pledged bank deposits B IIRIRITIE K 92,368 106,401
Inventories FE 111,262 53,683
940,077 836,290
In addition to the pledge of assets above, bank borrowings of BREXRZEBEBREEN  RZTE_—F+=A
RMB 16,750,000 (2020: RMB132,224,000) are secured by the bills issued =+—H  BITERARE16,750,000t( ZE ==
by group entities as at 31 December 2021. F: AR¥E132,224,000) AEEETEEBLANSE
BAEFELR o
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38. Capital Risk Management 38. EXEBERE

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
includes bank borrowings and other borrowings as disclosed in
note 27, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of the review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through payment of dividends, new share issues as

A BB (S SR 2 RO B T B IR
HES  BRASENTEBLWHELE - A5
PEEFTEARR - AEEHBEFRRL g
HTE -

AEENERNBRBEER(RIEME27 riREN
RITERREMER) - HBRERIREFEYIA
RARRHER AR (BRI RFHE)

ARRIEZGE R EARRE o AR —8
o EEEREARAREARHARR - ~EEE
RIEBESHBES  BERMNRE - BITHR - A
RBETHEGUEEREABERFAREEAR
1

well as the issue of the new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

39. Financial Instruments 39. €@TH

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Financial assets TEHEE
Amortised cost H SRR 1,391,393 1,190,302
Financial liabilities THEE
Amortised cost BEHAOR 1,429,036 1,302,235
FVTPL BRAMEGAER 8,217 11,931

AEENTECHTABEE S LEMEK
R - EEMRITER  RITER  EHR
HAb AR - BN EEFOR - RITREM
fEk - HERENRENRE FHEZES
BMTANFBSRBEBMERE - 2252
BTEEENERSEMSERAR(EERRK
MEER) ERRRNREBESAR - TX
FIMAREZERBROEEK - EBESE
B REEZERE - AR RE - BRUER
BUBEE1EHE °

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances, trade
and other payables, amounts due to directors, bank and other
borrowings, lease liabilities and consideration payables. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in
a timely and effective manner.
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Market risk
The Group's activities expose primarily to the market risks of
changes in interest rates and currency rates.

There has been no significant change to the Group's exposure
to market risks or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risk.

() Currency risk
The Group collects most of its revenue and incurs most
of the expenditures in RMB.

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated
in foreign currencies, hence exposures to exchange
rate fluctuations arises. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposures
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets (mainly including bank
balances and cash, and trade and other receivables) and
monetary liabilities (mainly including trade and other
payables, lease liabilities and bank borrowings) at the
reporting date are as follows:

. EMTHE®)

™ 5 Ek
AERBAERS T BAR R K RSNEE KB E)
BB EER

$%l7¥<xﬁ’]m%ﬂ BREEELAEZS

(i)

BEVTEBEEAEE o

EXmE
SEMAFD ARSI AR
o

REEHETE T AINETHER R 5

bk RS2 B RO B o 7S S [ 3 PR O A
ﬁl\ﬂzﬁxﬂpﬂlﬁﬁ Aifn - ERESE B
R YEEERUEREEHEAIN
PE R

RNEBRIRE BELINEENREEE
E(XZZERRTERLASUARES
R EAC YR R ERaE (2R
B REAMENTIR  BEAEARR

TEFOMERmEEQDT
2021 2020
:——;'i: _$ = 7
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Assets BE

HKD BT 1,718 7,470
usb %7@ 635 177
GBP gy 10 10
EUR BT 760 =
Liabilities =t

HKD BT 17,379 47,842
usb ETT 2,842 =

Sensitivity analysis
The Group mainly exposes to the currency of HKD
relative to RMB.

BRRE DT
AEBFERZB T ARBHRER °
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued) 39. 2T A
Market risk (Continued) miEEE(E)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EEEE(E)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BURRE DT (8)

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
10% (2020: 10%) increase and decrease in RMB against
the relevant foreign currencies. 10% represents the
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end
of the reporting period for a 10% (2020: 10%) change in

RSB AR K ABBEINEE
R TR TIEKI0%(—F = F4 1 10%)
RWBURE - 10%NEREREEHEEXNE
BB - HBESITERRE
REERINETHEERIEE - WHRE
BRI 5 DA I Rk [ R 9 10% (=

TFF 10%)EH) o TXWIEEKR
A R AR R SNEFE = EF10%(=

foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates TTF 10%) VBN TERBEE A
an increase in post-tax profit where the RMB strengthens N o fig A RS HABREINE B R ZR 55
10% (2020: 10%) against the relevant currency. For a 10% 10% - H‘Jiﬂ—X B Al N B ER S R [ 55
weakening of RMB against the relevant currency, they WEETZ

would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit and

balances below would be negative.

2021 2020
:_—;'i: _$ = 7
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARETTT

HKD BIT

Profit or loss A E e 1,265 3,336

usD =S

Profit or loss Ak E1E 203 (16)

GBP HEE

Profit or loss A EE (1) (1

EUR BT

Profit or loss A E B (68) =
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued) . TR I A
Market risk (Continued) HizEkE(E)
(i) Interest rate risk (i) FEmEE
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due R ERITAEER A SR 3R1T R E AR B 3R (3%
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate BT AR RBEEBRITRAZERE
on bank balances, and bank and other borrowings which FriR =Gt E 8% B5H B ) BIRITH IS
carry at prevailing deposit interest rates and variable rate MERE) - FLAREBAERRBEME
based on the interest rates from HIBOR. A @ o
The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates primarily AEEHAABENERREEGEHET
to its fixed rate pledged bank deposits, bank and other B Eﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ ERIT R E A FEFUA
borrowings and lease liabilities. The Group currently does RESEE o ZN 55 [ 3R B NI A A6 R ]
not have any interest rate hedging policy to hedge its 7F'J+¥Tx*ﬁkﬁ¥¢f$ﬁﬁ@%5’\]ﬂ$EW;’AE S
exposure to interest rate risk. However, the management AT BERESE RNV EREREKR
will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure *'Jyﬂfi“ °
should the need arise.
The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial REBEAR Eﬁiémﬂﬁﬁﬁfaﬁﬁﬂrﬂ
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management b - FRIBEUNAMIFIRENE € Ak
section of this note. —ff e
A fundamental reform of major interest rate benchmarks ZIREE A F EFREEF AR
is being undertaken globally, including the replacement AHNE - EREERERERATE
of some interbank offered rates (“IBORs"”) with R B F R EERE TIRITREFE
alternative nearly risk-free rates. Details of the impacts on (MRITREIZEFS |) - FRA R ELENE
the Group's risk management strategy arising from the HASERRERERBALE - UK
interest rate benchmark reform and the progress towards PRI B EL AR R B0 R B B B
implementation of alternative benchmark interest rates NP RE] F R EAERE |THTE o
are set out under “interest rate benchmark reform” in
this note.
Sensitivity analysis BRREDHT
Sensitivity analysis on bank balances is not presented as MR EIR[ER AN A R KB E
the management considers that the Group's exposure to BAKN - RITEROBRED T RS
interest rate fluctuation is insignificant. 5” °
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined THIGURRE S AT TR IR R 5 BAR A F &
based on the exposure to interest rates for the variable HRTT Re ELA 8 SR R R B DA B B I R
rate bank and other borrowings at the end of the Ff'ﬁﬁi‘ﬁq‘E’]ﬁi&ﬂ&t—ilﬁ’\ﬁﬂlirﬁ?HT\
reporting period and the stipulated change taking place BMEE 7W‘Bﬁ£ EIRABE
at the beginning of the financial year and held constant iﬁﬂtﬂ. & DAFF K100 fEE 2 (=
throughout the year. A 100 basis points (2020: 100 basis ToTHF ‘IOOTI%%)(E‘JE/%_EETT&
points) increase or decrease for variable rate bank and EMERms ) REE  BEEBAES
other borrowings are used when reporting interest BIRTAERTT R E M SR A R S IR AT 8
rate risk internally to key management personnel and 2% -
represent management'’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates in respect of bank and
other borrowings.
If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2020: 100 i F = EF T FE100EE2 (=T =
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were T - 1001EEES) - MAAA Bt
held constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year HETE  AIAEBEHE—T - —F
ended 31 December 2021 would have decreased/ ‘f’ RA=+— Etifﬁ’ﬂﬁ%fﬁmﬁ‘ﬂ
increased by RMB1,351,000 (2020: RMB1,462,000). D3I AREE1,351,00070 (= =
?Efﬁ AR ¥1,462,0007T)
Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited 146 Annual Report 2021

—E-—FFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

,ﬂi ﬁf%$&3§MT¢E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

39. Financial Instruments (Continued) . E@T R

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amounts of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets except that the credit risks associated with
trade receivables is partially mitigated because settlement
of certain trade receivables are backed by bills issued by
reputable banks.

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from contracts
with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits
and credit approvals. Before accepting any new customer, the
Group uses an internal credit assessment system to assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
regularly. The Group may require a deposit to be received
from certain customers of corrugated medium paper products
before acceptance of orders. Other monitoring procedures
are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade balances individually
or based on provision matrix. Trade receivables are assessed
for ECL by categorising into receivables fully backed by
bank bills and not backed by bank bills. Debtors with trade
receivables backed by bank bills are assessed individually
taking into consideration of the credit rating and reputation
of the banks issuing the bills. The Group assessed the ECL on
trade receivables not backed by bank bills and contract assets
individually for debtors and contract assets with significant
balance or credit-impaired and/or collectively based on
provision matrix with appropriate groupings based primarily on
the debtors’ ageing profiles.

Pledged bank deposits/bank balances

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

FERBKRERE
R-FB_—F+-_A=+t—H BHFHR
EEETEEMEAKBEER P BIRLINREX
ERRRAEEMHIR KRS IAD i
REMEEMRHEE
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hm%@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬂé?ﬁ%me
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SEAEEERETRE CARPIRMHFE -
TTAESERTE o W E HIFT A E SRR R R
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Other receivables

Other receivables are assessed individually and not included
in provision matrix. The credit quality of other receivables have
been assessed with reference to the historical information
about the past due information, default rate, the financial
position of counterparties and also supportive forward-looking
information. The directors of the Company consider that
the credit risk of other receivables is low in view of the good
collection history.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 25% (2020: 29%)
of total trade receivables represented amounts due from
the Group's largest three (2020: three) trade debtors as at 31
December 2021. The management is of the view that these
trade debtors of the Group have good trade record without
default history and consider that the trade receivable from
these customers is recoverable.

Other than those described above, the Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk.

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises
the following categories:

39. €@ T A

FERBRRRERE(E)

Bt fEW IR
HAtb YRR B BETRE - TREERE
R - At ERUGKIENEERBELEE
HaREHNBEER BOX
B B 75 7R 0 A K 75 3 4 O A BE B R 1T AT
flr o ER R M RFCE - RRAREERS
Hitb RUR IR R Z

RZZB-—F+-A=+—H AEE=X
BHBEBA(CT_ZF : =8)EAEEE
SIEN IR (ZEFF - 29%) - |
BAREEFEETEERR - EEERS
AEENEZEBARR RIFOR FH
VEENESE  AURRR/ERZEEFNE

ERBERIE -

ZIEWGRIAR U E -

B bt

AEBNAEEERRERNFEEIEATA

Al

AREYEEAKHEERR

Internal Trade receivables/ Other financial assets/
credit rating Description contract assets other items
AEEERR i pus EZRWHE SNEE HtemEE HiEH
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default or Lifetime ECL — not credit- 12m ECL
does not have any past-due amounts impaired
iVERE S R FERRENORBRSIOE EAIEH FHIREEEEE - 128 ARG E R
IR BEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL — not credit- 12m ECL
but usually settle in full impaired
BRAE BERALTEHEINIE 2 RER - BRFEHEE AR EEER - 1218 B IE B E S R 1E
B E KA BEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit risk since initial recognition through not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
information developed internally or
external resources
AR FBAERE B R SN EREE T B (i ZHREEEEE - ZHIEEEEE -
RUARIEE R BRAEZEE N BEERE BEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
&1 BRBBRNEECHREERE >R EEEE - ZEESEEER -
EERE EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off

is in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery
ik BRBETNEBAERARENBRE - B
REFVEERWOZIRNKE

MsH T

WSS 58
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's

financial assets and contract assets, which are subject to ECL

39. €@ T A

FERBRRRERE(E)
TRAAERRETEMEREEBRF G
ERMEERSNEENEERR :

assessment:
Internal
2021 NOTES credit rating 12m or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
128 A=
—E-—f Mz ARBEETR EREERMR HEEREE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT AR¥TR
Pledged bank deposits 24 Low risk (note (i) 12m ECL 92,368 92,368
BRI TR VEEAGEIO) 1218 A e EAE B &1E
Bank balances 24 Low risk (note (i) 12m ECL 229,540 229,540
RITHEER VERAGCIEIO) 1218 AR EA R B &1E
Other receivables 21 Low risk (note (ii)) 12m ECL 18,763 18,763
H A FEUGRIE VER AT 1218 A e EA s B &8
Trade receivables — contracts 21 Low risk (note (iii)) Lifetime ECL 336,045
with customers (collective assessment)
B O RBRIE-EPEH VER A D) > HTE B B 18 (88T )
Low risk Lifetime ECL 721,534
(individual assessment)
1K B 2 HiTE i B & 18 (18 RIFT )
Loss Credit-impaired 1,319 1,058,898
&8 EERE
Contract assets 23 Low risk (note (iii)) Lifetime ECL 15,550 15,550

BREE

{E RV (P =EGi))

(individual assessment)

2 HBEMEEERE(ERIFFE)
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

. EMTHE®)

FERBRRRERE(E)

Internal
credit
2020 NOTES rating 12m or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
NEMEE 12{.)5112%@
—E T Mz FEAR TEEHEER HARE(E
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARBTT
Pledged bank deposits 24 Low risk (note (i) 12m ECL 106,401 106,401
BERRITIFR VEEAGEIO) 1218 A B HAE B E1E
Bank balances 24 Low risk (note (i)) 12m ECL 185,343 185,343
RITHEER 1R B (B EE()) 1218 A B EA R B &iE
Other receivables 21 Low risk (note (ii)) 12m ECL 19,716 19,716
H b FEMGRIE EVERAGIE DY) 1218 A e EAE B &8
Trade receivables — contracts 21 Low risk (note (iii)) Lifetime ECL 260,644
with customers (collective assessment)
B O RWRIE-EPEH VA D) > HTE B B 18 (R 88aTh)
Low risk Lifetime ECL 623,229
(individual assessment)
{liwE 2 HiTE i B & 18 (18 RIETE )
Loss Credit-impaired 2,326 886,199
&8 EERE
Contract assets 23 Low risk (note (iii)) Lifetime ECL 18,628 18,628
(individual assessment)
EHEE {iVER AT EN)) 2 HTE B = B &8 (A BIEHE)
Notes: Pt -

(i)

(iii)

For the purpose of internal credit risk management, the Group
has made reference to the external credit rating for its major bank

balances.

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses
past due information to assess whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. As at 31 December 2021 and

2020, the Group has no past due other receivables.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied
the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance
at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding
balances, credit-impaired or trade receivables backed by bills, the
Group determines the ECL on these items by using a provision matrix

as mentioned above.

0] HRARBEERBREENS AREES2EHEE
RIRTTRRRRINDEERTAR

(ii) RABEERREEMNS @ AEEFERBOHE
EFEEVTRAREERRESSEZEM -
R_E_—FR-_FT-_TF+=-A=+—8H"
N E2 [0 2 00 H EL b U RIE o

(i)  HEZEEFARANEEMS @ AKEDRK
REBUBHRELRESENEBCITEAAERD
TEHEEERNERER - REFERREE
Eh  HBREEREIUNSBRREENE ZE
WORIR RO BRFRIN » AN S B ER P bt 35 5 7 Pem e

IR B IREIERER ©
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BE-Z-—F+-A=+—HIFE

39. Financial Instruments (Continued) . TR IR
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERMBREETE(E)
The following table provides information about the exposure TREMEBAERTERREBE N (RS
to credit risk for trade receivables not backed by bank bills %E@E%ELTTE,HE%EMD,JEETE'@K&EET*A
which are assessed on a collective basis by using provision WE) R ENE S ERFENEERRE
matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired). o
Gross carrying amount FREAEE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E— =
Average Trade Average Trade
loss rate  receivables loss rate receivables
FHBRE EBEZERWIE THEEX ZEZ5RKEUA
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFTT
0-60 days 0£260H 0.66% 319,912 0.66% 254,336
61-90 days 61290H 0.95% 10,727 1.01% 3,080
91-180 days 91£180H 2.02% 5,292 1.32% 3,180
Over 180 days HiE180H 100.00% 114 100.00% 48
336,045 260,644
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical fhET B R ETIIR R ERS A TR B F BE) B Al
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors BIREBEARMGET - MRBATCETIUERR
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is BN A ESHRIEEERHELRAE - &
available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly BETHEE M  UBRENEHAEER
reviewed by the management to ensure relevant information BARIEEEER -

about specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a reversal of RBEZZ-_—F+-A=+—HIFE

allowance for credit losses of RMB395,000 (2020: nil) was AEEE IR EERENRIER AR
made on credit-impaired debtors and an allowance for credit 395,000 ( —E-—ZTF : E)NEEEEE
losses of RMB5,824,000 (2020: RMB4,402,000) and a reversal - Jz}(&?fﬁjfﬂﬁ%fﬂﬁmﬁg KET i AR
of allowance for credit losses of RMB4,562,000 (2020: nil) were 5,824,00070( —ZF —ZT4F : AR® 4,402,000
made on the not credit-impaired debtors. T0)EE BB %S - WD A RE4,562,000

(=T -FF  B)NEEERES -
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)

39.

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that
has been recognised for trade receivables not backed by bills

EMITE)

FERBRRRERE(E)
TREFREBEBCDEHERTREREE
E SREIRERNEHRBEEER 2

under the simplified approach. EE o
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL
(not credit- (credit- Total
impaired) impaired) amount
AN ZHITEM
FEEBR FEEBSR
(BEERE) (ISERE) BEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTFTT
At 1 January 2020 W-ZZE_FEF—-H—H 141 1,771 1,912
New financial assets originated ERESREE 4,402 = 4,402
Increase due to acquisition R Y P B J88 22 B T 38 0
of a subsidiary 19 395 414
At 31 December 2020 R-ZF-_ZTF+_A=1+—8H 4,562 2,166 6,728
Changes due to financial instruments ~FEAZ=ZZ=—F— 5 —HE®ER
recognised as at 1 January 2021: SR T AMmEENE
— Impairment losses reversed — B EIREEE (4,562) (395) (4,957)
— Write-offs — s = (452) (452)
New financial assets originated gRA S R EE 5,824 = 5,824
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE—_—F+-A=+—H 5,824 1,319 7,143

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is

information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial

difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.

when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has

entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade

receivables are over two years past due, whichever occurs

earlier. The Group has taken legal action against the debtors

to recover the amount due.

BEEERBTRERARBABREMBRERHE R

EERLEREF0R -

g - EEBADE

TBERIDEAWERF - HE SRR

BHBAME (R TFREHLE)

AR E

R S MR « AR EEHEBA

REUERTTE) - AMEIEK IR -
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that
has been recognised for trade receivables backed by bank bills

39. €@ T A

FERBRRRERE(E)
TRETFREBEBCIDEHNBRTREREE
E SREIRERNEHRBEEER 2

under the simplified approach. EE o

Lifetime
ECL
(not credit-
impaired)
2HITEH
FEBR
(BEERE)
RMB'000
AREETTT
At 1 January 2020 R-ZT_ZF—H—H =
New financial assets originated MSRESREE 327
At 31 December 2020 W_F_FF+-A=1+—H 327

Changes due to financial instruments recognised HAZ=Z=—F—A—HE®RESRMITAMB AL

as at 1 January 2021:

— Impairment losses reversed — B EIREEE (327)
New financial assets originated GRS REE 762
At 31 December 2021 R-ZZEZ—F+-A=+—H 762

For trade receivables backed by bank bills, an impairment
allowance of RMB762,000 (2020: RMB327,000) has been
made by the directors of the Company after considering the
probability of default and taking into consideration of the
credit rating and reputation of the banks issuing the bills.

RUBITREARENE ZEKGIENE
RNAREBRE BEN A REM Rt k3T
ZEMNBTHEESHRESE%  EHTA
R#762,0007T (ZE_F4 : AR327,000
TL) KR B2 -
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued) 39. €M I A
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EE R KRB ()
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that TRETBBEECHEZHARTRERER
has been recognised for trade receivables backed by other bills MBS ERRIBRANHEREESEZ
under the simplified approach. EE o
Lifetime
ECL
(not credit-
impaired)
2HITEH
FEBR
(BEERE)
RMB’000
AREETTT
At 1 January 2020 R-ZT_ZF—H—H =
New financial assets originated MSRESREE 145
At 31 December 2020 R-F_FF+-A=+—H 145
Changes due to financial instruments recognised HAZ=Z=—F—A—HE®RESRMITAMB AL
as at 1 January 2021:
— Impairment losses reversed — B EIREEE (145)
New financial assets originated GRS REE 169
At 31 December 2021 R-ZZEZ—F+-A=+—H 169
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The following table shows the movement in 12m ECL that has
been recognised for other receivables under the simplified

. EMTHE®)

FERBRRRERE(E)
TRBURRIE L 77)A 5 H e U GRIRHERR
12 ATREEE IR 28 -

approach.
12m ECL
(not credit-
impaired)
1218 A
FEEE
(BEERE)
RMB’'000
AREETTT
As at 1 January 2020 RZZE_FF—-H—H -
New financial assets originated MSRESREE 181
At 31 December 2020 M_$_7 Ft+=-A=+—H 181
Changes due to financial instruments recognised ~HAZ=FT=—F—A—HER T @R ITAMEEMNE
as at 1 January 2021:
— Impairment losses reversed — R EIRERSE (181)
New financial assets originated GRS REE 143
At 31 December 2021 R-ZZEZ—F+-A=+—H 143
Liquidity risk REBE SRR

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
The management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings.

The following table details the Group's contractual maturity for
its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the year
of the reporting period.

EEERDECERE - NEBEEERER
EIEER F%}EEE’JEE%&EE FEY AR
AEENESERHES - I/mfifﬁii/ﬁ%i&
BOFE - EEELERITEFRNERER

TRHANAEESRABNANIHAR - &
RIBRBARERENFTNRT A HIRR SR
BEMRERASRERS -

ZREFENERAERERE - WHRRF
BAE - APRBA S RIRREHFENHF X
FHE
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued) . TR IR
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESER(E)
Liquidity table B E B
Weighted On demand or Total
average less than 6 months Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 6 months to 1 year 1-5 years Syears  cash flows amounts
RERY, ~EA KHRRSE

WEFIRE  DRAER E-f it BEML HEE A
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARETE  ARBTT  ARETR

2021 —B--f
Trade and other payables B HREAENFHIE N/ATER 233,857 - - - 233,857 233,857
Amounts due to directors O EES N/ATHEF 443 - - - 443 443
Bank borrowings RITEHR
—fixed rate —E& 4.25 645,256 151,740 65,520 37,514 900,030 873,907
—variable interest rate —38 317 274 17170 - - 17,444 17170
Lease liabilities HEAE 5.83 9,171 8,511 24,196 16,462 58,340 45,315
Other borrowings EfbfER
- fixed rate ) 4.20 143,104 1,816 - - 144,920 143,724
- variable interest rate — 2B 10.56 46,560 46,560 80,068 - 173,188 156,653
Consideration payables e B 5.23 1,670 - 1,670 - 3,340 3,282
1,080,335 225,797 171,454 53,976 1,531,562 1,474,351
2020 —Z-%
Trade and other payables ELYEY N N/ARGER 179,485 - - - 179,485 179,485
Amounts due to directors O EES N/ATER 507 - - - 507 507
Bank borrowings RITIRH
~fixed rate -E& 425 494,045 310,226 14,742 - 819,013 800,752
- variable interest rate —%8 2.35 8971 38,941 - - 47912 47324
Lease liabilities HERRE 575 9,045 8217 24,334 17,462 59,058 45,204
Other borrowings HtfER
~fixed rate -8 374 122,146 10,319 - - 132,465 132,108
—variable interest rate -%8 11.78 34,860 34,860 76,890 - 146,610 131,159
Consideration payables ENREZE 523 7,860 - 3,340 - 11,200 10,900
856,919 402,563 119,306 17,462 1,396,250 1,347,459
The amounts included above for variable interest rate M2 ERNEEA RIRRE B RTE TSN G
instruments are subject to change if changes in variable interest Fl= - BIFFA ERMZETIEAENSETES
rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at o
the end of the reporting period.
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued) 39. &I A

As listed in note 27, several of the Group's HIBOR bank
borrowings will or may be subject to the interest rate
benchmark reform. The Group is closely monitoring the
market and managing the transition to new benchmark interest
rates, including announcements made by the relevant IBOR
regulators.

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight Index Average
("HONIA") has been identified as an alternative to HIBOR,
there is no plan to discontinue HIBOR. The multi-rate approach
has been adopted in Hong Kong, whereby HIBOR and HONIA
will co-exist.

The following are the key risks for the Group arising from the
transition:

Interest rate related risks

There are fundamental differences between IBORs and the
various alternative benchmark rates. IBORs are forward-
looking term rates published for a period (e.g. 3 months) at
the beginning of that period and include an inter-bank credit
spread, whereas alternative benchmark rates are typically risk-
free overnight rates published at the end of the overnight
period with no embedded credit spread. These differences will
result in additional uncertainty regarding floating rate interest
payments.

Liquidity risk

The additional uncertainty on various alternative rates which
are typically published on overnight basis will require additional
liquidity management. The Group’s liquidity risk management
policy has been updated to ensure sufficient liquid resources
to accommodate unexpected increases in overnight rates.

Fair value of the Group's financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial liabilities are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
fair value is observable.

BN EE27 Pt - AEEZ EREBRITA
EHEFTERRITESH SR e & A =
ERNETE - AEEEETYERMS
MEEBEEMEENXNER - BFEERM
RITAXFEEERBRANAE -

BEETRAFHEHR(BTREFEE
) BEBFRBBRITREREMNHE KR
X MEWETERIEERBARITRARRF
B BARBEENRIFELTSR BRI
RN EAA TR R FIEHHILTT -

AN RASERBEMEEN T 2L :

F =D B = By

RITRAXFEEZTEEREREMN R BFHE
RAZR - RITRAZEHR S AH BRI (Hn
3MEA) i MmrRTHE MERIR A X - S B4

REREANE  WEBRAEEEE - ARE
BHIRE M - ZEERVNEHEZERTE
MR R REE N

RBETEME
BERBERZEMNSEE AN ENRRINFE
EMERFERIINRBIEEIE - NEBAR
PURBREERRC IR - IRFEERE
KRB E IR - SARE I BR R A E ey B ME
£ o

BEEEEUNMABEHEZARESHMEE
ZANRE
AEENETEREERSREHRURL
BEFfE - TREHRBBRUNEELXSEHEA
BENRARENER(LERERNBETTER
BARIR) - ARBRIBAEN A EBREER
AREFEETOR(E-—REF=F)NA
REERHEF
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued) . 2RI A
Valuation Significant
Fair value as at Fair value technique(s) unobservable
31 December 2021 hierarchy & key inputs input(s) Sensitivity
R=B=-£+=8 fRAER AT R BEXTAER
=t+—-HWARE AREEBR EXBARE BARE BRE
Contingent RMB8,217,000 Level 3 (i) Discounted cash  Probability of The higher the probability of
consideration (2020: RMB11,931,000) flow model: payment 100%; payment, the higher the
payables The key input (2020: 100%) fair value of the derivative
are probability discount rate financial instrument; the
of payment for of 5.23% (2020: higher the discount rate,
the contingent 5.23%) the lower the fair value
consideration and of the derivative financial
discount rate instrument
RAENAE AR#8,217,0007T E=R ()ERRemER IAERA100% IABRES  TEeRT
(Z2ZZF : AR A BERBARE (C2E-ZF: BHAAERS  BREK
11,931,0007¢) RXNBRAEN 100%) BRXS #5 TESBTANA
R R = 58%( =TT AEHE
& : 5.23%)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements E=HAINE ZER
Financial
liability at
FVTPL
RARE
BNk
A= =R
RMB’000
ARBFIT
At 1 January 2020 RZE=FF—H—H -
Addition by acquisition of a subsidiary Lo B BT 8 2 ) T 3 11,375
Fair value loss in profit or loss SFABRMANEERE 556
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZEF+_HA=+—H 11,931
Fair value loss in profit or loss SFABRNAAEERE 556
Settlement e (4,270)
At 31 December 2021 R_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H 8,217
Except for the contingent consideration payables, the fair value RENSAREZI  eREERSHAR

of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on

discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values.

MAREBDREBERRBSRESTARKRA

REBRAEE

ARBEZRREE PSR P IREHKA
AENEREENSHARMNERAERER
AERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

40. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing 40. REEBFIELEEHR

Activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising TRFVNAEENRETHAEEAGEES - 015
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. ReRFReEH - METHMELAEERSR
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash EFRRRERENLTERZERERERANDH
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's RBREEEJIHERE
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.
Amount
due to
anon-
Bank Other Lease Interest Dividend  controlling
borrowings  borrowings liabilities payables payable interest Total
EfFER
RITHER it g HEAR EfHE EffRE ERFE b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT AR%Tr ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2020 W-Z2-ZF-A—-H 721,933 151,379 65,684 - - - 938,996
Financing cash flows HERSNE 312470 78,726 (17,151) (45,288) (15,000 (21,468) 292,289
Foreign exchange translation A 5 (3,486) - - - - - (3,486)
Interest expense FlEZH = = 3,125 45,288 = = 48413
Dividend RE - - - - 15,000 - 15,000
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—FHBAR 31,000 = = = = 21,468 52,468
Covid-19-related rent concessions  Covid-19/EEI £ BE - - (1.411) - - = (1.411)
Gross amount of bills from external E 8% kA ERIEL
customers discounted with IEEPREYFRER
recourse - 238,549 - - - - 238,549
Non-cash settlement of BERENRE IR eRE
discounted bills (213,841) (205,387) - - - - (419,228)
New lease L - - 1,259 - - = 1,259
Lease termination RIS = = (6,282) = = = (6,282)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-FET-A=t-H 848,076 263,267 45,224 - - - 1,156,567
Financing cash flows Pﬂﬁfﬁﬁmuz 512,802 17,154 (19,407) (58,017) (15,000) (900) 436,632
Foreign exchange translation MR (930) - - - - - (930)
Interest expense FELH - - 4,016 58,017 - - 62,033
Dividend RE - - - - 15,000 900 15,900
Gross amount of bills from exteal Z 8638 RMIA B RIEZ
customers discounted with IBEFPRYEEERE
recourse - 173,470 - - - - 173,470
Non-cash settlement of BERENREL
discounted bills HRERE (468,871)  (153,514) - - - - (622,385)
New lease MEIHE - - 15,482 - - - 15,482
At 31 December 2021 WoBo—E+-B=t-R 891077 300377 45,315 - - - 1,236,769
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—Z-_—F+-A=1+—BIFE

41. Related Parties Transactions 41. BABAERS
Name Relationship
=L e
Zhongshan City Zheng Ye Leasing Company Limited Controlled by the controlling shareholders of the Company

(“Zheng Ye Leasing”)

PILTEXEERRAR([EXEE]) AN AR AR A SR PR

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions with related parties:

RAER » AEBSRBH T TIATRS

2021 2020
—EB-—fF —ECTE
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARETTT

Zheng Ye Leasing E¥EE
— Interest on lease liabilities —HESENE
— Lease liabilities —HEBE

595 949
6,795 6,708

Rental deposit of RMB450,000 (2020: RMB450,000) paid to
Zheng Ye Leasing has been included in trade and other
receivables in the consolidated statement of financial position
at 31 December 2021.

Amounts due to directors are disclosed on note 30.

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

BEXHEENARKAL50,00T(ZZE=F
&+ AR¥450,0000) HERSEFT AR
S —F+-A=t+—BHKEUBAR LK
B8 5 & E At fE U FRIE o

FENEFEFIARMIEIORKEE

BEERAMEEEERERKERNFEREFHM
T~

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T AREET T

Salaries and other benefits Fre REHAMER 29,099 24,232
Retirement benefits schemes contributions RIRFEFIET B R 377 175
29,476 24,407

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to
the performance of individuals and market trends.

ZREARRETIGBHLETE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—Z-_—F+-A=1+—BHIFE

42. Share-Based Payment Transactions 42.

On 23 April 2019, an employees’ share award scheme (“the
Scheme"”) was adopted by the Company which will remain in force
for 10 years. Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company would subsidise
some employees of the Group (the “Selected Participants”), a
portion of funds to purchase issued shares of the Company by a
trustee through market transactions. Up to 26 June 2019, a total of
4,214,000 shares of the Company had been purchased and vested to
the Selected Participants. The Group recognised the total expense
of RMB1,467,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 in relation
to its contribution in the Scheme. For the year ended 31 December
2021 and 2020, no employee was awarded under the Scheme and no
expense was recognised.

BROEBERTRRS

ARERN_ZE—NFNA-_+=BRMHN—IEREER
D ERENETEI([ &5t 8l)) o IRIBZETE - AARIHFRE
HEIEHES  AXEABBIERZBEEZTR
1’7} %’*Mﬁﬁﬁ STASERE((BESHEE]) - &

—NFSRNAZ+/"H ' EEES5T4,214,000
H’;%K RO TEE TRESESE - BHEZT—AN
FTZA=T—HIEFE ASEREHZERN
HRFER AT HARE1,467,000T c HE=T=—
FRZEZRFFZRA=+—HIEFE - BERE
Zatal A E B L EEE) - INERERERER -

43. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company 43. XA EIME A RS
Place of Proportion ownership Proportion of
incorporation/ Paid up issued/ Class of interest held by voting power held
Name of subsidiary registration/operations registered capital shares hold the Company by the Company Principal activities
i/ BéRG/ FARNEN ARREAN
HEAFEE i/ e B ifRA SRS il i FERRRLE IERH
At 31 December
RtZA=t-A
2021 2000 2021 20
i it P k. e
TYAZ International Limited British Virgin Islands Authorised USD50,000 Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
(“Zheng Ye (BVI)") (“the BVI') Paid USD20,000 * Lk RAR
XERAES 0000
B 4120000
Zheng Ye International Company ~ Hong Kong HKD10,000 Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited &8 1000047 LER RERR
EXERARLA
Shing Yip (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HKD322,384,575 Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
Investment Enterprises Limited &7 (2020: HKD10,000) LaAR RERR
Hx(FR RARRERAR 300,384 5758 T
(ZZZ2F 10000%7)
Zheng Ye Packaging (Zhongshan) ~ The PRC HKD156,211,400 Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%  Manufacturing and
Company Limited hE (2020: HKD1020000000 B operating of paper-
EXER(RL)ERAR 156,211, 400870 based packaging
(C2-%%: products, packaging
102,000,000/%7C) related business and
printing of decorative
packaging products
EEREESSORER
BREBRERARER
e el
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-2-—FT-A={ BLEE

43. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)

43. XA TMBEABNFER @)

Place of Proportion ownership Proportion of
incorporation/ Paid up issued/ Class of interest held by voting power held
Name of subsidiary registration/operations  registered capital shares hold the Company by the Company Principal activities
AL/ B#Ef/ ARFREN ARAREN
HRARER it/ EEHE A KERGER it 230 fERZRL = IEEH
At 31 December
RT=A=t-R
2021 2020 2021 2020
Z8--F TC%F CBI-F CBCRE
Zhongshan Yong Fa Paper Industry  The PRC HKD106,500,000 Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Company Limited i 106,500,007 Lk paper and paperboard
hlKEERARAA EENEEANGR
Zhuhai Zheng Ye Packing Company  The PRC RMB52,164,718.50 Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Limited i (2020: HKD17,000000)0 LR paper-based packaging
KEEXRRERAR 156,211, 400%7 products and related
(z3-zF: packaging service
102,000,000 72) SENBHEARARERR
HBaRRE
Shijiazhuang Zheng Ye Packaging ~ The PRC RMB20,000,000 Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Company Limited ﬁF ARE20,0000007 Lk paper-based packaging
RFHTEBRARAR products and printing
of decorative packaging
products
EENHESRARERR
PRIz EDRR
Wuhan Zheng Ye Alliance Packaging  The PRC RMB35,000,000 Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Company Limited B ARE35,0000007 Lk paper-based packaging
REFEHABKARAT products and printing
of decorative packaging
products
EENHESRARERR
Mplazx DRI
Zhongshan Rengo Hung Hing Paper  The PRC USDS53,660,000 Ordinary 58.7% 58.7% 58.7% 587%  Manufacturing and sale of
Manufacturing Company Limited B 53,660,000 T Lk paper and paperboard
("Hung Hing") EENFEANGR
hiliBABREAERAR (4E))
Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited 162 Annual Report 2021

EXBFERARAT

—E-—FFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 /\ 3 23
e BB R T
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—FT_A=1t—HLFE

43. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company (Continued) 43. ZRAF]ME A BINFE @)

Place of Proportion ownership Proportion of
incorporation/ Paid up issued/ Class of interest held by voting power held
Name of subsidiary registration/operations  registered capital shares hold the Company by the Company Principal activities
it/ Bgf/ AREREN ALREEN
HEARAR it/ 2B A SERHER frafatE FERRRLE IERE
At 31 December
Rt=A=+-H

2021 200 2021 200
Z§--f CEZCTE CBC-F Z30EF

Zhengyi The PRC RMB89,000,000 Ordinary 80% 80% 80% 80%  Manufacturing and sale of
I E AR 89,000,007 Lk paper and paperboard
EENHESNGR

Zhongshan Lianfa Transportation e PRC RMB5,000,000 Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%  Transportation

Company Limited hE ARES,000,00070 LRk EH
P TR EEARAT
Zhongshan Zhengye Transportation  The PRC RMB3,000,000 Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%  Transportation

Company Limited hE ARE3,00000070 LRk EH
hIlmEERARAR
Gaoan Guangyong Logistics Company The PRC RMB3,000,000 Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%  Transportation

Limited R ARH30000007C el L
BREXIRARAR
Gaoan Guangzheng Transportation  The PRC RMB850,000 Ordinary 100% N/A 100% N/A Transportation

Company Limited il ARH8500007T Eak 0 EH
ERELERARAA
* Except for Zheng Ye (BVI), the issued capital of all other companies is fully * FRZheng Ye (BVISh © FTE HM A BB BITRAHE

paid and indirectly held by the Company. B - WHARRIBERE -
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the RERSFENEMERE - B AR R E AR ER
end of the year or at any time during the year. BERRE S o
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BE-2-—FT-A={ BLEE

44. Details of Non-Wholly Owned Subsidiaries that 44. MEERFERERZFZEMB AT

have Material Non-Controlling Interests 15

Place of registration Proportion of ownership
Name of and principal interests held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
subsidiary place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
WEAREH EMEHRTEE RS FRRER R REARELD DEFERER 2 RF EHE

31/12/2021 31/12/200  31/12/2021 31/12/2000  31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—g--%& —E-FF —B--F “E-EE —B--F e 23
t=A=+-A +ZA=t-B +=A=+-B +tZA=t-B +=A=t-B +zA=1-A
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Hung Hing Zhongshan, the PRC
B8 Gzl 41.3% 41.3% 42,165 4,826 245,489 203,34
Zhengyi Yudu, the PRC
I HE T 20.0% 20.0% 5,272 2962 24,941 20,569
47,437 7,788 270,430 223,893
Hung Hing 5
2021 2020
—EB-—fF ZECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Current assets mBAEE 343,627 224,610
Non-current assets ERBEE 422,314 452,273
Current liabilities VA=Y ET (147,770) (117,455)
Non-current liabilities ERBBEE (23,766) (67,118)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RNABER AL ER 348,916 288,986
Non-controlling interests of Hung Hing TREZ IEE R A 245,489 203,324
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-2-—FT_A={ BLEE

44. Details of Non-Wholly Owned Subsidiaries that

have Material Non-Controlling Interests
Hung Hing (Continued)

(Continued)

=316 )

R B ()

. BEEAFERERCHZEWB LT

2021 2020

—E-—F ZETF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREETTT

Revenue WA 1,173,391 657,016

Expenses A (1,071,296) (645,331)

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 4F P Fl| &2 2 Ui 25 102,095 11,685

Profit and total comprehensive income attributable 782 B#EA A &L @ ) &

to owners of the Company 2 HEWEERE 59,930 6,859
Profit and total comprehensive income attributable 5 7 FE15 I8 e 2 FE A5 4 7 &2

to the non-controlling interests of Hung Hing ZHE AR 42,165 4,826

Net cash inflows (outflows) from operating activities #&& %5 A )R & FHE 53,271 (52,660)

Net cash from (used in) investing activities BEEBEE (AR F5E 58,350 (52,208)

Net cash (used in) from financing activities RE XK (TR ) AR R /55 (36,343) 44,214

Net cash inflow (outflows) MACRH)REFE 75,278 (60,654)
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BE-2-—FT-A={ BLEE

44. Details of Non-Wholly Owned Subsidiaries that

44.

BAEERFERESZFZENBAT

have Material Non-Controlling Interests (Continued) E3(E)
Zhengyi Ef=
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Current assets MBEE 83,203 72,757
Non-current assets FEMBEE 138,422 124,009
Current liabilities mERIE (82,693) (61,892)
Non-current liabilities EREAE (14,229) (32,027)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company DRI NGRS 99,762 82,278
Non-controlling interests of Zhengyi TR FEiEiR s 24,941 20,569
Revenue L'ON 285,302 189,352
Expenses X (258,946) (174,541)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 4 A& Fl & 2 U &= 26,356 14,811
Profit and total comprehensive income attributable ZNAE#EA ARG RF &2 K mE5E
to owners of the Company 21,084 11,849
Profit and total comprehensive income attributable IE{E2 FE¥EAR R 5 (G ' F1) &2 2 I W 2= 48 58
to the non-controlling interests of Zhengyi 5,272 2,962
Net cash inflows from operating activities KB RAIR S FH 13,526 4,526
Net cash used in investing activities WEESTAR SR (22,876) (17,387)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities BEXEE(FTA) SRS FE (11,491) 36,008
Net cash (outflows) inflows (REDRABR S F5E (20,841) 23,147
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BE—Z_—Ft-A=1—HLFE

45. Events after the Reporting Period 45. EHREIER

During the year, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement and a supplemental agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreements”) with the equity owners of Zheng Ye Leasing, pursuant
to which the Group has conditionally agreed to acquire the entire
equity interest in Zheng Ye Leasing at an aggregate consideration of
RMB186,000,000.

On 10 February 2022, all conditions precedent to the Sale and
Purchase Agreements were fulfilled and the Group had completed
the acquisition of Zheng Ye Leasing. Zheng Ye Leasing became an
indirect owned subsidiary of the Company. The Group concluded
that the acquired set of assets and liabilities do not constitute a
business and the transaction is accounted for as an asset acquisition.

RAFE  AREEFXEENREHEAATLE
Enakmahs( ZEEEHE]) @ Bk A%
7 15 o [F) B 4 AU (B A R #6186,000,0007T Y5
EEEE R 2 ARAHE -

R-ZF__F_A+TH ZFEEBHRZIMBILR
R EEER - MASBE D TRUIEEXEE - IE
FHEXRRARRMEEEHBEAR - XEER
o MREZABRENBEY MER—IAXT - &)
R B AWIREECHK °
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46. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

46. DB MBARRR

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREET T

Non-current Assets FRBEE
Unlisted investment in a subsidiary R—KIELTHBRRANEE 230,979 230,979
Amounts due from subsidiaries i NI R 16,546 =
247,525 230,979

Current Assets REBEE
Other receivables Ho A e WK IE 435 334
Amounts due from subsidiaries e N EENEIE O - 29,618
Bank balances and cash IRITEBR LIRS 160 1,494
595 31,446
Current Liabilities i =R i

Other payables H A fERTRUE 140 217
Amounts due to subsidiaries EARLNEINGIE e - 13,941
140 14,158
Net Current Assets REEEFE 455 17,288
Total Assets less Current Liabilities EEABRRBERE 247,980 248,267

Capital and Reserves ERK G
Share capital &N 41,655 41,655
Share premium and reserves AP 5 (8 K s 190,666 206,612
Total Equity P 232,321 248,267

Non-current Liabilities ERBEME
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR LNEINGIE e 15,659 =
247,980 248,267
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46. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

(Continued)

46. ARDB R RER®)

Share Merger Retained

premium reserves profits Total

BAEE EOHEE A et

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT

At 1 January 2020 RZZE=_TF—H—H 92,968 97,559 18,479 209,006
Profit and total comprehensive FE R R EE KA

income for the year = = 12,606 12,606

Dividend paid EATAR S = = (15,000) (15,000)

At 31 December 2020 R-Z-_ZTF+_-_HA=+—H 92,968 97,559 16,085 206,612
Loss and total comprehensive FABEREERAX B

expense for the year - - (946) (946)

Dividend paid BEARE = = (15,000) (15,000)

At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H 92,968 97,559 139 190,666
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SABS I 2

Consolidated Results ME¥E

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—F—tE —FN\F —T-NF —F_FTF —B-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT AREBTET ARBTT AR¥TR

Revenue A 2,414,127 2,848,016 2,367,151 2,493,041 3,558,009
Profit before tax BRA% A& A 242,839 154,014 119,180 64,931 237,316
Income tax expense s i~ (29,597) (23,301) (18,152) (2,371) (29,038)
Profit for the year FERm A 213,242 130,713 101,028 62,560 208,278
Attributable to: AT ALREM :
the owners of the Company RABHEE A 182,705 109,358 82,184 54,772 160,841
non-controlling interests SRR SR 30,537 21,355 18,844 7,788 47,437
213,242 130,713 101,028 62,560 208,278
Consolidated Assets and Liabilities HeEBERAES
At 31 December
R+=-—A=+—8H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—E2—tF Z=)\F E-NF ZE=FF CZB-F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT AR¥TR

Total assets BEBE 2,561,870 2,557,823 2,424,551 2,682,775 3,033,928
Total liabilities BE8E (1,567,990) (1,484,444) (1,300,144) (1,493,201)  (1,651,976)
Net assets BERE 993,880 1,073,379 1,124,407 1,189,574 1,381,952
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